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PART |- BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Business

Corporate Background

Asian Terminals, Inc. (ATI), formerly known as Marina Port Services, Inc. (MPSI), was
incorporated on July 9, 1986 to provide general services with respect to the operation and
management of port terminals in the Philippines. In August 1990, a consortium of local and
foreign companies acquired all the issued and outstanding capital stock of ATI.

South Harbor

ATl manages and operates the South Harbor pursuant to the Third Supplement to the Contract
for Cargo Handling Services and Related Services granted by the Philippine Ports Authority
(PPA) extending ATI’s South Harbor concession for twenty five (25) years or until May 2038.

The Container Terminal Division handles stevedoring, arrastre, warehousing, storage, cranage,
container freight station (CFS) and other port-related services for international cargoes. ATl's
5-year lease contract commencing in 2011 over two parcels of land located in Sta. Mesa, City
of Manila continued and is extended until January 2022. This land is being used exclusively as
an off-dock container depot.

Pier 15 is dedicated to General Stevedoring operations which provide arrastre, stevedoring and
storage services to international shipping lines.

The ATI South Harbor facility is certified compliant with the International Ship and Port Facility
Security (ISPS) Code issued by the Office for Transportation Security, DOTC valid until
November 2019.

The ATI South Harbor facility has completed the follow-up audit for the Integrated Management
Systems last October 2018 which covered 1SO 14001:2015 (Environment), 1ISO 45001:2018
(Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and 1SO28000:2007 (Specification for the Supply
Chain Security). All certificates are current and updated.

Inland Clearance Depot (Laguna)

The Inland Clearance Depot (ICD) was established pursuant to Customs Memorandum Order
No. 11-97 which designated ICD as an extension of the Port of Manila and as a customs bonded
facility. This permits the immediate transfer of cargoes to the facility while still being cleared by
customs in Manila. This provides savings in storage charges and efficient just-in- time delivery
for clients in the CALABARZON area. The facility provides storage, trucking, just-in-time
delivery, brokerage and maintenance and repair services for its clients. Customs Memorandum
Order No. 23-2003 expanded the operations of the ATI-Calamba ICD to include servicing the
Port of Batangas, in addition to the Port of Manila.

The ICD also serves as an empty container depot for shipping lines. This provides greater
operational efficiency and minimizes locators’ costs.

The facility is equipped with CCTV cameras for security monitoring.

The Inland Clearance Depot has completed the follow-up audit for the Integrated Management
Systems last October 2018 which covered ISO 14001:2015 (Environment), ISO 45001:2018
(Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and 1ISO28000:2007 (Specification for the Supply
Chain Security). All certificates are current and updated.
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Port of Batangas

ATI Batangas, Inc. (ATIB), a 99.17%-owned subsidiary of ATI, is the sole cargo handling
contractor operating at the Port of Batangas. ATI provides management services to ATIB
relating to operations, marketing, training and administration.

ATIB had a 10-year Cargo Handling Contract in Phase 1 of the Port of Batangas effective until
October 2015, under which it provides arrastre, stevedoring, storage and related cargo handling
services. By virtue of the same contract, ATIB was also given the right to manage and operate
the Fastcraft Passenger Terminal and to provide specific services and amenities to all
passengers, both for fastcraft and RO-RO vessels.

A Lease Agreement for the management and operation of additional assets and facilities in
Phase 1 was signed by ATIB effective August 1, 2009 and co-terminus with the above-
mentioned 10-year agreement. Pursuant to this Lease Agreement, the Passenger Terminal
Building 2 was turned over to ATIB in May 2010.

On 2 October 2015, ATIB and ATI signed a Contract for the Management, Operation,
Maintenance and Development of Phase |, Port of Batangas for a term commencing 01 October
2015 until 30 September 2025. This contract effectively consolidates the above-mentioned
contracts of ATIB in Phase 1, Port of Batangas, and included the contract to lease the Main
Passenger Terminal Building mentioned in the narrative below.

On January 18, 2010, the PPA issued to ATI the Notice to Proceed to Award the Contract for
the Management, Operation, Maintenance, Development and Promotion of the Container
Terminal “A-1”, Phase |l of the Port of Batangas for a period of 25 years. The contract was
signed on March 25, 2010 and is effective for a term of 25 years. The Notice to Proceed dated
June 16, 2010 allowed ATI to start and commence operations at the Terminal on 1 July 2010.

The container terminal handles stevedoring, arrastre, storage, container freight station (CFS)
and other port related activities for domestic and international shipping lines. Other special
services include ship’s husbanding, maintenance and repair services, and trucking.

ATI's 5-year lease agreement with PPA effective 3 April 2012 covering a land adjacent to the
CFS area of the Container Terminal “A-1" continued in 2017 and 2018. This area is being
utilized as storage for completely built units (CBU) of vehicles, pending finalization of contract
extension until 2023.

ATIB and Batangas Container Terminal has completed the follow-up audit for the Integrated
Management Systems last October 2018 which covered ISO 14001:2015 (Environment), ISO
45001:2018 (Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and 1SO28000:2007 (Specification
for the Supply Chain Security). All certificates are current and updated.

ATIB and Batangas Container Terminal is certified compliant with the International Ship and
Port Facility Security (ISPS) Code issued by the Office for Transportation Security, DOTC.

Batangas Supply Base

On February 13, 2007, ATIB entered into a contract to lease the Main Passenger Terminal
Building for the purpose of operating a supply base for companies engaged in oil and gas
exploration. The contract was initially effective for five (5) years, but was renewed to be
effective until 19 October 2015, extended until 2017, and then was renewed effective 1
December 2017 until 29 February 2024.The agreement for this facility was included in the
“Contract for the Management, Operation, Maintenance and Development of Phase |, Port of
Batangas” which was renewed dated 2 October 2015 for a term of 10 years from 01 October
2015 until 30 September 2025.

ATI operates and manages the Batangas Supply Base within the Port of Batangas under a
contract with Shell Philippines Exploration B.V. (SPEX). The Supply Base provides logistics
support to the Malampaya Gas-to-Power-Project which includes cargo-handling, crane and
equipment hire, transport, labor, vessel agency and waste management. The life of the
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Malampaya Gas field is approximately 20 years. Its other major client is Rubicon Offshore,
International, Inc.

The Batangas Supply Base has completed the follow-up audit for the Integrated Management
Systems last October 2018 which covered 1SO 14001:2015 (Environment), 1ISO 45001:2018
(Health and Safety), ISO 9001: 2015 (Quality) and 1ISO28000:2007 (Specification for the Supply
Chain Security). All certificates are current and updated.

Tanza Barge Terminal

ATI intends to develop a barge terminal in Tanza, Cavite to cater to PEZA cargoes. In
preparation for this project, Tanza Container Terminal, Inc. was incorporated on 18 January
2018. On 15 February 2018, ATI signed an initial lease term of 6-months over a property in
Tanza, Cavite. The initial lease term has been extended and the rental suspended until
regulatory permits (primarily from PEZA) for the development of a barge terminal in an ecozone
are established. The source of funding will be a combination of internally generated funds and
bank borrowings.

South Cotabato Integrated Port Services, Inc.

ATl owns 35.71% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of South Cotabato Integrated Port
Services, Inc. (SCIPSI).

SCIPSI is the existing cargo handling operator at the Makar Wharf in the Port of General
Santos, General Santos City. It is located near the business center of the city and caters to the
needs of local businesses (which are engaged mainly in agriculture, fisheries, livestock and
poultry) as well as importers and exporters.

The services provided by SCIPSI include container terminal handling, arrastre, stevedoring,
bagging, domestic cargo handling and equipment services.

SCIPSI is ISO 14001:2015, OHSAS 18001:2007 and ISO 9001:2015 certified since 2004. Itis
Investors in People (liP) certified beginning June 16, 2009. In September 2015, SCIPSI reached
the liP — Gold Accreditation. In June 2016, SCIPSI won the liP Gold Employer of the Year
(International) Award in London. In November 2019, SCIPSI won the |iP Excellence in Social
Responsibility Award also in London.

The Port of General Santos is certified complaint with the International Ship and Port Facility
Security Code issued by the Office of Transport Security (OTS) valid until 8 October 2022.

Breakdown of Consolidated Revenues

Based on accounting records, the following is the breakdown of consolidated revenues (in ‘000
Php) by service type for the year ended December 31, 2018:

2018 2017 2016

Service Amount % to Total Amount % to Total Amount % to Total
Stevedoring 5,368,521 44% | 4,833,068 46% | 4,041,808 44%
Arrastre 4,572,477 37% | 3,715,092 35% 3,644,314 39%
Logistics 72,726 1% 104,286 1% 108,417 1%
Special/Other
Services 2,262,954 18% | 1,950,726 18% 1,454,623 16%
TOTAL 12,276,678 100% | 10,603,172 100% 9,249,162 100%
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2018 2017 2016
Source Amount | % to Total Amount | % to Total Amount | % to Total
Domestic 406,690 3% 327,524 3% 384,976 4%
Foreign 11,869,988 97% | 10,275,648 97% 8,864,186 96%
TOTAL 12,276,678 100% | 10,603,172 100% 9,249,162 100%
Competition

ATl manages the South Harbor at the Port of Manila. Its major competitor on the container
business is International Container Terminal Services, Inc., which operates the Manila
International Container Terminal; and on the non-containerized business, Harbour Centre Port
Terminal Inc., which operates a private commercial port at the northern end of the Manila North
Harbor.

At the Port of Batangas, ATIB competes with two (2) major private commercial ports on
breakbulk cargoes -- Philippine National Oil Corporation Energy Base and Bauan International
Port Inc. The Batangas Container Terminal has no direct competitor.

The ICD competes with ICTSI's Laguna Gateway Inland Container Terminal (LGICT) located
in Calamba, Laguna. The LGICT is an extension of the seaport operations of the MICT.

Effect of existing or probable governmental regulations on the business

Various laws, orders, rules and regulations govern ATI's business and operations. ATI’s
commitments and authority to manage, operate, maintain, develop and promote its business
are based on the terms provided in its various contracts with and the administrative rules issued
by the Philippine Ports Authority (PPA). The regulatory powers of government agencies hamely
the Department of Labor and Employment (DOLE), Department of Environment and Natural
Resources (DENR), Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), Bureau of Customs (BOC),
Philippine Competition Commission, as well as the concerned Local Government Units (LGU)
over various aspects of its business and intended projects, facilitate and ensure observance of
existing laws.

Employees

ATI has a total manpower complement of 1,853 as of December 31, 2018. Of the total, 1,539
are in Operations, 191 are in Maintenance and 123 are in Management and Administration.
The projected headcount for next 12 months is 2,046.
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About 79% of the existing manpower is covered by collective bargaining agreements as follows:

TYPE OF WORKER UNION FROM TO

Equipment operators |Associated Workers Union (AWU) 12/01/13 |11/30/18*
and dockworkers

Stevedores Katipunan ng mga Mangagawa sa 12/01/13 |11/30/18*
Daungan

Field Supervisors Associated Skilled and Technical 08/16/16 |08/15/21
Employees Union

Checkers South Harbor Independent Port 09/07/16 |09/07/21
Checkers Union

Stevedores and Batangas Pier Stevedores and Labor |11/06/17 |11/05/22

dockworkers Union

*ongoing negotiation for renewal of CBA

There were no labor strikes for the past twenty (20) years.

Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

In 2018, ATI incurred approximately Php 4.4 million for various environmental activities and
other environment related projects. The Company also participated in Corporate Social
Responsibility activities benefiting nearby communities.

ATI business units maintain its current certifications to 1ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management
System, ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System and has transitioned to the
newly published 1ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety Management System.

Business Risks

The Company regularly undertakes a Business Risk Profile review where risks are identified by
priority based on a systematic assessment of probability and impact. Control strategies are
identified and action points established with the designated accountable persons. Results and
developments are monitored during reviews.

Adequate bonds and insurance coverage with business interruption clauses and global
umbrella scope, structural testing and improvement of facilities and equipment, compliance with
government regulations, asset management systems, business continuity plans, disaster
recovery procedures, safety and health management systems, emergency response
procedures and security management systems are in place to meet operational
contingencies. Results and developments are monitored during reviews.

Process controls, intensified collection efforts, rationalization of capital and operational
spending, close monitoring of economic indicators and financial planning and budget controls
are practiced to address financial and strategic contingencies. Regular monitoring and updating
of system, assets and policies are ensured to maintain order and implement improvements in
response to the growing market.

Aggressive marketing approach and customer relations, regular dialogue with and active
participation in the initiatives of concerned government entities and port users, productivity and
efficiency improvements are initiated as far as commercial and legal contingencies are
concerned.
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Item 2. Properties

The Company has outstanding leases and subleases covering land, buildings, and offshore
area in Manila (Sta. Mesa), Laguna (Calamba), Batangas (Sta. Clara) and Cavite (Tanza).
Rental expenses on these properties in 2018 totaled Php111.2 million. The current lease
agreements have various expiration dates with the longest term expiring in August 2043. The
leases are renewable upon mutual agreement with the lessor. There is no intention to purchase
any of the real property currently being leased.

Main Facilities

South Harbor

The Container Terminal operates a facility with 4 container berths. It has 975 meters of quay
line equipped with twin-lift capable ship-to-shore gantry cranes. Capacity was 1.03m prior to
2013 and has now been brought up to 1.2m through developments since 2013. South Harbor
provides optimal service through modern equipment comprising of Quay Cranes (QC), Rubber
Tyred Gantries (RTG) with stacking capacity up to 6 levels, Container Stackers, Empty
Handlers, Internal Transfer Vehicles and forklifts. South Harbor has a (CFS) and a Designated
Examination Area with 5 x-ray machines. Since early 2014, with all domestic cargoes
transferred to the domestic ports, the South Harbor facility continuously offers efficient gate
access from last year’s 5 to now 7 corridors connecting itself to main roadways. The Terminal
Operating System is managed with Navis SPARCS (Synchronous Planning and Real Time
Control System), a graphical planning software that guides proper segregation and stacking of
containers, vessels berthing, loading and unloading, and equipment control. The Terminal
makes use of TABS (Terminal Appointment Booking System) to have a more organized
process of gate transactions.

The General Stevedoring Division (GSD) occupies a single pier at the Manila South Harbor with
a total of 5 berths and a beaching area for landing craft. It has three covered warehouses and
a stacking area designed for completely built units. It is equipped with annually certified lifting
gears and multiple heavy forklifts rated up to 30T. GSD also provides offshore conventional
cargo handling at 18 anchorage berths inside the Manila Bay breakwater.

Inland Clearance Depot (Laguna)

ICD is a 4.2 hectare container yard facility. It has a maximum capacity of 2,500 TEUSs. It is
equipped with two (2) toploaders, two (2) reachstackers and one (1) unit of 3-tonner forklift to
service the logistics requirement of clients. The core activities of ICD, among others, include
the “Just-in-Time-Deliveries” for CALABARZON based consignees using the Ports of Batangas
and Manila.

Port of Batangas (Phase 1) (ATIB)

The domestic terminal has 230-meter and 185-meter berths and three general cargo berths
with lengths ranging from 130 m to 180 m. It has a storage area totaling 62,500 square meters
(sgm) and a transit shed measuring 3,000 sgm. Additional services, through partnerships,
include operating an offshore supply base.

ATIB operates two (2) modern passenger terminal buildings for high-speed inter-island ferries

and RORO vessels. It has seven fast craft berths with a total length of 540 m and
a draft of five meters. It has a ferry berth 124 m long with five meters draft and six RORO berths
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with a total length of 680 m. The passenger terminal facility includes a 25,000 sqm. marshalling
area for RORO vehicles. It can handle more than 3 million embarking passengers annually.

ATIB has a multi-level car park facility consisting of 5 levels with an area of 1.7 hectare per
floor. It can accommodate up to 5,400 cars or completely built units (CBUS).

Batangas Container Terminal (Container Terminal “A-1”, Phase Il of the Port of
Batangas) (BCT)

The Batangas Container Terminal (“A-1”, Phase 2) has an existing berth length of 660 m with
a draft of 13 meters. The approximate area of the entire facility of 162,500 sqm include the
container yard, working apron, maintenance and control buildings, gates and roadways. The
container yard has a total of 4,144 twenty-foot ground slots and equipped with 8 units of RTGs.
Ship-to-shore operations are equipped with 4 QCs. The terminal is also equipped with 10 reefer
platforms, a 4,100 sgm. CFS, RFID gate management system, CCTV coverage, and back-up
generator sets. The terminal Operating System is managed with Zodiac.

Batangas Supply Base

For its Batangas Supply Base (BSB) operations, ATIB allocates an open area measuring
nearly 8,500 sgm. for SPEX (Shell Philippines Exploration) in addition to a 2-level covered
storage facility with a lot area of nearly 2,500 sgm.

South Cotabato Integrated Port Services Inc.

South Cotabato Integrated Port Services, Inc. (SCIPSI) operates the Makar Wharf in General
Santos City. Cargoes are loaded or unloaded using ships gears. It has a total berth length of
850 meters. SCIPSI receives and handles cargoes through the use of their various lifting
equipment with capacities ranging from 3 tons to 40 tons.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

1. ATI - MAFSICOR Case —Regional Trial Court, Manila. ATl and MAFSICOR have signed
settlement documents, which includes a Release signed by Mafsicor's authorized
representative and a Joint Motion to Dismiss for the Regional Trial Court. On 21 March
2019, ATI's handling counsel received the Regional Trial Court’s approval of the settlement
through a Decision Based on Joint Motion to Withdraw and/or Dismiss dated 28 February
2019. The parties shall be moving for the dismissal of the petitions filed by ATI with the
Court of Appeals and Supreme Court.

2. The Company is a party to legal proceedings which arose from normal business activities.
However, Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting therefrom, has
no material effect on the Company’s financial position.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
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PART II- OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

1. The Company’s common equity is traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange.

2017 High Low
First Quarter (Jan. — Mar.) 12.40 10.26
Second Quarter (Apr. — June) 12.36 10.80
Third Quarter (July — Sept.) 11.60 10.60
Fourth Quarter (Oct. - Dec.) 12.20 10.90

2018 High Low
First Quarter (Jan. — Mar.) 13.10 11.00
Second Quarter (Apr. — June) 13.48 12.28
Third Quarter (July — Sept.) 16.94 13.02
Fourth Quarter (Oct. - Dec.) 13.88 13.00

On December 28, 2018 (last day when ATI shares were traded for 2018), ATI shares
were traded at its highest for the price of Php13.88, lowest for Php13.50 and closed at
Php13.88.

The number of stockholders as of December 31, 2018 was 827. Of the 2,000,000,000
common shares outstanding as of December 31, 2018, a total 772,436,586 or 38.62%
are foreign-owned.

Top 20 stockholders as of December 31, 2018:

Name No. of Shares % to Total
DP World Australia (POAL) Ltd. 346,466,600 17.32
ATI Holdings, Inc. 291,371,231 14.57
PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 241,915,569 12.10
Pecard Holdings, Inc. 198,203,968 9.91
Philippine Seaport Inc. 196,911,524 9.85
Daven Holdings, Inc 155,906,071 7.80
PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino) 133,702,612 6.69
SG Holdings, Inc. 130,000,000 6.50
Morray Holdings Inc. 100,000,000 5.00
Harbourside Holding Corp. 80,000,000 4.00
Aberlour Holding Co. Inc. 71,517,463 3.58
Rescom Developers, Inc. 26,627,884 1.33
Tanco, Eusebio, H. 15,257,663 0.76
Granite Realty Corporation 1,000,000 0.05
Luym, Douglas 800,000 0.04
Tanco, Joseph Luym 795,000 0.04
Oben, Reginaldo Oben &/or Teresa 784,266 0.04
Tangco, Joseph Agustin Eusebio L. 500,000 0.03
Chua, Willington Chua &/or Constantino W. 435,000 0.02
Tanco, Martin Khu 355,416 0.02
TOTAL 1,992,550,266 99.63
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2. The cash dividends declared and paid out by the Company during the two (2) most recent
fiscal years were as follows:

Date Dividend Per Share Record Date
April 27, 2017 0.43 May 19, 2017
April 26, 2018 0.45 May 22, 2018

Under the Company’s By-Laws, dividends shall be declared only from unrestricted
earnings, and shall be payable at such time and in such manner and in such amounts as
the Board of Directors shall determine. No dividends shall be declared which would impair
the capital of the Company.

3. Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities or Exempt Securities, including recent Issuances of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction (within 3 years)

None.

Item 6. Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2018 of P12,276.7 million went up by 15.8% from
P10,603.2 million in 2017. Revenues from South Harbor international containerized cargo and
Batangas Container Terminal increased from last year by 15.6% and 37.2%, respectively, on
account of higher container volumes, which grew by 6.1% and 25.9%, respectively. Further,
revenue growth at the South Harbor operations was augmented by the tariff increases on
vessel-related and cargo-related charges pursuant to PPA Memorandum Circular No. 07-2018,
under which, tariffs on vessel and cargo handling charges on international containerized and
non-containerized cargoes at the South Harbor were increased by 7.0% effective on June 5,
2018. On the other hand, revenues from Port of Batangas were down from last year by 3.3%
due to lower volumes.

Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2018 of P2,270.1 million increased by 18.6% from
P1,914.4 million in 2017 as a result of higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.

Cost and expenses in 2018 amounted to P4,940.9 million, 11.4% higher than P4,436.2 million
in 2017. Labor costs in 2018 of P1,462.6 million were higher by 14.0% compared to P1,282.9
million in 2017 due to salary rate increases and additional headcount related to higher volumes.
Equipment running in 2018 went up by 34.0% to P798.0 million from P595.4 million in 2017 due
to higher usage of equipment spare parts and higher fuel costs resulting from higher prices and
higher consumption. Taxes and licenses in 2018 increased by 6.2% to P272.1 million from
P256.1 million in 2017 due to increase in realty taxes related to increase in assessed values.
Security, health, environment and safety in 2018 of P205.4 million were higher by 13.0%
compared to P181.8 million in 2017 due to higher security costs brought about by rate increase
and additional security posts. Facilities-related expenses in 2018 went up by 32.0% to P200.5
million from P151.9 million in 2017 due to higher repair and maintenance costs on buildings,
surface and pavement, wharves and IT costs. Professional fees in 2018 of P80.5 million went
up by 229.0% from P24.5 million last year due to higher legal expenses and consultancy fees.
Marketing, commercial, and promotion in 2018 increased by 89.0% to P86.5 million from P45.7
million due to higher advertising costs. Management fees in 2018 grew by 17.6% to P176.1
million from P149.7 million in 2017 following higher earnings before tax. Other expenses in
2018 totaled P213.4 million, went up by 32.7% from P160.8 million in 2017 due to higher
general operations, community investments and provision for inventory obsolescence.

On the other hand, Depreciation and amortization in 2018 of P1,130.9 million decreased by
4.2% from P1,180.7 million in 2017 due to full amortization of QC6 and QC9 last June 2017.
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Provision for claims in 2018 of P25.7 million were lower by 83.3% compared to P154.1 million
in 2017 due to lower provision for civil case.

Finance income amounted to P113.2 million in 2018, 32.2% up from P85.6 million in 2017 due
to higher interest rates for money market placements. Finance costs in 2018 of P540.4 million
were lower by 4.8% compared to P567.7 million in 2017 due to declining interest expense on
port concession rights payable. Others-net in 2018 was negative P627.8 million, 86.9% higher
than P335.9 million in 2017 mainly due to fair value losses on cash flow hedge and foreign
exchange losses on port concession rights payable following the depreciation of the Philippine
Peso against the US Dollar.

Income before income tax in 2018 of P4,010.7 million was higher by 16.8% compared to
P3,434.5 million in 2017. Provision for income tax in 2018 increased by 19.3% to P1,127.3
million from P944.8 million in 2017.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2018 improved by 15.8% to P2,883.4 million from
P2,489.7 million last year. Earnings per share was up to P1.44 in 2018 from P1.24 in 2017.
Without the foreign exchange impact — as per accounting rules brought in since 2013 — net
income would have been P3,401.5 million, 21.7% higher than P2,795.3 million in 2017, on a
like-for-like basis.

Plans for 2019

Asian Terminals Inc. will continuously optimize its ports in Manila and Batangas for
containerized cargo, non-containerized cargo and passenger handling, keeping these vital
gateways competitive to customer needs and responsive to market demand.

At the core of this is ATI's programed capital investments worth Php 9.0 billion for 2019 in line
with its investment commitment with the Philippine Ports Authority.

This will invest in the acquisition of more cargo handling equipment and various infrastructure
projects at Manila South Harbor and Batangas Port, to further grow capacity, increase efficiency
and enhance safety performance, in support of the growing Philippine economy.

As a forward-looking company, ATI keeps its eyes peeled for more business growth drivers,
including developing additional cargo storage spaces within and outside the port zones, offering
ancillary services leveraged on its core ports business and exploring new port operations locally
or overseas, given the right opportunity.

Combining the global leadership of its strategic foreign shareholder DP World and the best of
Filipino talent, ATl shall continue leveraging its resources, expertise and management
capabilities to bring its competencies where growth potential is high and where it could add
greater value to its shareholders.

Consolidated Financial Condition

Total assets as of December 31, 2018 increased by 13.0% to P29,123.2 million from P25,765.2
million as of December 31, 2017. Total current assets as of December 31, 2018 grew by 7.2%
to P9,080.4 million from P8,469.2 million as of December 31, 2017. Cash and cash equivalents
as of December 31, 2018 were lower by 1.1% to P6,868.5 million from P6,945.2 million as of
December 31, 2017. Trade and other receivables-net as of December 31, 2018 rose by 51.3%
to P742.0 million from P490.5 million as of December 31, 2017. Spare parts and supplies-net
as of December 31, 2018 of P507.5 million were higher by 25.7% compared to P403.7 million
as of December 31, 2017 in support of operational requirements and equipment maintenance
program. Prepaid expenses of P962.4 million as of December 31, 2018 went up by 52.8% from
P629.9 million as of December 31, 2017.

Total non-current assets of P20,042.7 million as of December 31, 2018 were higher by 15.9%

compared to P17,296.0 million as of December 31, 2017. Property and equipment-net
increased by 56.3% to P883.9 million as of December 31, 2018 from P565.6 million as of
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December 31, 2017. Additions to property and equipment which were not subject of the service
concession arrangement totaled P436.2 million in 2018. Intangible assets-net as of December
31, 2018 of P17,962.6 million were higher by 14.0% compared to P15,753.2 million as of
December 31, 2017. Acquisitions of intangible assets which consisted of civil works and cargo
handling equipment that were subject of the service concession arrangement amounted to
P3,222.4 million in 2018. Deferred tax assets-net as of December 31, 2018 of P951.3 million
went up by 14.5% to P831.0 million as of December 31, 2017, pertaining to additional deferred
tax on concession rights payable and unrealized foreign exchange losses. Other noncurrent
assets as of December 31, 2018 increased by 172.5% to P161.3 million from P59.2 million as
of December 31, 2017.

Total liabilities went up by 9.4% to P13,269.3 million as of December 31, 2018 from P12,129.7
million as of December 31, 2017. Trade and other payables as of December 31, 2018 of
P3,797.4 million were higher by 41.2% than P2,690.2 million as of December 31, 2017. Trade
and other payables are covered by agreed payment schedules. Provision for claims went up
to P219.4 million as of December 31, 2018 from P204.5 million as of December 31, 2017.
Income and other taxes payable increased by 4.9% to P330.9 million as of December 31, 2018
from P315.3 million as of December 31, 2017. Port concession rights payable (current and
noncurrent) as of December 31, 2018 totaled P8,866.9 million, 0.7% above the P8,806.6 million
as of December 31, 2017. Pension liability as of December 31, 2018 of P54.8 million were
lower by 51.6% compared to P113.1 million as of December 31, 2017.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by 18.4% to P4,061.8 million in 2018 from
P4,979.9 million in 2017 due to lower trade and other payables.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2018 of P2,494.2 million were 9.3% higher than P2,282.8
million in 2017 due to higher acquisitions of property and equipment and intangible assets.

Cash used in financing activities in 2018 of P1,682.4 million were higher by 2.8% than the
P1,636.7 million in 2017 due to higher payments of port concession rights payable and cash
dividends. Cash dividends paid amounted to P900.0 million and P860.0 million in 2018 and
2017, respectively.

Adoption of New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretation

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations starting January 1, 2018 and accordingly, changed its accounting
policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

» PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the
previously published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications
and measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge
accounting model (in 2013).

PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial assets that reflects the business model in which assets are managed
and their cash flow characteristics, including a new forward-looking expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment, and guidance on own credit risk
on financial liabilities measured at fair value. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge
accounting requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting
and introduces significant improvements by aligning the accounting more
closely with risk management.
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Classification, Measurement and Impairment of Financial Assets

The following table shows the original measurement categories under PAS 39
and the new measurement categories under PFRS 9 for each class of the
Group’s financial assets as at January 1, 2018.

Original New
Original Carrying Carrying
Classificatio New Amount Amount
n under Classification under under
PAS 39 under PFRS 9 PAS 39 PFRS 9
Financial
Assets
Cash and cash Loans and
equivalents receivables Amortized cost P6,945,189 P6,945,189
Trade and other Loans and
receivables receivables  Amortized cost 509,068 509,068
Deposits Loans and
receivables  Amortized cost 33,845 33,845
Equity securities Available
for sale  FVOCI - equity 2,652 2,652
Total financial assets P7,490,754 P7,490,754

For assets in the scope of the PFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses
are generally expected to increase and become more volatile. The Group has
determined that the application of PFRS 9’'s impairment requirements at
January 1, 2018 did not result in an additional allowance for impairment.

The Group has applied PFRS 9 retrospectively but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

Hedge Accounting

As permitted by the standard, the Group did not adopt the new hedge
accounting requirements and continues to apply the hedge accounting
requirements of PAS 39.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty
Programmes, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31,
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new
standard introduces a new revenue recognition model for contracts with
customers which specifies that revenue should be recognized when (or as) a
company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to
which the Group expects to be entitled.

PFRS 15 requires a contract with a customer to be legally enforceable and to
meet certain criteria to be within the scope of the standard and for the general
model to apply. It introduces detailed guidance on identifying performance
obligations which requires entities to determine whether promised goods or
services are distinct. It also introduces detailed guidance on determining
transaction price, including guidance on variable consideration and
consideration payable to customers. The transaction price will then be
generally allocated to each performance obligation in proportion to its stand-
alone selling price.
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Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over
time, in a manner that best reflects the Group’s performance, or at a point in
time, when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer. The
standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRS. It also does not apply if two
companies in the same line of business exchange non-monetary assets to
facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is
partly in the scope of another PFRS, then the guidance on separation and
measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

Due to the transition method (cumulative effect method) chosen in applying
PFRS 15, comparative information has not been restated to reflect the new
requirements. The Group has not identified significant impacts to amounts
recognized in the financial statements in the application of PFRS 15. However,
the Group has adopted the new disclosure requirements including the
disaggregation of revenue into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors and has aligned the description of its accounting policies with PFRS 15.

In conjunction with the adoption of PFRS 15, the consequential amendments
to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements, has
no significant impact to the Group.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration. The interpretation clarifies that the transaction date to
be used for translation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance
payment or receipt is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the
prepayment or deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For
transactions involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt
gives rise to a separate transaction date. The interpretation applies when an
entity pays or receives consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a
non-monetary asset or liability before recognizing the related item.

Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2018. However, the Group
has not early adopted the following new or amended standards in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of these are
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Effective January 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leases supersedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model
for lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet,
removing the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially
remains unchanged except for a number of details including the application of
the new lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease
guidance and new disclosure requirements.

Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were introduced including an optional
lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases with a term of 12 months or
less) and low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-level
accounting instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New
estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification
and measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to reassess
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certain key estimates and judgments at each reporting date were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 at or before the
date of initial application of PFRS 16.

The Group has decided it will apply the modified retrospective adoption method
in PFRS 16, and, therefore, will only recognize leases on balance sheet as at
January 1, 2019. In addition, it has decided to measure right-of-use assets by
reference to the measurement of the lease liability on that date. This will ensure
there is no immediate impact to net assets on that date.

As at December 31, 2018 operating lease commitments amounted to P723.1
million, which is not expected to be materially different from the anticipated
position on December 31, 2019. Assuming the Group’s lease commitments
remain at this level, the effect of discounting those commitments is anticipated
to result in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately P553.2
million being recognized on January 1, 2019. However, further work still needs
to be carried out to determine whether and when extension and termination
options are likely to be exercised, which will result in the actual liability
recognized being higher or lower. Instead of recognizing an operating expense
for its operating lease payments, the Group will instead recognize interest on
its lease liabilities and amortization on its right-of-use assets.

= Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in PAS
12, Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. Under
the interpretation, whether the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial
statements will differ to that in the tax return, and whether the uncertainty is
disclosed or reflected in the measurement, depends on whether it is probable
that the tax authority will accept the Group chosen tax treatment. If it is not
probable that the tax authority will accept the Group chosen tax treatment, the
uncertainty is reflected using the measure that provides the better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty - either the most likely amount or the expected
value.

The interpretation also requires the reassessment of judgements and
estimates applied if facts and circumstances change - e.g., as a result of
examination or action by tax authorities, following changes in tax rules or when
a tax authority’s right to challenge a treatment expires.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. The interpretation can be
initially applied retrospectively applying PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors if possible without the use of hindsight, or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial
application without restating comparative information.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC-23.
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Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to PFRS 9).
The amendments cover the following areas:

o Prepayment features with negative compensation. The amendment
clarifies that a financial asset with a prepayment feature could be eligible
for measurement at amortized cost or FVOCI irrespective of the event or
circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract, which may
be within or beyond the control of the parties, and a party may either pay
or receive reasonable compensation for that early termination.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted. Retrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transitional reliefs.

e Modification of financial liabilites. The amendment to the Basis for
Conclusions on PFRS 9 clarifies that the standard provide an adequate
basis for an entity to account for modifications and exchanges of financial
liabilities that do not result in derecognition and the treatment is consistent
with the requirements for adjusting the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset when a modification does not result in the derecognition of the
financial asset - i.e., the amortized cost of the modified financial liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified contractual cash flows using the
original effective interest rate and any adjustment is recognized in profit or
loss.

If the initial application of PFRS 9 results in a change in accounting policy
for these modifications or exchanges, then retrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transition reliefs.

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to PAS
28). The amendment requires the application of PFRS 9 to other financial
instruments in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not
applied. These include long-term interests (LTIs) that, in substance, form part
of the entity's net investment in an associate or joint venture.

The amendment explains the annual sequence in which PFRS 9 and PAS 28
are to be applied. In effect, PFRS 9 is first applied ignoring any prior years’
PAS 28 loss absorption. If necessary, prior years’ PAS 28 loss allocation is
trued-up in the current year which may involve recognizing more prior years’
losses, reversing these losses or re-allocating them between different LTI
instruments. Any current year PAS 28 losses are allocated to the extent that
the remaining LTI balance allows and any current year PAS 28 profits reverse
any unrecognized prior years’ losses and then allocations against LTI.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted. Retrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transitional reliefs.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to PAS 19,
Employee Benefits). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit pension plan, an entity now uses updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for
the period. The effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the
gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other
comprehensive income.
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The amendments apply for plan amendments, curtailments or settlements that
occur on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins
on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle. This cycle of
improvements contains amendments to four standards:

Previously held interest in a joint operation (Amendments to PFRS 3,
Business Combinations and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements). The
amendments clarify how a company accounts for increasing its interest in
a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. If a party maintains
or obtains joint control, then the previously held interest is not remeasured.
If a party obtains control, then the transaction is a business combination
achieved in stages and the acquiring party remeasures the previously held
interest at fair value.

The amendments apply to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is permitted.

Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified
as equity (Amendments to PAS 12). The amendments clarify that all
income tax consequences of dividends, including payments on financial
instruments classified as equity, are recognized consistently with the
transactions that generated the distributable profits, i.e. in profit or loss,
Other Comprehensive Income or equity.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. When an entity first
applies those amendments, it shall apply them to the income tax
consequences of dividends recognized on or after the beginning of the
earliest comparative period.

Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization (Amendments to PAS 23,
Borrowing Costs). The amendments clarify that the general borrowings
pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings
that specifically finance qualifying assets that are still under development
or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale are
included in that general pool.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
applied to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

Effective January 1, 2020

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in PFRS Standards
sets out amendments to PFRS Standards, their accompanying documents and
PFRS practice statements to reflect the issuance of the revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in 2018 (2018 Conceptual Framework). The
2018 Conceptual Framework includes:

anew chapter on measurement;
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e guidance on reporting financial performance;

e improved definitions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting
these definitions; and

e clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.

Some Standards, their accompanying documents and PFRS practice
statements contain references to, or quotations from, the International
Accounting Standards Committee's Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements adopted by the IASB in 2001 or the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2010. The
amendments update some of those references and quotations so that they
refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework, and makes other amendments to
clarify which version of the Conceptual Framework is referred to in particular
documents.

These amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020.

= Definition of a Business (Amendments to PFRS 3). The amendments narrowed
and clarified the definition of a business. They also permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a group of
assets rather than a business. The amendments:

e confirmed that a business must include inputs and a process, and clarified

that:

o the process must be substantive; and

o theinputs and process must together significantly contribute to creating
outputs;

e narrowed the definitions of a business by focusing the definition of outputs
on goods and services provided to customers and other income from
ordinary activities, rather than on providing dividends or other economic
benefits directly to investors or lowering costs; and

e added a test that makes it easier to conclude that a company has acquired
a group of assets, rather than a business, if the value of the assets acquired
is substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group of similar assets.

The amendments apply to business combinations and asset acquisitions in
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. Earlier
application is permitted.

= Definition of Material (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements and PAS 8). The amendments refine the definition of material. The
amended definition of material states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify the definition of
material and its application by:

(a) raising the threshold at which information becomes material by replacing
the term ‘could influence’ with ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’;

(b) including the concept of ‘obscuring information’ alongside the concept of
‘omitting’ and ‘misstating’ information in the definition;

(c) clarifying that the users to which the definition refers are the primary users
of general purpose financial statements referred to in the Conceptual
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Framework;
(d) clarifying the explanatory paragraphs accompanying the definition; and
(e) aligning the wording of the definition of material across PFRS Standards
and other publications.

The amendments are expected to help entities make better materiality
judgements without substantively changing existing requirements.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.

Deferral of the local implementation of Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated
Financial Statements and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

= Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28). The amendments address
an inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture.

The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A
partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 with early adoption permitted. However, on
January 13, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the effective date of these
amendments until the IASB has completed its broader review of the research
project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting
for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and
joint ventures.

Other information:

o The Company’s businesses are affected by the local and global trade environment. Factors
that could cause actual results of the Company to differ materially include, but are not

limited to:
= material adverse change in the Philippine and global economic and industry
conditions;

= natural events (earthquake, typhoons and other major calamities); and
= material changes in exchange rates.

e There was no known trend, event or uncertainty that had or may have a material impact on
liquidity and on revenues or income from continuing operations. There was no known event
that may cause a material change in the relationships between costs and revenues.

e There was no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition and
results of operations.

e There was no event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material
to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

e Except for the commitments and contingencies mentioned in Note 23 of the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has no knowledge of any material off-balance sheet
(statement of financial position) transactions, arrangements, obligations and other
relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during
the reporting period that would address the past and would have material impact on future
operations.

o Projected capital expenditures for 2019 is P9.0 billion, which includes yard and berth
development as well as construction of new facilities and equipment acquisition. The
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capital expenditure will strengthen the Company's operations and capability to handle

growth.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the

Company’s subsidiary, ATl Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2018:

o ATIB’s total assets were only 9.2% of the consolidated total assets

e Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 6.9% of consolidated income
before other income and expense.!

Frequency Rate
(RIFR)?

relative to the total
number of hours
worked in the same
accounting period.

Consolidated Manner of
KPI Calculation 2018 2017 Discussion
Percentage of Increase resulted
Return on income before from higher income
Capital interest and tax 20.7% 19.2% before other income
Employed over capital (expense) during the
employed period.
Return on Percentage of net
Equity income over equity
attributable to attributable to 19.6% 19.6%
equity holders of | equity holders of
the parent the parent
Ratio of current Decrease due to
Current ratio assets over current 1.96:1.00 2.44:1.00 | higher current
liabilities liabilities.
Ratio of total assets Decrease due to
. over equity higher equity
As_set to equity attributable to 1.84:1.00 1.89:1.00 because of the
ratio . ) )
equity holders of increase in the net
the parent income.
Ratio of total Decrease due to
. liabilities over higher equity
De.bt to equity equity attributable 0.84:1.00 0.89:1.00 | because of the
ratio : ) )
to equity holders of increase in the net
the parent income.
Days Sales in ?ercoesi\s/e:rb?;jse over Increase due to
Receivables s 16 days 11 days higher accrued
revenues multiplied
(DSR) b revenues.
y number of days
Net income over
Net Ir_1c0me revenues less 28.8% 28.7% chrease due to
Margin government share higher revenues.
in revenues
Number of
reportable injuries
Reportable within a given
Injury accounting period 0.73 053 Due to higher

number of injuries.

1 Income before other income and expense is defined as income before net financing costs, net gains on derivative

instruments and others.
RIFR is the new KPI for injuries introduced in 2014 to replace LTIFR. RIFR is a more stringent KPI as it covers not

2

only Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) but also Medically Treated Injuries (MTIs) and Fatality incidents.
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Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)

Description Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Revenues P12,276.7 P10,603.2
Net income 2,883.4 2,489.7
Total assets 29,123.2 25,765.2
Total liabilities 13,269.3 12,129.7

Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2017 of P10,603.2 million went up by 14.6% from
P9,249.2 million in 2016. Revenues from South Harbor international containerized cargo and
Batangas Container Terminal increased from last year by 14.9% and 20.4%, respectively, on
account of higher container volumes, which grew by 5.7% and 25.6%, respectively. Likewise,
revenues in Port of Batangas was higher by 8.3% compared to last year due to higher volumes.
Further, revenues from South Harbor international non-containerized cargo increased from last
year by 3.2% despite the lower volume as a result of favorable cargo mix.

Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2017 of P1,914.4 million increased by 11.9% from
P1,711.6 million in 2016 resulting from higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.

Cost and expenses in 2017 of P4,436.2 million rose by P135.3 million 3.1% from P4,301.0
million in 2016. Labor costs in 2017 of P1,282.9 million were higher by 7.6% compared to
P1,192.5 million in 2016 due to salary rate increases and higher overtime costs related to higher
volumes. Depreciation and amortization in 2017 of P1,180.7 million increased by 3.9% from
P1,136.5 million in 2016 on account of additions to intangible assets and property and
equipment. Equipment running in 2017 went up by 22.7% to P595.4 million from P485.3 million
in 2016 due to higher usage of equipment spare parts and higher fuel costs resulting for higher
prices and higher consumption. Taxes and licenses in 2017 slightly increased by 0.5% to
P256.1 million from P254.9 million in 2016. Security, health, environment and safety in 2017
of P181.8 million were higher by 12.7% compared to P161.3 million in 2016 due to higher
security costs brought about by rate increase, additional security posts and increased in safety
initiatives. Provision for claims in 2017 of P154.1 million were higher compared to P5.8 million
in 2016 due to higher provision for civil case. Management fees in 2017 rose by 32.5% to
P149.7 million from P113.0 million in 2016 following higher netincome. General transport costs
in 2017 of P41.1 million were higher by 176.2% compared to P14.9 million in 2016 on account
of higher trucking costs in South Harbor and Laguna.

On the other hand, Facilities-related expenses in 2017 went down by 17.3% to P151.9 million
from P183.6 million in 2016 due to lower repair and maintenance costs for wharves. Rental in
2017 decreased by 8.2% to P139.9 million from P152.5 million due to lower equipment rentals.
Insurance in 2017 slightly decreased by 1.0% to P66.3 million from P66.9 million due to lower
insurance premiums. Marketing, commercial, and promotion in 2017 decreased by 66.4% to
P45.7 million from P136.2 million due to lesser advertising costs. Professional fees in 2017
amounted to P24.5 million vs. P174.3 million in 2016 decreased by 86.0%, on account of higher
legal expenses and consultancy fees last year. Entertainment expenses in 2017 decreased by
12.7% to P5.2 million from P5.9 million. Other expenses in 2017 totaled P160.8 million, down
by 26.0% from P217.3 million in 2016 due to lower general operations.

Finance income amounted to P85.6 million in 2017, 38.1% up from P62.0 million in 2016 due
to higher interest rates for money market placements. Finance costs in 2017 of P567.7 million
were lower by 2.3% compared to P581.2 million in 2016 due to declining interest expense on
port concession rights payable. Others-netin 2017 was negative P335.9 million, 197.4% higher
than P112.9 million in 2016 mainly due to fair value losses on cash flow hedge and forex losses
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on port concession rights payable following the depreciation of the Philippine Peso against the
US Dollar.

Income before income tax in 2017 of P3,434.5 million was higher by 31.9% compared to
P2,604.5 million in 2016. Provision for income tax in 2017 increased by 35.1% to P944.8 million
from P699.5 million in 2016.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2017 improved by 30.7% to P2,489.7 million from
P1.905.0 million last year. Earnings per share was up to P1.24 in 2017 from P0.95 in 2016.
Without the foreign exchange impact — as per accounting rules brought in since 2013 — net
income would have been P2,795.3 million, 33.4% higher than P2,095.5 million in 2016, on a
like-for-like basis.

Consolidated Financial Condition

Total assets as of December 31, 2017 rose by 11.3% to P25,765.2 million from P23,139.0
million as of December 31, 2016. Total current assets as of December 31, 2017 grew by 19.4%
to P8,469.2 million from P7,090.2 million as of December 31, 2016. Cash and cash equivalents
as of December 31, 2017 went up by 18.1% to P6,945.2 million from P5,881.2 million as of
December 31, 2016. Trade and other receivables-net as of December 31, 2017 rose by 15.0%
to P490.5 million from P426.5 million as of December 31, 2016. Spare parts and supplies-net
as of December 31, 2017 of P403.7 million were higher by 28.3% compared to P314.6 million
as of December 31, 2016 in support of operational requirements and equipment maintenance
program. Prepaid expenses of P629.9 million as of December 31, 2017 went up by 34.6% from
P467.9 million as of December 31, 2016.

Total non-current assets of P17,296.0 million as of December 31, 2017 were higher by 7.8%
compared to P16,048.8 million as of December 31, 2016. Property and equipment-net
increased by 17.1% to P565.6 million as of December 31, 2017 from P483.2 million as of
December 31, 2016. Additions to property and equipment which were not subject of the service
concession arrangement totaled P197.6 million in 2017. Intangible assets-net as of December
31, 2017 of P15,753.2 million were higher by 7.0% compared to P14,716.5 million as of
December 31, 2016. Acquisitions of intangible assets which consisted of civil works and cargo
handling equipment that were subject of the service concession arrangement amounted to
P2,102.5 million in 2017. Deferred tax assets-net as of December 31, 2017 of P831.0 million
was up by 13.3% to P733.4 million as of December 31, 2016, pertaining to additional deferred
tax on concession rights payable, cash flow hedge, and unrealized foreign exchange losses.
Other noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2017 decreased by 3.0% to P59.2 million from
P61.0 million as of December 31, 2016.

Total liabilities went up by 6.6% to P12,129.7 million as of December 31, 2017 from 11,378.9
million as of December 31, 2016. Trade and other payables as of December 31, 2017 of
P2,690.2 million were higher by 34.5% than P2,000.4 million as of December 31, 2016. Trade
and other payables are covered by agreed payment schedules. Provision for claims went up
to P204.5 million as of December 31, 2017 from P50.9 million as of December 31, 2016.
Income and other taxes payable increased by 59.3% to P315.3 million as of December 31,
2017 from P197.9 million as of December 31, 2016. Port concession rights payable (current
and noncurrent) as of December 31, 2017 totaled P8,806.6 million, 2.0% below the P8,985.9
million as of December 31, 2016. Pension liability as of December 31, 2017 of P113.1 million
were lower by 21.4% compared to P143.9 million as of December 31, 2016.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 19.8% to P4,979.9 million in 2017 from
P4,158.4 million in 2016 due to higher operating income.
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Net cash used in investing activities in 2017 of P2,282.8 million were 164.6% higher than
P862.7 million in 2016 due to higher acquisitions of property and equipment and intangible
assets.

Cash used in financing activities in 2017 of P1,636.7 million were higher by 6.6% than the
P1,534.8 million in 2016 due to higher payments of port concession rights payable and cash
dividends. Cash dividends paid amounted to P860.0 million and P820.0 million in 2017 and
2016, respectively.

Adoption of New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretation

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting
January 1, 2017 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise
indicated, the adoption of these amendments to standards did not have any significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

e Disclosure initiative (Amendments to PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows). The
amendments address financial statements users’ requests for improved
disclosures about an entity’s net debt relevant to understanding an entity’s cash
flows. The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes —
e.g. by providing a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities.

= Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to PAS
12 Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that:

e the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset;

¢ the calculation of future taxable profit in evaluating whether sufficient taxable
profit will be available in future periods excludes tax deductions resulting from
the reversal of the deductible temporary differences;

¢ the estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the recovery of some
of an entity's assets for more than their carrying amount if there is sufficient
evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this; and

e an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference related to unrealized
losses in combination with all of its other deductible temporary differences,
unless a tax law restricts the utilization of losses to deduction against income
of a specific type.

e Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle. This cycle of improvements
contains amendments to three standards. The following are the improvements or
amendments to PFRSs effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017:

o Clarification of the scope of the standard (Amendments to PFRS 12 Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities). The amendments clarify that the disclosure
requirements for interests in other entities also apply to interests that are
classified as held for sale or distribution. The amendments are applied
retrospectively, with early application permitted.
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Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017. However, the Group has not applied the
following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2018

e PFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the previously
published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities measured
at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting requirements
published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting requirements that
represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant
improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with risk management.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

e PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces PAS 11 Construction
Contracts, PAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18
Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue — Barter Transactions
Involving Advertising Services. The new standard introduces a new revenue
recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue should
be recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a
customer at the amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending
on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner
that best reflects the company’s performance, or at a point in time, when control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer. The standard does not apply
to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the
scope of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of
business exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties.
Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another PFRS,
then the guidance on separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS
takes precedence.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

= Applying PFRS 9 Financial Instruments with PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(Amendments to PFRS 4). The amendments provide a temporary exemption from
PFRS 9, where an entity is permitted to defer application of PFRS 9 in 2018 and
continue to apply PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement if
it has not applied PFRS 9 before and its activities are predominantly connected
with insurance. A qualified entity is permitted to apply the temporary exemption for
annual reporting periods beginning before January 1, 2021. The amendments also
provide an overlay approach to presentation when applying PFRS 9 where an
entity is permitted to reclassify between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income the difference between the amounts recognized in profit or loss under
PFRS 9 and those that would have been reported under PAS 39, for designated
financial assets. A financial asset is eligible for designation if it is not held for an
activity that is unconnected with contracts in the scope of PFRS 4, and if it is
measured at fair value through profit or loss under PFRS 9, but would not have
been under PAS 39. An entity is generally permitted to start applying the overlay
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approach only when it first applies PFRS 9, including after previously applying the
temporary exemption.

The amendments permitting the temporary exemption is for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and the amendments allowing the overlay
approach are applicable when an entity first applies PFRS 9.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration. The interpretation clarifies that the transaction date to be used for
translation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance payment or
receipt is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the prepayment or
deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactions involving
multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to a separate
transaction date. The interpretation applies when an entity pays or receives
consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a non-monetary asset or liability
before recognizing the related item.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,
with early adoption permitted.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle. This cycle of improvements
contains amendments to three standards. The following are the said improvements
or amendments to PFRSs effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018:

o Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters (Amendments to
PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards). The
amendments remove the outdated exemptions for first-time adopters of PFRS,
the relief of which had been available to entities only for reporting periods that
had passed.

e Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value (Amendments to PAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures). The amendments provide that
a venture capital organization, or other qualifying entity, may elect to measure
its investments in an associate or joint venture at fair value through profit or
loss. This election can be made on an investment-by-investment basis. The
amendments also provide that a non-investment entity investor may elect to
retain the fair value accounting applied by an investment entity associate or
investment entity joint venture to its subsidiaries. This election can be made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The
amendments are applied retrospectively, with early application permitted.

Effective January 1, 2019

PFRS 16 Leases supersedes PAS 17 Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new lease
definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and new
disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were introduced
including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases with a term of
12 months or less) and low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-level
accounting instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New
estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification and
measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to reassess certain
key estimates and judgments at each reporting date were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
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Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of PFRS 16.

. Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in PAS 12
Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. Under the
interpretation, whether the amounts recorded in the financial statements will differ
to that in the tax return, and whether the uncertainty is disclosed or reflected in
the measurement, depends on whether it is probable that the tax authority will
accept the Company’s chosen tax treatment. If it is not probable that the tax
authority will accept the Company’s chosen tax treatment, the uncertainty is
reflected using the measure that provides the better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty — either the most likely amount or the expected value. The
interpretation also requires the reassessment of judgements and estimates
applied if facts and circumstances change — e.g. as a result of examination or
action by tax authorities, following changes in tax rules or when a tax authority’s
right to challenge a treatment expires.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted.

Deferral of the local implementation of Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

= Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28). The amendments address
an inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture.

The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A
partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 with early adoption permitted. However, on January
13, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the effective date of these
amendments until the IASB has completed its broader review of the research
project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting
for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and
joint ventures.

Other information:

e The Company’s businesses are affected by the local and global trade environment. Factors
that could cause actual results of the Company to differ materially include, but are not
limited to:

= material adverse change in the Philippine and global economic and industry
conditions;

= natural events (earthquake, typhoons and other major calamities); and
* material changes in exchange rates.

e There was no known trend, event or uncertainty that had or may have a material impact on
liquidity and on revenues or income from continuing operations. There was no known event
that may cause a material change in the relationships between costs and revenues.

e There was no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition and
results of operations.
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e There was no event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material
to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

e Except for the commitments and contingencies mentioned in Note 23 of the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has no knowledge of any material off-balance sheet
(statement of financial position) transactions, arrangements, obligations and other
relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during
the reporting period that would address the past and would have material impact on future
operations.

e Projected capital expenditures for 2018 is P8.8 bhillion, which includes yard and berth
development as well as construction of new facilities and equipment acquisition. The
capital expenditure will strengthen the Company's operations and capability to handle
growth.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the
Company’s subsidiary, ATl Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2017:

e ATIB’s total assets were only 10.0% of the consolidated total assets

e Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 10.9% of consolidated

income before other income and expense.®

Consolidated Manner of
KPI Calculation 2017 2016 Discussion
Percentage of Ir)creage resulted from
. . higher income before
Return on Capital | income before .
. 19.2% 16.2% other income
Employed interest and tax over :
. (expense) during the
capital employed )
period.
Ret_urn on Equity _Percentage of net Improved due to
attributable to income over equity 19.6% 16.9% higher increase in net
equity holders of | attributable to equity 070 7 n'g
income.
the parent holders of the parent
Ratio of current Decrease due to
Current ratio assets over current 2.44:1.00 2.85:1.00 higher current
liabilities liabilities.
Ratio of total assets
Asset to equity over equity ) ) Decrease due to
ratio attributable to equity 1.89:1.00 1.97:1.00 higher equity.
holders of the parent
Ratio of total
Debt to equity liabilities over equity i ) Decrease due to
ratio attributable to equity 0.89:1.00 0.97:1.00 higher equity.
holders of the parent
. Gross trade
Days Sales in . .
. receivables over Due to improved
Receivables . 11 days 12 days ;
revenues multiplied collection efforts.
(DSR)
by number of days
Net income over
Net Income revenues less _ 28.7% 25 3% Increase due to higher
Margin government share in revenues.
revenues

3 Income before other income and expense is defined as income before net financing costs, net gains on derivative

instruments and others.
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Number of
reportable injuries
within a given
accounting period

Improved as a result

Reportable Injury of extensive safety

Freque4ncy Rate relative to the total 0.53 1.05 campaign aljd strict
(RIFR) implementation of
number of hours S
HSES policies.

worked in the same
accounting period.

Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)

Description Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Revenues P10,603.2 P 9,249.2
Net income 2,489.7 1,905.0
Total assets 25,765.2 23,139.0
Total liabilities 12,129.7 11,378.9

Years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 grew by 13.5% to P9, 249.2 million from
P8,146.5 million in 2015. Revenues from South Harbor international containerized cargo
increased from last year by 18.2% on account of higher container volume, which grew by
19.4%. Notably, in 2016, South Harbor international containerized cargo set a new record as it
broke through the one-million teu (twenty-foot equivalent unit) mark for the first time. Likewise,
revenues in Port of Batangas was higher by 16.1% compared to last year following a 42.2%
growth in volume of international Completely Built Units (CBUs). On the other hand, revenues
from South Harbor international non-containerized cargo and Batangas Container Terminal
were down from last year by 11.8%, and 4.2%, respectively.

Port authorities’ share in revenues in 2016 totaled P1,711.6 million, 21.4% higher than last year
resulting from higher revenues subject to port authorities’ share.

Cost and expenses in 2016 of P4,301.0 million went up by P564.8 million 15.1% from P3,736,1
million in 2015. Labor costs in 2016 of P1,192.5 million were higher by 9.3% compared to
P1,091.4 million in 2015 due to higher headcount and salary rate increases. Depreciation and
amortization in 2016 of P1,136.5 million increased by 20.3% from P944.9 million in 2015 on
account of additions to intangible assets and property and equipment. Equipment running in
2016 slightly went up by 0.5% to P485.3 million from P482.8 million in 2015. Facilities-related
expenses in 2016 went up by 13.6% to P183.6 million from P161.6 million in 2015 due to higher
repair and maintenance costs for wharves and IT costs. Professional fees in 2016 amounted
to P174.3 million vs. P47.7 million in 2015, which mainly pertain to legal and consultancy fees.
Marketing, commercial, and promotion in 2016 increased to P136.2 million from P36.7 million
in 2015 due to increased marketing and communications efforts. Management fees in 2016
rose by 7.4% to P113.0 million from P105.2 million in 2015 following higher net income. Other

4 RIFR is the new KPI for injuries introduced in 2014 to replace LTIFR. RIFR is a more stringent KPI as it covers not

only Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) but also Medically Treated Injuries (MTIs) and Fatality incidents.
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expenses in 2016 totaled P223.2 million, up by 20.5% from P185.2 million in 2015 due to higher
general operations and CSR expenses.

On the other hand, Taxes and licenses in 2016 decreased by 8.7% to P254.9 million from
P279.3 million due to lower real property taxes. General transport costs in 2016 of P14.9 million
were lower by 30.8% compared to P21.5 million in 2015 on account of lower trucking costs in
South Harbor and Laguna.

Finance income amounted to P62.0 million in 2016, 20.4% up from P51.5 million in 2015 due
to higher interest rates for money market placements. Finance costs in 2016 of P581.2 million
were higher by 5.9% compared to P548.8 million in 2015 due to increases in interest expense
on port concession rights payable and defined benefit pension plans. Others-net in 2016 was
negative P113.0 million, 57.0% higher than P71.9 million in 2015. This account included
unrealized forex losses of P60.3 million and P35.4 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively,
resulting from revaluation of dollar-denominated concession rights payable and fair value
losses on a cash flow hedge of P211.9 million and P99.5 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively,
following the depreciation of the Philippine Peso against the US Dollar.

Income before income tax in 2016 of P2,604.5 million was higher by 7.1% compared to
P2,431.9 million in 2015. Provision for income tax in 2016 increased by 5.2% to P699.5 million
from P664.7 million in 2015.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2016 improved by 7.8% to P1,905.0 million from
P1.767.2 million last year. Earnings per share was up to P0.95 in 2016 from P0.88 in 2015.
Without the foreign exchange impact — as per accounting rules brought in since 2013 — net
income would have been P2,095.5 million, 12.6% higher than P1,861.6 million in 2015, on a
like-for-like basis.

Consolidated Financial Condition

Total assets as of December 31, 2016 grew by 8.4% to P23,139.0 million from P21,341.8 million
as of December 31, 2015. Total current assets as of December 31, 2016 increased by 35.4%
to P7,090.2 million from P5,237.6 million as of December 31, 2015. Cash and cash equivalents
as of December 31, 2016 went up by 42.8% to P5,881.2 million from P4,118.8 million as of
December 31, 2015. Trade and other receivables-net as of December 31, 2016 rose by 21.0%
to P426.5 million from P352.4 million as of December 31, 2015. Spare parts and supplies-net
as of December 31, 2016 of P314.6 million were higher by 19.7% compared to P262.8 million
as of December 31, 2015 in support of operational requirements and equipment maintenance
program. Prepaid expenses of P467.9 million as of December 31, 2016 declined by 7.1% from
P503.7 million as of December 31, 2015.

Total non-current assets of P16,048.8 million as of December 31, 2016 were slightly lower by
0.3% compared to P16,104.2 million as of December 31, 2015. Property and equipment-net
decreased by 1.6% to P483.2 million as of December 31, 2016 from P491.0 million as of
December 31, 2015. Additions to property and equipment which were not subject of the service
concession arrangement totaled P81.7 million in 2016. Intangible assets-net as of December
31, 2016 of P14,716.5 million were lower by 1.5% compared to P14,934.3 million as of
December 31, 2015. Acquisitions of intangible assets which consisted of civil works and cargo
handling equipment that were subject of the service concession arrangement amounted to
P832.9 million in 2016. Deferred tax assets-net as of December 31, 2016 of P733.4 million
was up by 29.5% to P566.3 million as of December 31, 2015, pertaining to additional deferred
tax on concession rights payable, cash flow hedge, and unrealized foreign exchange losses.
Other noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2016 increased by 3.1% to P61.0 million from
P59.1 million as of December 31, 2015.

Total liabilities rose by 7.4% to P11,378.9 million as of December 31, 2016 from P10,594.1

million as of December 31, 2015. Trade and other payables as of December 31, 2016 of
P2,000.4 million were higher by 41.4% than P1,414.3 million as of December 31, 2015. Trade
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and other payables are covered by agreed payment schedules. Provision for claims dropped
by 4.8% to P50.9 million as of December 31, 2016 from P53.5 million as of December 31, 2015.
Income and other taxes increased by 1.5% to P197.9 million as of December 31, 2016 from
P195.0 million as of December 31, 2015. Port concession rights payable (current and
noncurrent) as of December 31, 2016 totaled P8,985.9 million, 2.8% above the P8,740.7 million
as of December 31, 2015 due to full-year impact of the contract for Port of Batangas renewed
in October 2015 resulting to adoption of IFRIC 12. Pension liability as of December 31, 2016
of P143.9 million were lower by 24.5% compared to P190.6 million as of December 31, 2015.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities increased by 48.8% to P4,158.4 million in 2016 from
P2,794.1 million in 2015 due to higher operating income.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2016 of P862.7 million were 15.6% higher than P746.4
million in 2015 due to higher acquisitions of property and equipment and intangible assets.

Cash used in financing activities in 2016 of P1,534.8 million were slightly lower by 0.1% than
the P1,536.6 million in 2015. Cash dividends paid amounted to P820.0 million in 2016 and
2015.

Adoption of New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretation

The following are the new standards, amendment to standards, and interpretations, which are
effective January 1, 2015 and are applicable to the Company and none of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements:

= Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments to
PAS 16 and PAS 38). The amendments to PAS 38, Intangible Assets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for
intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
‘highly correlated,” or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue.

The amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment explicitly state that
revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and
equipment. This is because such methods reflect factors other than the consumption
of economic benefits embodied in the asset - e.g. changes in sales volumes and prices.

= Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to PAS 27). The
amendments allow the use of the equity method in separate financial statements, and
apply to the accounting not only for associates and joint ventures, but also for
subsidiaries.

= Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle. This cycle of improvements
contains amendments to four standards, none of which are expected to have significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

o Disclosure of information “elsewhere in the interim financial report” (Amendment to
PAS 34). PAS 34 is amended to clarify that certain disclosures, if they are not
included in the notes to interim financial statements, may be disclosed “elsewhere
in the interim financial report” - i.e. incorporated by cross-reference from the interim
financial statements to another part of the interim financial report (e.g. management
commentary or risk report). The interim financial report is incomplete if the interim
financial statements and any disclosure incorporated by cross- reference are not
made available to users of the interim financial statements on the same terms and
at the same time.
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The amendment to PAS 34 is applied retrospectively, in accordance with
PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PAS 1) addresses some concerns expressed
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure that entities
are able to use judgment when applying PAS 1. The amendments clarify that:

- Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial
information.

- Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.

- The list of line items to be presented in the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be
disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on
subtotals in these statements.

- An entity’s share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures
should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not
it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2016. However, the Group has not applied the
following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2017

Disclosure initiative (Amendments to PAS 7). The amendments address financial
statements users’ requests for improved disclosures about an entity’s net debt
relevant to understanding an entity’s cash flows. The amendments require entities
to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes — e.g. by providing a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial position for liabilities
arising from financing activities.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2017. Early adoption is permitted. When an entity first applies the amendments, it
is not required to provide comparative information for preceding periods.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to PAS
12). The amendments clarify that:

e the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset;

e the calculation of future taxable profit in evaluating whether sufficient taxable

profit will be available in future periods excludes tax deductions resulting from
the reversal of the deductible temporary differences;
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e the estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the recovery of
some of an entity's assets for more than their carrying amount if there is
sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this; and

e an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference related to unrealized
losses in combination with all of its other deductible temporary differences,
unless a tax law restricts the utilization of losses to deduction against income
of a specific type.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. On initial application, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognized
in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other
components of equity. If an entity applies the relief, it shall disclose that fact.

Effective January 1, 2018

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the previously
published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities measured
at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting requirements
published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting requirements that
represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant
improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with risk management.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial
statements resulting from the application of PFRS 9.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces PAS 11, Construction
Contracts, PAS 18 Revenue and related Philippine Interpretations. The new
standard introduces a new revenue recognition model for contracts with customers
which specifies that revenue should be recognized when (or as) a company
transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the
company expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met,
revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that best reflects the company’s
performance, or at a point in time, when control of the goods or services is
transferred to the customer. The standard does not apply to insurance contracts,
financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRSs. It
also does not apply if two companies in the same line of business exchange non-
monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a contract with
a customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS, then the guidance on separation
and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

However, the FRSC has yet to issue/approve this new revenue standard for local
adoption pending completion of a study by the Philippine Interpretations Committee
on its impact on the real estate industry. If approved, the standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption
permitted.
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Effective January 1, 2019

* PFRS 16 Leases supersedes PAS 17 Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new lease
definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and new
disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were introduced
including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases with a term of
12 months or less) and low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-level
accounting instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New
estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification and
measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to reassess certain
key estimates and judgments at each reporting date were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of PFRS 16.

The Group is currently assessing the potential impact of PFRS 16 and plans to
adopt this new standard on leases on the required effective date.

= Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28). The amendments address an inconsistency
between the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016 with early adoption permitted. However, on January 13, 2016,
the FRSC decided to postpone the effective date of these amendments until the
IASB has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting
that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other
aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Other information:

o The Company’s businesses are affected by the local and global trade environment. Factors
that could cause actual results of the Company to differ materially include, but are not

limited to:
= material adverse change in the Philippine and global economic and industry
conditions;

» natural events (earthquake, typhoons and other major calamities); and
= material changes in exchange rates.

e There was no known trend, event or uncertainty that had or may have a material impact on
liquidity and on revenues or income from continuing operations. There was no known event
that may cause a material change in the relationships between costs and revenues.

e There was no seasonal factor that had a material effect on the financial condition and
results of operations.

e There was no event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material
to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

o Except for the commitments and contingencies mentioned in Note 23 of the consolidated
financial statements, the Company has no knowledge of any material off-balance sheet
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(statement of financial position) transactions, arrangements, obligations and other
relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during
the reporting period that would address the past and would have material impact on future

operations.

e Projected capital expenditures for 2017 is P4.6 billion, which includes yard and berth
development as well as equipment acquisition. The capital expenditure will strengthen the
Company's operations and capability to handle growth and will be sourced from internal

funds.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

KPIs discussed below were based on consolidated amounts as portions pertaining to the

Company’s subsidiary, ATl Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) were not material. As of end 2016:

o ATIB’s total assets were only 9.6% of the consolidated total assets

¢ Income before other income and expense from ATIB was only 14.1% of consolidated
income before other income and expense.®

(RIFR)®

number of hours
worked in the same
accounting period.

Consolidated Manner of
KPI Calculation 2016 2015 Discussion
Percentage of income Increase resulted from
Return on Capital | before interest and 16.2% 15.5% hlghe( income before
Employed tax over capital other income (expense)
employed during the period.
Return on Equity Percentage of net
attrl_butable to income over equity 16.9% 17.0% Decrease due to higher
equity holders of attributable to equity equity.
the parent holders of the parent
Ratio of current Increase due to higher
Current ratio assets over current 2.85:1.00 2.82:1.00 9
oo current asset.
liabilities
Ratio of total assets
As_set to equity over equity _ 197 1.00 199 1.00 Dec_rease due to higher
ratio attributable to equity equity.
holders of the parent
Ratio of total liabilities
Debt to equity over equity . . Decrease due to higher
ratio attributable to equity 0.97:1.00 0.99:1.00 equity.
holders of the parent
Davs Sales in Gross trade
ys receivables over Due to higher trade
Receivables e 12 days 8 days .
revenues multiplied receivables.
(DSR)
by number of days
Net income over
Net Income revenues less _ 25 304 26.2% Decrease due to higher
Margin government share in expenses.
revenues
Number of reportable
injuries within a given Improved as a result of
Reportable Injury | accounting period extensive safety
Frequency Rate relative to the total 1.05 1.63 campaign and strict

implementation of
HSES policies.

5 Income before other income and expense is defined as income before net financing costs, net gains on derivative

instruments and others.

RIFR is the new KPI for injuries introduced in 2014 to replace LTIFR. RIFR is a more stringent KPI as it covers not
only Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) but also Medically Treated Injuries (MTIs) and Fatality incidents.

6
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Summary of Selected Financial Data (in millions)

Description Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Revenues P 9,249.2 P 8,146.5
Net income 1,905.0 1,767.2
Total assets 23,139.0 21,341.8
Total liabilities 11,378.9 10,594.1

Information on Independent Accountant and External Audit Fees

The appointment of R.G. Manabat & Co. as the external auditors of Asian Terminals, Inc. for
2018 was approved by the shareholders during the annual meeting held on April 26, 2018. The
same external auditors are being recommended for re-election at the scheduled annual meeting
of the Stockholders.

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, Ms. Emerald Anne Bagnes was
appointed as the Partner-in-Charge beginning 2018 replacing Mr. Enrico Baluyut who served
as ATIl's Partner-in-Charge since 2013. However, last November 2018, Ms. Bagnes was
replaced by Ms. Alicia S. Columbres when the former assumed the position of Head of Audit at
R.G. Manabat & Co.

The aggregate fees for audit services rendered were as follows:

[2018 (P’'000)| 2017 (P'000) |
Audit Fees 3,038.0 2,950.0

Audit Fees are for professional services rendered in connection with the audit of our
annual financial statements and services provided by the external auditors in connection with
statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

There was no engagement for tax or other services with R.G. Manabat & Co. in 2018 and
2017.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy

The Audit Committee pre-approves and recommends to the Board of Directors all audit and
non-audit services to be rendered by the external auditors as well as the engagement fees and
other compensation to be paid. When deciding whether to approve these items, the Audit
Committee takes into account whether the provision of any non-audit service is compatible with
the independence standards under the guidelines of the SEC. To assist in this undertaking, the
Audit Committee actively engages in a dialogue with the external auditors with respect to any
disclosed relationships or services that may impact their objectivity and independence and, if
appropriate, recommends that the Board take appropriate action to ensure their independence.

Financial Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements are herein attached as Exhibit 1.
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Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosures

There was no change in or disagreement with external auditors on accounting and financial

disclosures.

PART III-CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

As of December 31, 2018, the following were the directors and executive officers of Asian

Terminals Inc.

Name Age Position
Andrew R. Hoad 52 Chairman
Eusebio H. Tanco 70 Director/President
Matthew Wells Leech 54 Director
Ahmad Yousef Ahmad 39 Director
Alhassan Al Simreen
Roberto C. O. Lim 61 Director
Monico V. Jacob 73 Director
Felino A. Palafox, Jr. 69 Director
Artemio V. Panganiban 82 Director
William Wassaf Khoury Abreu 40 Executive Vice President
Sean James L. Perez 53 Senior Vice President for Commercial
and Outports
Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr. 59 Corporate Secretary and Vice President
for Business Support Services
Jose Tristan P. Carpio 50 Treasurer/ Vice President for
Finance/CFO
Christopher Joe Styles 49 Vice President for Engineering
Chi Wai Chan 44 Vice President for Group Operations

A brief background of the current Company’s Board of Directors and Executive Officers is as
follows (brief description of their respective business experience for the past five (5) years

included):

Andrew R. Hoad, 52, British, joined the Board last February 22, 2018 and became the
Chairman in April 1, 2018. He was the former Executive Vice President of ATI from
February 1, 2012 until March 17, 2018. Mr. Hoad is the current CEO and Managing
Director of DPWorld Asia Pacific Region. Prior to ATI, Mr. Hoad has been based
elsewhere in the Asia Pacific region, the Middle East, Europe and the Americas, as
chief executive of DP World terminals in Peru and the Dominican Republic; and prior
to this as Commercial Director Asia Pacific, based in Hong Kong and Dubai. Before DP
World he was General Manager of CSX World Terminals Europe, and he began his
maritime career with the P&O Group, where he undertook a variety of management
roles including General Manager for Saudi Arabia and the Red Sea region for P&O
Containers, and Commercial Manager for Southampton Container Terminal with P&O
Ports. Mr. Hoad holds both Bachelor and Masters degrees in History and Economic
History from Pembroke College Cambridge University, qualifications from the Institute
of Chartered Shipbrokers, and has undertaken executive management programs at
IMD Business School, the National University of Singapore and Case Western Reserve
University.
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Eusebio H. Tanco, 70, Filipino, is the President of the Company from 1995 to 2001
and 2007 to present. He is the Chairman of STI Education Systems Holdings, Inc.
(formerly JTH Davies Holdings, Inc., since 2010), STI West Negros University (since
2013) , Mactan Electric Company (since 1988), DLS-STI College (since 2003),
Eximious Holdings, Inc. (formerly Capital Managers and Advisors, Inc.,since 1995),
GROW Vite (since 2014), Venture Securities, Inc.(since 1980), iIACADEMY (since
2002), and the executive committee chairman of STI Education Services Group, Inc.
(since 2003). He is Chairman and President of Prime Power Holdings (since 1999),
Prudent Resources, Inc. (since 1999), and CEO of Classic Finance, Inc. (since 2004).
He is also the president of Philippines First Insurance Co. (since 1973), Global
Resource for Outsourced Workers, Inc. (GROW, Inc.) (since 2002), Bloom with Looms
Logistics, Inc. (formerly STMI Logistics, Inc., since 1980), First Optima Realty
Corporation (since 1980), Total Consolidated Asset Management Inc. (TCAMI) (since
2006), Eujo Philippines, Inc. (since 1986), Tantivy Holdings, Inc (formerly Insurance
Builders Inc.,since 1979) Mar-Bay Homes Inc. (since 1980) , Cement Center, Inc.
(since 1983), Biolim Holdings and Management Corp. (formerly Rescom Developers,
Inc ,since 1983). In addition, he is a Director of Philhealthcare Inc. (since 2009),
Philplans First, Inc. (since 2017), Philippine Life Financial Assurance (formerly Asian
Life Financial Assurance, since 2012), United Coconut Chemicals, Inc. (since 1995),
M.B. Paseo (since 1980), Philippine Health Educators, Inc. (since 2004), Maestro
Holdings, Inc. (formerly STI Investments, since 2007), Philippine Racing Club (since
2011), Leisure & Resorts World Corporation (since 2011) and Philippine Stock
Exchange (since 2007). His professional associations include the Philippines-Thailand
Business Council, Philippines-UAE Business Council, and the Philippine Chamber of
Commerce and Industry. He obtained his Master of Science in Economics from the
London School of Economics and Political Science. He has been a member of the ATI
Board since 1993.

Monico Jacob, 73, Filipino, is currently the President of STI Education Systems
Holdings, Inc. (2011), STI West Negros University (since 2014) and the CEO and Vice-
Chairman of the STI Education Services Group (since 2016). He is the Chairman of
Rosehills Memorial Management, Inc. (since 2014), Philippine Life Financial
Assurance, Inc. (PhilLife, since 2016), Global Resource for Outsourced Workers, Inc.
(GROW, Inc., since 2000), Total Consolidated Asset Management Inc. (since 2006),
and GROW-Vite (since 2014). He is currently a director of IACADEMY, (since 2010)
and PhilCare, (since 2012). He is also an independent director of Jollibee Foods, Inc.
(since 2001), 2Go Group (since 2011), Phoenix Petroleum Philippines (since 2008)
Rockwell Land Inc. (since 2015), and Lopez Holdings, Inc. (since 2014). Prior to his
current engagements, he was the General Manager of the National Housing Authority
(NHA) (from 1989 to 1991); Chairman and CEO of Petron Corporation from 1991 to
1998 and Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC) and all of its subsidiaries from 1991
to 1994; and CEO of the Home Development Mutual Fund (PAG-IBIG Fund) from 1988
to 1989. Mr. Jacob also served as an Associate Commissioner for the Securities and
Exchange Commission in 1986. He is a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines
and the Management Association of the Philippines (MAP) and served as its President
in 1998. Mr. Jacob finished his Bachelor of Arts degree with a Major in Liberal Arts from
the Ateneo de Naga University in 1966 and his Bachelor of Laws degree from the
Ateneo de Manila University in 1971. He joined the Board in 2009.

Felino A. Palafox, Jr., 69, Filipino, has more than 45 years of experience in the field
of architecture and planning. He is the Principal Architect-Urban Planner and Founder
of Palafox Associates which was founded in 1989. For more than 25 years, he led and
managed his firm in carrying out the planning of more than 28 billion square meters of
land area and the architecture of more than 15 million square meters of building floor
area in 40 countries. He is the President of FIABCI (International Real Estate
Federation) Philippines for 2015. He is also an international associate of the American
Institute of Architects, country leader of the Council on Tall Buildings and Urban
Habitat, member of the U.S. Green Building, Urban Land Institute, Congress for the
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New Urbanism, American Planning Association, and the International Council of
Shopping Centers, all U.S.-based. He was formerly the Chairman of National Real
Estate Association (NREA). He was the past President of the Philippine Institute of
Environmental Planners and the Management Association of the Philippines. He is a
Fellow of the United Architects of the Philippines (UAP). He finished his Bachelor of
Science in Architecture in 1972 from the University of Santo Tomas, Manila, and his
Master in Environmental Planning from the University of the Philippines as a scholar of
the United Nations Development Program (UNDP), in 1974. He took up Advanced
Management Development Program for Real Estate in 2003, and 7 other continuing
education courses, from the Harvard University. Architect Palafox is a registered APEC
Architect and a recipient of several local and international awards. He joined the Board
in 2009.

Artemio V. Panganiban, 82, Filipino. He served as Chief Justice of the Supreme Court
from 2005 to 2006 and as Associate Justice from 1995 to 2005. Prior to his appointment
to the Supreme Court, he was a senior partner at Panganiban Benitez Parlade Africa
and Barinaga Law Offices from 1963 to 1995. He is a recipient of over 250 prestigious
awards and recognitions from various associations and groups for his role as a jurist,
lawyer, civic leader, Catholic lay worker, entrepreneur and youth leader. Among such
awards is the “Renaissance Jurist of the 215t Century” given by the Supreme Court of
the Philippines upon his retirement in 2006. Chief Justice Panganiban holds a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Law from the Far Eastern University where he graduated cum
laude. He was a 6! placer in the 1960 Bar Examinations. He was also conferred Doctor
of Laws (Honoris Causa) by several universities. At present, he writes a column for the
Philippine Daily Inquirer. He sits as an independent director in the following publicly-
listed companies aside from Asian Terminals, Inc.; GMA Network, Inc. (2007-present),
First Philippine Holdings Corp. (2007-present), Metro Pacific Investments Corp. (2007-
present), Manila Electric Company (2008-present), Robinsons Land Corp. (2008-
present), GMA Holdings, Inc. (2009-present), Petron Corporation (2010-present),
Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company (2013-present). He is also a non-
executive Director at Jollibee Foods Corporation (2012-present), Senior Adviser,
Metrobank (2007 to present), Member of the Advisory Council, Bank of the Philippine
Islands (2016-present) and Adviser, DoubleDragon Properties Corp. (2014-
present). He is the Chairman of Corporate Governance Committee and a member of
the Company’s Compensation Committee and Nomination Committee. He has been an
independent director of Asian Terminals, Inc. since April 22, 2010.

Matthew Leech, 54, American, is Chief Operating Officer (COQ) for DP World’s Ports
& Terminals Division. Prior to his current role, Matt was Senior Vice President (SVP)
and Managing Director, DP World Americas Region and SVP Global Business
Development. Matt has over 25 years’ experience in the finance and container
transportation industries. Earlier in his career, he served as Vice President, Operations
and Development at CSX World Terminals (CSX WT), where he led key expansion
initiatives including a key role in the acquisition of the company by DP World in 2005.
At CSX WT he also held the positions of Director, Strategic Planning and Infrastructure
Development, where he was responsible for leading the global strategic planning and
infrastructure development activities and Director, Project Analysis for CSX WT. He
joined Sea-Land Service in 1995 and held various international positions in the
Strategic Planning Group focusing on network planning, alliance management and
business analysis. Mr. Leech is an MBA graduate from The University of Maryland's
Robert H. Smith School of Business and holds a B.A. from Georgetown University.
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Roberto C.O. Lim, 61, Filipino and is a lawyer. He was elected as independent director
in a special board meeting last December 20, 2018, replacing Atty. Teodoro L.
Locsin,Jr.” He was the former Undersecretary for Aviation and Airports at the
Department of Transportation up to 2017. Prior to this, he was the Chairman of Global
Legal Advisory Council of International Air Transport Association (IATA), the Vice
President for Legal Affairs and Corporate Compliance Officer of Philippine Airlines, Inc.,
Director of Abacus Holdings and Abacus International Pte, Ltd, a global distribution
company based in Singapore. Atty. Lim was a member of the Philippine Negotiating
Panel on Air Treaties, Chairman of the IATA Legal Advisory Council and member of
the Aero Political Committee of the Association of Asia Pacific Airlines. He also teaches
Transportation Law and Administrative Law at De La Salle University and Far Eastern
University. Atty. Lim’s degrees include: a BA in History and Political Science and a BSc
in Commerce from De La Salle University; a law degree (LL.B) from the University of
the Philippines; and, a Master of Laws (LLM) from Kings’ College, University of London.
Atty. Lim is the Chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Committee.

Ahmad Yousef Ahmad Alhassan Al Simreen, 39, UAE national, joined the Board
last April 2018 and is the current Head of Finance at DPWorld Asia Pacific, Hong Kong.
He has extensive experience in financial planning, treasury, project finance, corporate
transformation and strategy covering various sectors such as real estate, banking,
logistics and healthcare. Mr. Alhassan was the former Chief Financial Officer of Dubai
Healthcare City from 2016 to 2017, Deputy Finance Director of DPWorld London
Gateway from 2013 to 2016 and Assistant Group Treasurer of DPWorld Dubai from
2010 to 2013. He obtained his degree in Business Administration from American
University, Kogod School of Business in Washington, USA in 2001, MBA from
Marymount University in Virginia, USA in 2003 and a graduate of the Dubai World
Leaders' Programme from Wharton held in Singapore, Hong Kong and USA.

William Wassaf Khoury Abreu, 40, a national of Dominican Republic. He is the
Executive Vice President of ATl since March 2018. He was formerly the Vice-President
and Director at PT Terminal Petikemas Surabaya (TPS) Indonesia (from 2014 to 2018),
the CEO of DP World-Saigon Premier Container Terminal from 2010 to 2014, the
Operations Director of DP World Korea from 2009 to 2010 and held various
management positions at DP World Caucedo, Dominican Republic from 2003 to 2009
and CSX World Terminals (Caucedo) from 2001 to 2003. He obtained a degree in
Industrial Engineering from Universidad Nacional Pedro Henriquez Urefia in 2000 and
Post Graduate Diploma in Port Mangement from IMTA-STC in Rotterdam in 2001.

Sean James L. Perez, 53, Filipino, is the Senior Vice-President for Commercial and
Outports since November 2017. He was the Vice-President for Marketing and
Commercial from October 2008 to October 2017, Vice President for Domestic and
Outports from January 2007 to September 2008, Vice-President for
Domestic/Marketing and Commercial Services (2004-2006). He has held various
positions in the Company from the position of being the Terminal Manager of Batangas,
Container Division and General Stevedoring Division for South Harbor to Vice-
President for Operations, Marketing and Outports. He obtained his degree in Bachelor
of Arts, Major in Economics from the University of Santo Tomas. He has been with the
Company since 1996.

“Atty. Teodoro L. Locsin Jr. ceased to be an independent director of ATl last November 29, 2018, when he was
appointed as Secretary of Foreign Affairs.
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Jose Tristan P. Carpio, 50, Filipino, is the Vice-President for Finance and Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company since July 2012. He joined ATI in 2000 as
Assistant Vice President for Treasury and Special Projects. Prior to joining ATI, he was
the Assistant Vice President for Capital Markets of All Asia Capital & Trust Corporation
from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Carpio obtained his degree in B.S. Management Engineering
from Ateneo de Manila University.

Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr., 59, Filipino, is the Corporate Secretary and Compliance
Officer since 1997, the Vice President for Business Support Services and Data
Protection Officer (since 2017). He has held various positions in the Company handling
Administration, Legal, Human Resources, Procurement, Industrial Relations, HSES,
Insurance and Claims, Risk Management and Corporate Communications. He was a
Law Partner of Diaz, Corvite and Associates. He is a member of the Integrated Bar of
the Philippines. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws from the Ateneo de Manila
University. He has been with the Company since 1989.

Chi Wai Chan, 44, Chinese, joined ATI last November 2017 as the Vice President for
Group Operations. Prior to this, he was the former Operations Director (from 2012 to
2017) and Senior Manager for Business Process and Design (from 2008 to 2012) of
DPWorld Asia Pacific. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration and
Management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Christopher Joe Styles, 49, British, joined ATI in December 2013 as Vice President
for Engineering. Prior to joining ATI, he worked at APM Terminals from September
2008 to November 2013 holding various positions in its terminals in Bahrain and
Jordan. His last position was General Manager for Technical Services in Bahrain. Mr.
Styles graduated in 2009 from University of Leicester with a Masters degree in
Business Administration and in 1990 at the Lackham College with a Bachelor's Degree
in Mechanical Engineering. He also holds a green belt in Lean Six Sigma.

All the directors serve for a term equivalent to one (1) year from election or for the unexpired
portion of the term of his predecessor.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships among the directors and officers listed up to the fourth civil
degree of consanguinity or affinity.

All employees are expected to make reasonable contribution to the success of the business of
the Company.

The Company has no knowledge of events occurring during the past five years that are material
to an evaluation of the ability and integrity of the above-named directors and officers.

Pending Legal Proceedings

The Company has no knowledge that the current members of its Board of Directors, or its
executive officers have been involved during the last five years up to the present in any legal
case affecting/involving themselves and/or their properties before any court of law or
administrative body in the Philippines or elsewhere, which are material to an evaluation of the
ability or integrity of any of the said directors or executive officers. Also, during the last five
years, the said persons have not been: a) involved in any bankruptcy petition, b) convicted by
final judgment of any offense punishable by the laws of the Philippines or of the laws of any
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other country, ¢) subjected to any order, judgment or decree, and d) violated any securities or
commodities law.

Iltem 10. Executive Compensation

1) The total annual compensation of the Company’s President and the most highly
compensated officers amounted to P66 million in 2018 and P76 million in 2017. The
projected annual compensation in 2019 is P76 million.

The total annual compensation of all other officers and directors in 2018 amounted to
P138 million and in 2017 amounted to P105 million. The projected annual
compensation in 2019 is P125 million.

(in millions of pesos)

Other Annual

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus |Compensation Total
Eusebio H. Tanco
President/CEO
William Wassaf Khoury Abreu
Executive Vice President
Sean James L. Perez
SVP for Commercial and Outports
Chi Wai Chan
Vice President for Group Operations
Christopher Joe Styles
Vice President for Engineering
CEO and 4 most highly compensated 2019
officers (Projected) 59 17 0 76
All other officers* and directors as a group 2019
unnamed (Projected) 100 25 0 125
*Managers and above
(in millions of pesos)
Other Annual
Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus [Compensation Total

Eusebio H. Tanco
President
Sean James L. Perez
SVP Commercial & Outports
Christopher Joe Styles
Vice President for Engineering
Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr.
Vice President for Business Support
Services
Chi Wai Chan
Vice President for Group Operations

2018
CEO and most highly compensated officers | (Actual) 55 11 0 66
All other officers* and directors as a group 2018
unnamed (Actual) 109 29 0 138

*Managers and above
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(in millions of pesos)

Name and Principal Position

Year Salary

Bonus

Other Annual
ICompensation

Total

Eusebio H. Tanco
President

Andrew R. Hoad
Executive Vice President

Sean James L. Perez
SVP for Commercial & Outports

Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr.
Vice President for Business Support Services

Christopher Joe Styles

Vice President for Engineering

CEO and most highly compensated officers

2017
(Actual) 59 17 0

76

All other officers* and directors as a group
unnamed

2017
(Actual) 80 25 0

105

*Managers and above

2)

3)

The Directors do not receive compensation for services provided as a director other than
reasonable per diems® for attendance at meetings of the Board and the Board Committees.
This is in accordance with Article 1V, Section 14 of the Company’s By-Laws which states
that “Except for reasonable per diems, directors, as such shall be entitled to receive only
such compensation as may be granted to them by the vote of the stockholders representing
at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or a special meeting of
the stockholders. In no case the total yearly compensation of the directors, as such, exceed
ten percent (10%) of the net income before income tax of the Corporation during the
preceding year.

The Board of Directors specified the duties and responsibilities of the elected Company
officers. Other officers, whose duties and responsibilities are set by the Management, are
considered regular employees of the Company.

There is no bonus, profit sharing, stock options, warrants, rights or other compensation
plans or arrangements with directors and officers that will result from their resignation,
retirement, termination of employment, or change in the control of the Company.

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

1. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of December 31, 2018, the Company knows of no one who owns in excess of 5% of its
common stock except as set forth in the following table:

Title of Name and Address of Name of Beneficial | Citizenship Amount of % of
Class Record Owner and Owner and Record Class
Relationship with Relationship with Ownership
Issuer Record Owner
Common DP World Australia DP World Australia Australian 346,466,600 | 17.32%

(POAL) Pty. Limited
Level 21 400 George St.,
Sydney NSW 2000, GPO
Box 4084, Sydney NSW
2001 Australia
(Stockholder)

(POAL) Pty. Limited

8 Directors’ per diem amounted to Php 3,035,000 (for 2018) and Php 2,400,000 (for 2017).The Chairman receives
Php60,000.00 per diem, for every board meeting attended, while members of the Board receive Php50,000.00.
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Title of Name and Address of Name of Beneficial | Citizenship Amount of % of
Class Record Owner and Owner and Record Class
Relationship with Relationship with Ownership
Issuer Record Owner
Common ATI Holdings, Inc. ATI Holdings, Inc. 291,371,231 | 14.57%
3" Floor SSHG Law Australian
Centre, 105 Paseo de
Roxas Makati City
(Stockholder)
Common PCD Nominee Corp. | (Beneficial Owners Filipino
(Filipino.) unknown to Issuer) 241,915,569 | 12.10%
G/F MKSE Bldg.
6767 Ayala Ave., Makati
City
(AsiaSec Equities, (116,991,033) | (5.85%)
Inc. 8/F Chatham
House 116 Valero
cor. V. A. Rufino Sts.
Salcedo Village,
Makati City)
Common Pecard Group Holdings, Pecard Group Filipino 198,203,968 9.91%
Inc. Holdings, Inc.
3" Floor SSHG Law
Centre, 105 Paseo de
Roxas Makati City
(Stockholder)
Common Philippine Seaport, Inc. Philippine Seaport, Filipino 196,911,524 9.85%
3" Floor SSHG Law Inc.
Centre, 105 Paseo de
Roxas Makati City
(Stockholder)
Common Daven Holdings Filipino 155,906,071 7.80%
7th Floor, Philfirst Daven Holdings
Building, 6764 Ayala
Avenue, Makati City
(Stockholder)
Common PCD Nominee Corp. (Beneficial Owners | Non-Filipino | 139,426,279 6.97%
(Non-Fil.) unknown to Issuer)
G/F MKSE Bldg.
6767 Ayala Ave., Makati
City (Standard (122,906,000) | (6.15%)
Chartered Bank)
6756 Ayala Avenue,
Makati City 1200
Common SG Holdings Inc. 130,000,000 6.50%
7th Floor, Philfirst SG Holdings, Inc Filipino
Building, 6764 Ayala
Avenue, Makati City
(Stockholder)
Common Morray Holdings, Inc. Morray Holdings, 100,000,000 5.00%
7th Floor, Philfirst | Inc. Filipino
Building, 6764 Ayala
Avenue, Makati City
(Stockholder)
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2. Security Ownership of Management

Owners of record of ATI shares among Management as of December 31, 2018, are as follows:

Title of Name of Beneficial/Record Amount and Nature of Beneficial Citizenship % of Class
Class Owner Ownership
Common | Felino A. Palafox, Jr. 15,300/direct Filipino .00%
-dO- Monico V. Jacob 1/direct Filipino .00%
-do- Ahmad Yousef Ahmad 1/direct UAE .00%
Alhassan Al Simreen
-do- Matthew W. Leech 1/direct American .00%
-do- Eusebio H. Tanco 15,257,663/ direct Filipino 2.64%
37,511,984/indirect
-do- Andrew R. Hoad 1/direct British .00%
-do- Artemio V. Panganiban 1/direct Filipino .00%
(independent director)
-do- Teodoro L. Locsin, Jr. 1/direct Filipino .00%
(independent director)
--do- Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr. 222,398/direct Filipino .01%
TOTAL 53,007,351 2.65%

There was no change in control of the registrant during the year. There is no voting trust or
similar agreement with respect to any portion of the outstanding shares, nor any agreement
which may result in a change of control of the Company.

The Board of Directors generally has the power to vote on behalf of their respective corporate
stockholders. A proxy is usually designated to cast the vote for the stockholder.

Iltem 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company, through the Board, renewed the management agreement with P & O
Management Services, Phils. Inc. (POMS) for a period of five years from September 1, 2015
until August 31, 2020. Forty percent (40%) of the outstanding capital stock of POMS is owned
by DP World Australia (POAL) Pty. Ltd. As of December 31, 2018, DPWorld Australia (POAL)
Pty. Ltd. owns 17.32% of the total outstanding capital stock of ATI. In addition, ATI Holdings,
Inc. (majority-owned by DPWorld Australia (POAL) Pty. Ltd.) owns 14.57% (as of December
31, 2018) of the outstanding capital stock of ATI. (Please refer to Note 20 of the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements).

The Company avails of leases from Mar-Bay Homes, Inc. and Eujo Philippines, Inc. where Mr.
E.H. Tanco is the President. Insurance services are also availed from Philippines First
Insurance Co. (PhilPlans) where Mr. Tanco is the Chairman. Also health care services with
PhilCare where Atty. Monico Jacob is the Chairman and Mr. Eusebio H. Tanco is a director.

Since February 2010, ATl has engaged Grow Vite Staffing Services, Inc. or Grow Vite (then
named Global Resource for Outsourced Workers, Inc. or GROW), to provide manpower
services for the Company. In November 2012, ATI Batangas has also engaged Grow Vite (then
GROW) for manpower services. Atty. Monico V. Jacob is the Chairman of Grow Vite and Mr.
Eusebio Tanco is its President.

Transactions with related parties are on an arm’s length basis.
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Item 13. Corporate Governance

The Company has substantially complied with the provisions of its Manual on Corporate
Governance which was adopted in August 30, 2002 amended for various years. On April 27,
2017, the Board in its regular meeting amended the Manual on Corporate Governance in
substantial compliance to the provisions of the Memorandum Circular No. 19 series of 2016 or
the Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies.

The Company commits to the principles and best practices of good corporate governance to
attain its goals and objectives. Its principal officers and directors have attended Corporate
Governance seminars and orientations in compliance with the provisions of its Manual of
Corporate Governance and provisions of the SEC Memorandum Circular No. 19 series of 2016.
The seminars were given by accredited providers such as Risks, Opportunities, Assessment
and Management (ROAM), Philippine Stock Exchange, SGV and Institute of Corporate
Directors.

The Company has not deviated from its Manual. Last November 2018, the Board, individual
directors, Corporate Governance Committee, Nomination Committee, Compensation
Committee and the key officers have undergone self-assessment. Over-all results yielded
“excellent” scores and was reported by the Corporate Governance Committee to the Board.
The Board took note of the results and approved the same in the board meeting on November
29, 2018.The Audit Committee separately conducted its self-assessment last August 9, 2018.°

Continuous monitoring and compliance with the Corporate Governance Manual and other
corporate standards are ensured through the Board and the board committees, Compliance
Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer and the Internal and External Auditors. The Integrated
Annual Corporate Governance Report (I-ACGR) shall be submitted on or before May 30, 2019.

Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

(A) Exhibits

Exhibit 1* Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q)
As of September 30, 2018

Exhibit 2 Financial Statements and Schedules

*Please refer to the September 30, 2018 Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q) submitted to the
Securities and Exchange Commission

(B) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

Date Reported Item(s) Reported

January 22, 2018 Resignation of Director (Mohammad Ali Mohammad
Ahmad)

January 30, 2018 Election of Mr. Matthew W. Leech as director
replacing Mr. Mohammad Ali Mohammad Ahmad

9 Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4 series of 2012 and the ATI Audit Committee Charter.
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Date Reported

ltem(s) Reported

February 5, 2018

Resignation of Mr. Rashed Ali Hassan Abdulla as
director and Chairman effective April 1, 2018;
Resignation of Mr. Andrew Hoad as Executive Vice
President effective March 17, 2018; Appointment of
Mr. William Wassaf Khoury Abreu as Executive Vice
President effective March 17, 2018, replacing Mr.
Hoad.

February 20, 2018

Notice of Guidelines for Nominations for Election to
the Board of Directors

February 21, 2018

Resignation of Mr. Kwok Leung Law as director.

February 23, 2018

Setting the date, venue, agenda and record date of the
2018 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and closing of
stock and transfer book; Approval of the 2017 Audited
Financial = Statements;  Appointment of the
independent auditors for 2018; Election of Mr. Andrew
R. Hoad as director effective immediately replacing
Mr. Kwok Leung Law and as Chairman effective April
1, 2018 replacing Mr. Rashed Ali Hassan Abdulla;
Election of Mr. Ahmad Yousef Ahmad Alhassan Al
Simreen as director effective April 1, 2018, replacing
Mr. Kwok Leung Law.

April 27, 2018

Results of the 2018 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting,
Declaration of Cash Dividends, Record and Payment
Dates and Results of the Organizational Meeting

August 10, 2018

Audit Committee Self-Assessment for 2017

November 9, 2018

Change in external auditor’s signing partner

December 3, 2018

Cessation as independent director (Atty. Teodoro L.
Locsin, Jr.)

December 21, 2018

Election of Atty. Roberto C.O. Lim as independent
director with attached Certification (replacing Atty.
Locsin Jr.)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation
Code, this amended report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Manila on the 15t day of April 2019.

By: n (‘\

Y A -
WILLIAM WASSAF KHOURY ABREU JOSE TRISTAN P. CARPID
Executive Vice President Vice President and Chief Financial Officer/

Corporate Treasurer

e
1] ] -
chgﬁﬁ G. CORVITE, JR. MARISSA R. PINCA
Vie€ President for Business Support Senior Manager for Accounting
Services /Corporate Secretary // and Financial Planning

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this [(ﬂﬁay of April 2019 affiants exhibiting
to me their respective government issued IDs.:

Name ID. Date and Place of Issue
William Wassaf Khoury Abreu oot Tmmemmeees
Jose Tristan P. Carpio i R Tommemes - o

Rodolfo G. Corvite, Jr. -

Marissa R. Pinca peossmE e mmEm——
Notary Public
Doc. No._4e] ATTY. BPASIMANERO
So0e ﬂfj_’% % Notary Publid Until Dec. 31
Series of 2019. Notarial Commissj 8-015 Mla.
™ IBP# 012333 Pasig 7-27-17 until 2019

PTR# Mla 8008955 - 1-3-2019
Rettr 73473 TiINE | 03-N0R-146
MU i Cuuipl No. VI-0U 1418 until 4-14-2022
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“A ASIAN Asian Terminals Incorporated Head Office,

\ A. Bonifacio Drive, Port Area,
‘ TERMINALS Manila, Philippines 1018
{54 , - INCORPORATED P. O. Box 3021, Manila, Philippines
ISO 14001 & OHSAS 18001 certified Tel. No. (632) 528 6000

Delivering reliable and consistent services. Fax No. (632) 527 2467

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND A SUBSIDIARY (the “Group”) is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2018, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

ANDREW RHOAD
2 Chairman of the Board
E¥SEBIO BRATANCO JOSE TRISTAN P. GARPIO
President Chief Financial Officer

Signed this 261 of February, 2019

MAR 01 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this day of 2019, the signatories exhibiting to me their respective
Passports/Driver’s License Nos., as follows:

Name ID Nos. Date/Place Issued
1. Andrew R. Hoad Passport No. ~ 7777 HMPO
2. Eusebio H. Tanco TIN No. B T .- .___;PHILS.
3. Jose Tristan P. Carpio Passport No. ---.--;Manila
Notary Public

Doe. No. 3 _ _.--‘ -

Page No. ﬂl ATTY. q"EERTOB. P \ERO
Book No. 9 : 3 Notary Publk Until Dec. 31, 2019 1
Series of 2019. Notarial Ssion 2018-015 Mia.

IBP# 012434 Pasig 7-27-17 untid 2019
PTR# Mla 8608053 - 1-3-2019

Roll# 25473, TIN# 103-098-346

MCLE Compl. No. V-0000269 until 4-14-19
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000

Fax +83 (2) 894 1985

Internet www.kpmg.com.ph

Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asian Terminals, Inc.

A Bonifacio Drive

Port Area, Manila

Opinion

We have audijtec the consolidated financial statements of Asian Terminals, Inc. and its
Subsidiaries (the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the consolidated statements of
income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes, comprising significant accounting
paolicies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consclidated financial position of the Group as at

December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2018, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
QOur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditfors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audits of the consolidated financial statements in
the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accardance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

FPRC-BOA Regrdrsbion No 0003, valia unié Marsh 15, 2020
SEC Actrwckiation No 0004-FR-5, Group A, vasd unti Novemnber 15, 2020
G Accreciiptnn Mo F-2017/010-R, valid unti August 28, 2020
L= T O WP networe ofindependenl BSE - Selscied Examal Auditors, Category A, valid for 3-year audit peried
s (TRIPANG Indemabanal), a Swass enby. (2017 10 201 B)
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. This matter
was addressed in the context of our audit of the consclidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
this matter.

Revenue Recognition (P12,276,678 - amount in thousands)
Refer to Notes 2 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The risk

The Group's revenues are mainly generated from arrastre, stevedoring, storage,
and special and other services. Market expectations and profit-based targets
may put pressure on management to recognize revenues before all the revenue
recognition criteria have been met. Risk of material misstatement may arise in
order to improve business results and achieve capital and revenue growths in
line with the objectives of the Group.

Qur response

Qur audit procedures included assessment of the Group's accounting policies in
respect of revenue recognition to ensure that they appropriately reflected the
requirements of PFRSs. Evaluation of relevant IT systems and the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over the recording of revenue transactions
and generated reports was also conducted. In doing so, we have involved our IT
specialists to assist in the audit of automated controls across different IT
applications. Qur substantive procedures included testing of revenues earned, to
confirm that all services had been performed at the point at which revenue is
recognized. Among others, we performed examination of selected individual
transactions' supporting documentation to test the existence and accuracy of
revenue transactions and to verify whether the revenue recognition practices
adopted complied with the stated accounting policies. A detailed movement
analysis of revenues eamed for each of the Group's revenue streams was also
performed to determine any significant fluctuation on the account.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive information Statement), SEC
Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The SEC
Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for
the year ended December 31, 2018 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditors’' report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we wilt not express any form of assurance concluston thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audits or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporiing process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due fo
fraud or error, arid to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exisis.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated financial statements. As part
of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controf.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and perfermance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matier. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of deoing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Alicia S. Columbres.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

(. I~ . .
vypovr -

ALICIA S COLUMBRES
Partner
CPA License No. 069679
SEC Accreditation No. 1590-A, Group A, valid until September 29, 2019
Tax |dentification No. 120-964-156
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-27-2017

Issued September 5, 2017; valid until September 4, 2020
PTR No. MKT 7333613

Issued January 3, 2019 at Makati City

February 28, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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(Amounts in Thousands) i L I—— - ! ‘»
& IR )
Decem er 31
=
Note 2018 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6, 24, 25 P6,868,485 P6,945,189
Trade and other receivables - net 7,24, 25 742,027 490,466
Spare parts and supplies 18 507,538 403,701
Prepaid expenses 8 962,362 629,872

Total Current Assets 9,080,412 8,469,228
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate 9 83,636 87,027
Property and equipment - net 10 883,945 565,618
Intangible assets - net 11 17,962,561 15763157
Deferred tax assets - net 13 951,305 831,026
Other noncurrent assets 12 161,291 59,181

Total Noncurrent Assets 20,042,738 17,296,009

P29,123,150  P25,765237

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 14, 24, 25 P3,797,432 P2,690212
Provisions for claims 15 ; 219,359 204,544
Port concession rights payable - current .
portion 23, 24, 25 296,234 258,060
Income and other taxes payable 330,873 315287
Total Current Liabilities 4,643,898 3,468,103

Noncurrent Liabilities
Port concession rights payable - net of

current portion 23, 24, 25 8,570,648 8,548,520
Pension liability 21 54,753 113,073
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8,625,401 8,661,593
13,269,299 12,129,696

Forward




December 31

-~ Note 2018 2017
Equity
Equity Attributahle to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company 16

Capital stock P2,000,000 P2,000,000

Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300

Retained earnings 13,585,013 11,575,652

Hedging reserve - (207,620)

Fair value reserve (5,820) {5,820)

15,843,493 13,626,512

Non-centrolling Interest 10,358 9,029

Total Equity 15,853,851 13,635,541
P29,123,150 P25,765,237

See Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



_ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017 2016
REVENUES FROM
OPERATIONS 2,26 P12,276,678 P10,603,172 P9,249,162
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN
REVENUES 17, 23 (2,270,116}  (1,914,439) (1,711,551)
10,006,562 8,688,733 7,537,611
COSTS AND EXPENSES
EXCLUDING
GOVERNMENT SHARE
IN REVENUES 18, 20, 21 (4,940,862) (4,436,203) (4,300,952)
OTHER INCOME AND
EXPENSES
Finance income 19 113,188 85,604 61,894
Finance cost 19 {540,426) (567,733) (581,2186)
Others - net 79 {627,781) {335,885) (112,936)
{1,055,019) {818,014) (632,158)
CONSTRUCTION REVENUES 11 3,222,423 2,102,478 832,918
CONSTRUCTION COSTS i1 (3,222,423) (2,102,478) {832,918)
INCOiVIE BEFQRE INCOME
TAX 4,010,681 3,434,518 2,604,501
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13
Current 1,348,499 1,148,001 835,875
Deferred (221,207) {203,167) (136,367)
1,127,292 944,834 699,508
NET INCOME P2,883,389 P2,489,682 P1,904,993
Income Attributabie to
Equity holders of the Parent
Company P2,881,448 P2,486,993 P1,902,391
Non-controlling interest 1,941 2,689 2,602
P2,883,389 P2,489,682 P1,904,993
Basic/Diluted Earnings per
Share Attributable to
Equity Holders of the
Parent Company 22 P1.44 P1.24 P0.95

Sea Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 _ 2017 2016
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR P2,883,389 P2,489,682 P1,904,993
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Item that will never be
reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gains on pension
liability 21 39,830 99,135 81,5625
Tax on item taken directly to
equity 13 (11,949) (16,541) (24,458)
27,881 38,594 57,067
{tems that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge - effective
portion (357,154) (31,479) (384,327)
Cash flow hedge - reclassified
to profit or loss 653,753 328,312 200,292
Tax on iterns taken directly to
equity B 13 {88,979) (89,050) 55,210
16 207,620 207,783 (128,825)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR - Net of tax 235,501 246,377 (71,758)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME P3,118,890 P2,736,059 1,833,235
Total Comprehensive Income
Attributable to
Equity helders of the Parent
Company P3,116,981 P2,733,340 P1,830,571
Non-controlling interest 1,909 2,719 2,664
P1,833,235

P3,118,890

P2,736,059

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2016
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Retalned Earnings

Additional Appropriated Fair Non-
Capital Paid-In for Port Hedging Value controlling
Nate Stock Capltal Develgpment Unappropriated Reserve Reserve Total Interest Total Equity
Balance at January 1, 2018 P2,000,000 P264,300 P3g,700,000 P1,875,652 (P207,620) {P5,820) P13,626,512 Pg,029 P13,635,541
Cash dividends - P0.45 a share 16 - - - {900,000) - - {900,000) {580} {900,580)
Reversal of appropriation of
retained earnings 16 - - {3,700,000) 3,700,000 - - - - -
Appropriations during the year 16 - - 4,500,000 (4,500,000} - - - - -
Net incomna for the year - - - 2,881,448 - - 2,881,448 1,941 2,883,389
Other comprehensive income: -
Actuarial gain - net of tax - - - 27,913 - - 27,913 (32) 27,881
Cash flow hedge - effective
portion - nat of tax 16 - - - - (250,008) - {250,008) - (254,008)
Cash flow hedge - reclassified to
__profit or loss - nel of tax 16 - - - 2 457,628 - 457,628 - 457,628
Balance at December 31, 2018 P2,000,000 P264,300 P10,500,000 P3,085,013 P - (P5,820) P15,843,493 P10,358 P15,853,851
Balance at January 1, 2017 P2,000,000 P264,300 P7.900,000 P2,010,095 {(P415,403) - (P5,820) P11,753,172 P6,850 P11,760,062
Cash dividends - P0.43 a share 16 - - - {860,000) - - (860,000) (580) (860,560)
Reversal of appropriation of
retained earnings 16 - - (1,400,00Q0) 1,100,000 - - - - -
Appropriations during the year 16 - - 2,800,000 (2,900,000} - - - - -
Net income for the year - - - 2,486,993 - - 2,486,993 2,689 2,489,682
Cther comprehensive inceme: -
Actuarial gain - net of tax - - - 38,564 - - 38,564 30 38,594
Cash flow hedge - effective
portien - net of tax 16 - - - - {22,035} - (22,035) - (22,035)
Cash flow hedge - reclassified to
profit or loss - net of tax 16 - - - = 229,818 - 229,818 - 229,818
Balance al December 31, 2017 P2.000,000 P264,300 P9,700,000 P1,875.652 {P207,620) (P5,820) P13,626,512 Pg,028 P13,635,541

Forward




Aftributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Retained Earnings

Additional  Appropriated Fair Nonr-
Capital Paid-in for Port Hedging Value controlling
Note Stock Capital Development  Unappropriated Reserve Raserve Total Interest Total Equity
Balance at January 1, 2016 P2,000,000 F264,300 PG,100,000 P2,670,700 {P286,578) (P5,820) P10,742,602 P5,024 £10,747,628
Cash dividends - P0.41 a share 16 - - - (820,000) - - {820,000} (580) (820,580)
Purchasa of shares of subsidiary 3 - - - - - - - (219) (219)
Reversal of appropriation of
retained earnings 16 - - {800,000} 800,000 - - - “ -
Appropriations during the year 16 - - 2,600,000 {2,600,000) - - - - -
Net income far the year - - - 1,802,391 - - 1,902,391% 2,602 1,904,293
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain - net of tax - - - 57,004 - - 57,004 63 57,067
Cash flow hedga - effective
portion - net of tax 16 - - - - {260,029} - (269.025) - (269,029)
Cash flow hedge - reclassified to
profit or loss - net of tax 16 - - - - 140,204 - 140,204 - 140,204
Balance at Decemnber 31, 2014 P2,000,000 P264,300 P7,800,000 P2,010,085 (P415,403) (P5,820) P11,753,172

11,760,062

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWS
{(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
fncome before income tax P4,010,681 P3,434,516 P2,604,501
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amertization 70, 71 1,130,882 1,180,724 1,136,532
Net unrealized foreign
exchange losses 565,357 325,848 210,264
Finance cost 19 540,426 567,733 581,216
Provisions for inventory
obsolescence 20,000 - -
Amortization of noncurrent
prepaid rental 984 9384 984
Finance income 19 (113,188) (85,604) (61,5994)
Contrbutions to retirement
funds 21 (60,469) (21,241) (18,388)
Equity in net earnings of an
associate 9 {569,299) {46,701} (47.170)
Reversal of allowance for
impairment losses on trade
and other receivables 7 (5,950) - (13,301)
Gain on disposals of;
Property and equipment {4,724) (255) (220)
Intangible assets (532) - (3,557)
Loss on retiremment of:
Property and equipment - 197 69
Intangible assets - - 144
Provisions for allowance for
impairment losses on trade
and other receivables - - 8,301
Operating income before
working capital changes 6,024,168 5,355,501 4,397,381
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables (231,848) (65,642) (69,982)
Spare parts and supplies (123,837) (89,1086) (51,822)
Prepaid expenses (332,490) (161,933) 35,737
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (63,006) 733,010 631,320
Provisions for claims 14,815 153,600 {2,555)
Income and other taxes
payable (65,560) 3,059 {4,506)
Cash generated from
operations 5,232,242 5,928,589 4 935,633
Finance income received 97,303 85,330 61,341
Finance cost paid (366) {365) (8,993)
Income tax paid (1,267,353) (1.033,660) (828,511)
Net cash provided by operating
activities 4,061,826 4,979,894 4,158,370

Forward



Years Ended December 31

o Note 2018 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Intangible assets 71 (P2,295,504) (P2,102,478) (P832,918)
Property and equipment 10 (165,649) (197,628} (81,711
Proceeds from disposals of:
Property and equipment 4,724 335 1,175
Intangible assets 534 - 6,172
Dividends received 9 62,690 14,328 45,853
increase in other noncurrent
assets (95,899) (281) (765)
Decrease (increase) in deposits (5,073) 2,929 (516)
Net cash used in investing
activities (2,494,177) {2,282,795) (862,710)
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:
Cash dividends i6 (900,000) (860,000Q) (820,000)
Cash dividends to non-
controlling interest (580) (580) (580)
Port concession rights
payable 23 (781,790) {776,075) (714,008)
Purchase of shares of
subsidiary - - (219)
Net cash used in financing
activities (1,682,370) (1,636,655) {1,534,807)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (114,721) 1,060,444 1,760,853

EFFECT OF FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 38,017 3,538 1,693

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 6 6,945,189 5,881,207 4,118,761

" CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 6  P6,868485  P6.945189  P5:881.207

See Notes lo the Consolidated Financial Stafements.



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

1. Reporting Entity

Asian Terminals, Inc. (ATi or the “Parent Company”) was incorporated in the
Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) on July 9, 1986. The consolidated financial statements comgrise the financial
statements of the Parent Company and its Subsidiares, ATl Batangas, Inc. (ATIB)
and Tanza Container Terminal, Inc. {TCTI), (collectively referred to as the “Group”).
The Parent Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities
Regulation Code and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
(PSE). UP World Australia (PCAL) Pty. Lid. directly owns 17.32% of the fotal
outstanding capital stock of ATI.

The Group operates and manages the South Harbor Port of Manila and the Port of
Batangas in Batangas City. The registered office address of the Parent Company is
A. Bonifacio Drive, Port Area, Manila.

2. Operating Contracts
Following are the Group’s operating contracts:
a. South Harbor, Port of Manila

ATl’s exclusive right to manage, operate and develop South Harbor was
renewed for a period of 25 years from May 19, 2013 to May 18, 2038 pursuant to
the Third Supplement to the Contract for Cargo Handling and Related Services
(the “Third Supplement”) with the Philippine Ports Authority (PPA} dated
Octaber 19, 2007 (see Note 23).

b. Port oi Batangas

On Cctober 2, 2015, ATl and ATIB signed a Contract with PPA for the
fManagement, Operation, Maintenance and Development of Phase |, Port of
Batangas with a term from October 1, 2015 until September 30, 2025.

On January 18, 2010, the PPA issued to AT the Notice to Award the Contract for
the Management, QOperation, Maintenance, Development and Promotion of the
Container Terminal “A-1,” Phase !l of the Port of Batangas for a period of 25
years. The Confract was signed on March 25, 2010. The Notice to Proceed
dated June 16, 2010 allowed ATI to start and commence operations at the
Terminal on July 1, 2010 (see Note 23).



3. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with
Phitippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). PFRSs which are issued by the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting
Standards (PASs), and Philippine Interpretations.

This is the first set of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in which
PFRS 15, Revenue from Confracts with Customers and PFRS 8, Financial
Instrumenits have been applied. Changes to significant accounting policies are
described-in Note 4,

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on February 26, 2019.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on an
altermnative basis on each reporting date:

lttems Measurement Bases .
Equity investments at Fair Value Fair value
through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVOCI)
Pension liability : Fair value of plan assets less the
present vaiue of the defined benefit
obligation )

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Group's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand pesos (P00Q), except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of AT,
ATIB, TCTI and the Group's interest in an associate accounted for under the equity
method of accounting. ATIB is a 99.17% owned subsidiary as at December 31, 2018
and 2017. TCTl is incorporated on January 18, 2018, and 100% owned subsidiary as
at December 31, 2018.

The financial statements of ATIB and TCTI are prepared for the same financial
reporting year as ATI, using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full.

TCT! is fully consolidated from the date of incorporation. ATIB is fully consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date when ATl obtained control, and continues
to be consalidated until the date that such control ceases.



Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit and loss and net assets in
ATIB not held by ATi and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of
income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements
of changes in equity, and within equity in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

4. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these consclidated financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise.

The Group has adopted new and amendments to standards and interpretations,
including any consequential amendments to other standards, with date of initial
application of January 1, 2018.

Adoption of New Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations ‘
The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations starting January 1, 2018 and accordingly, changed its accounting
policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

= PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39,
Financial Instruments. Recogrition and Measurement and supersedes the
previously published versions of PFRS 9 that infroduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
mode! (in 2013).

PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial assets that reflects the business model in which assets are managed
and their cash flow characteristics, including a new forward-looking expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment, and guidance on own credit risk on
financial liabilities measured at fair value. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge
accounting requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting
and introduces significant improvements by aligning the accounting more closely
with risk management.

Classification, Measurement and {mpairment of Financial Assels

The following table shows the original measurement categories under PAS 39
and the new measurement categories under PFRS 9 for each class of the
Group's financial assets as at January 1, 2018.

Criginal New
Original New Carrying Carrying
Classification Classification Amount Amount

under PAS 39 under PFRS 9 under PAS 39 under PFRS 9

Financial Assets

Cash and cash Loans and
equivalents receivables Amortized cost P6,945,189 PG,945,189
Trade and other Loans and
receivables receivables Amortized cost 509,068 509,068
Loans and
Deposits receivables Amortized cost 33,845 33,845
Available
Equity securities for sale FVOC! - equity 2,652 2,652
Total financial assets P7.,480,754 PT,490,_754




For assets in the scope of the PFRS 9 impairment model, impairment fosses are
generally expected to increase and become more volatile. The Group has
determined that the application of PFRS 9's impairment requirements at
January 1, 2018 did not result in an additional allowance for impairment.

The Group has applied PFRS 9 retrospectively but has elected not to restate
comparative infermation. As a resuit, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Group's previous
accounting poficy.

Hedue Accounting

As permitted by the standard, the Group did not adopt the new hedge accounting
requirements and continues to apply the hedge accounting requirements of
PAS 39.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Cusfomers replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, |FRIC 13, Cusfomer Loyally
Programmes, |\FRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31,
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new standard
introduces a new revenue recognition model for contracis with customers which
specifies that revenue should be recognized when (or as) a company transfers
control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the Group
expects to be entitled.

PFRS 15 requires a contract with a customer toc be legally enforceable and to
meet certain criteria to be within the scope of the standard and for the general
model to apply. It introduces detailed guidance on identifying performance
obligations which requires entities to determine whether promised goods or
services are distinct. 1t also introduces detlailed guidance on determining
transaction price, including guidance on variable consideration and consideration
payable to customers. The transaction price will then be generzally allocated to
each performance obligation in proportion to its stand-alone selling price.

Depending on whether centain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time,
in a manner that best reflects the Group's performance, or at a point in time,
when cantrel of the goods or services is transferred to the customer. The
standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRS. it also does not apply if two
companies in the same line of business exchange non-monetary assets to
facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermare, if a contract with a customer is
partly in the scope of ancther PFRS, then the guidance on separation and
measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

Due to the fransition method (cumulative effect method) chesen in applying
PFRS 15, comparative information has not been restated to reflect the new
requirements. The Group has not identified significant impacts fo amounts
recognized in the financial statements in the application of PFRS 15. However,
the Group has adopted the new disclosure requirements including the
disaggregation of revenue into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors and has aligned the description of its accounting policies witn PFRS 15.

fn conjunction with the adoption of PFRS 15, the consequential amendments to
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements, has no
significant impact to the Group.



Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreignt Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration. The interpretation clarifies that the transaction date to be used for
translation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance payment or
receipt is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the prepayment or
deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactions
involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to a
separate transaction date. The interpretation applies when an entity pays or
receives consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a norn-monetary
asset or liability before recognizing the related item.

Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted

A numbzr of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periocds beginning after January 1, 2018. However, the Group
has not early adopted the following new or amended standards in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of these are
expected to have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Effective January 1, 2019

PFRS 18, Leases supersedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially rermains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and
new disclosure requirements.

Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were introduced including an optional
lessee exemption for shori-term leases (leases with a term of 12 months or less)
and low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-level accounting
instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New estimates and
judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification and
measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to reassess certain
key estimates and judgments at each reporting date were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 at or before the

date of initial application of PFRS 16.

The Group has decided it will apply the modified retrospective adoption methed
in PFRS 16, and, therefore, will only recognize leases on balance sheet as at
January 1, 2019. In addition, it has decided to measure right-of-use assets by
reference to the measurement of the lease liability on that date. This will ensure
there is no immediate impact to net assets on that date.

As at December 31, 2018 operating lease commitments amounted to P723.1
million, which is not expected to be materally different from the anticipated
position on December 31, 2019. Assuming the Group’s lease commitments
rermain at this level, the effect of discounting those commitments is anticipated to
result in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately P553.2 million
being recognized on January 1, 2019. However, further work stifl needs to be
carried out to determine whether and when extension and termination options
are likely to be exercised, which will result in the actual liability recognized being
higher or lower. Instead of recognizing an operating expense for its operating
lease payments, the Group will instead recognize interest on its lease liabilities

and amortization on its right-of-use assets.



Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in PAS 12,
Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. Under the
interpretation, whether the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial
statefnents will differ to that in the tax return, and whether the uncertainty is
disclosed or reflected in the measurement, depends on whether it is probabie
that the tax authority will accept the Group chosen tax treatment. If it is not
probable that the tax authority will accept the Group chosen tax treatment, the
uncertainty is reflected using the measure that provides the better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty - either the most likely amount or the expected
value.

The interpretation also requires the reassessment of judgements and estimates
applied if facts and circumstances change - e.g., as a result of examination or
action by tax authorities, following changes in tax rules or when a tax authority’s
right to challenge a treatment expires.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permifted. The interpretation can ke
intially applied retrospectively applying PAS 8, Accounting Folicies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors if possible without the use of hindsight, or
refrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial
application without restating comparative information.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the Philippine Inferpretation
IFRIC-23.

Frepayment Fealures with Negative Compensation (Amendments fo PFRS 9).
The amendments cover the following areas:

e Prepayment features with negative compensation. The amendment clarifies
that a financial asset with a prepayment feature could be eligible for
measurement at amortized cost or FVOCI irrespeciive of the event or
citcumstance that causes the early termination of the contraet, which may be
within or beyond the control of the parties, and a party may either pay or
receive reasonable compensation for that early termination.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning an or after
January 1, 2019 with early adaption permitted. Refrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transitional reliefs.

+ DModification of financial liabilities. The amencdment tc the Basis for
Conclusions on PFRS 9 clarifies that the standard provide an adequate basis
for an entity fo account for modifications and exchanges of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition and the treatment is cansistent with the
requirements for adjusting the gross camying amount of a financial asset
when a modification does not result in the derecognition of the financial
asset - i.e., the amortized cost of the medified financial liabilify is recalculated
by discounting the modified contractual cash flows using the original effective
interest rate and any adjustment is recognized in profit or loss.

If the initial application of PFRS 9 results in a change in accounting policy for
these modifications or exchanges, then retrospective application is required,
subject to relevant transition reliefs.



Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures {Amendments to PAS 28).
The amendment requires the application of PFRS 9 to other financial instruments
in an associate or jcint venture to which the equity method is not applied. These
inctude long-term interests (LTls) that, in substance, form part of the entity's net
investment in an associate or joint venture.

The amendment explains the annual seqguence in which PFRS 9 and PAS 28 are
to be applied. In effect, PFRS 9 is first applied ignoring any prior years’ PAS 28
loss absorption. If necessary, prior years’ PAS 28 loss allocation is trued-up in
the current year which may involve recognizing more prior years’' losses,
reversing these losses or re-allocating them between different LTI instruments,
Any current year PAS 28 losses are allocated to the extent that the remaining LTI
balance allows and any current year PAS 28 profits reverse any unrecognized
prior years’ losses and then allocations against LTI

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted. Retrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transitionai reliefs.

Flan Amendment, Curtailment or Settfement (Amendments to PAS 19, Emiployee
Benefits). The amendments clarnfy that on amendment, curtailment or settlement
of a defined benefit pension plan, an entity now uses updated actuarial
assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the pericd.
The effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on
any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive
income.

The amendments apply for plan amendments, curtailments or settlements that
occur on or after the beginning of the first annuai reporting period that begins on
or after January 1, 2018. Eariler application is permitted.

Annual improvements fo PFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle. This cycle of improvements
contains amendments to four standards:

e Previously held interest in a joint operation (Amendments to PFRS 3,
Business Combinations and PFRS 11, Joint Arangements). The
amendments clarify how a company accounts for increasing its interest in a
joint operation that meets the definition of a business. If a party maintains or
obtains joint control, then the previcusly held interest is not remeasured. If a
party obtains control, then the transaction is a business combination
achieved in stages and the acquiring party remeasures the previously heid
interest at fair value.

The amendments apply to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is permitted.

» Income tax conseguences of payments on financial instruments classified as
equity (Amendments to PAS 12). The amendments clarify that all income tax
consequences of dividends, including payments on financial instruments
classified as equity, are recognized consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, i.e. in profit or loss, Other Comprehensive

Income or equity.



The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, Earlier application is permitted. When an entity first applies
those amendments, it shall apply them to the income tax consequences of
dividends recognized on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period.

= Borrowing Cosfs Eligible for Capitalization (Amendments to PAS 23,
Borrowing Costs). The amendments clarify that the general borrowings pool
used to calculate eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings that
specifically finance qualifying assets that are still under development or
construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance qualifying
assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale are included in that
general pool.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
applied to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

Effective January 1, 2020

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in PFRS Standards sets
out amendments to PFRS Standards, their accompanying documents and PFRS
practice statements to reflect the issuance of the revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting in 2018 (2018 Conceptual Framewosk). The 2018
Conceptual Framework includes:

= anew chapter on measurement;

e guidance on reporting financial performance;

+ imiproved definitions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting
these definitions; and

» clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.

Some Standards, their accompanying documents and PFRS practice statements
centain references to, or quotations from, the International Accounting Standards
Committee's Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements adopted by the IASB in 2001 or the Conceptual Framewaork for
Financial Reporting issued in 2010. The amendments update some of those
references and quotations so that they refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framewerk,
and makes other amendments to clarify which wversion of the Conceptual
Framework is referred fo in particular documents.

These amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020.

Definition of a Business (Amendments to PFRS 3). The amendments narrowed
and clarified the definition of a business. They alsc permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acguired set of activities and assets is a group of
assets rather than a business. The amendments:

o confirmed that a business must include inputs and a process, and clarified
that:

o the process must be substantive; and
o the inputs and process must together significantly contribute to creating
outputs;



» narrowed the definitions of a business by focusing the definition of outputs on
goods and services provided to customers and other income from ordinary
activities, rather than on providing dividends or other economic benefits
directly to investors or lowering costs; and

» added a test that makes it easier to conclude that a company has acquired a
group of assels, rather than a business, if the value of the assets acquired is
substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group of similar assets.

The amendments apply to business combinations and asset acquisitions in
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. Earlier
application is permitted.

=  Definition of Material (Amendments fto PAS 1, Presenfation of Financial
Statements and PAS 8). The amendments refine the definition of material. The
amended definition of material states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions that the primary users of general purpese financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify the definition of
material and its application by:

(a) raising the threshold at which information becomes material by replacing the
termn ‘could influence’ with ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’;

(b) including the concept of ‘ebscuring information’ alongside the concept of
‘omitting’ and 'misstating’ infarmation in the definition;

(c) ciarifying that the users fo which the definition refers are the primary users of
general purpose financial stalements referred to in the Conceptual
Framework;

(d) clarifying the explanatory paragraphs accompanying the definition; and

(e) aligning the wording of the definition of material across PFRS Standards and
other publications.

The amendments are expected to help entities make better materiality
judgements without substantively changing existing requirements.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2020, Earlier application is permitted.

Deferral of the local implementation of Amendmenis to PFRS 10, Consolidated
Financial Statements and PAS 28, Sale or Coniribution of Assets befween an
investor and its Associate or Joint Veniure

» Sale or Contribution of Assets between an fnvestor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28). The amendments address an
incansistency betweer: the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or

joint venture.

The amendments require that a ful gain or loss is recognized when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partiat gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.



Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2016 with early adoption permitted. However, on
January 13, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the effective date of these
amendments until the IASB has completed its broader review of the research
project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.

Financial Instruments

Non-derivative Financial Instruments. Non-derivative financial instruments consist of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, deposits, equity securities,
trade and other payables (except for statutory payables), and port concession rights
payable.

Recognition and Initial Measurement. Trade receivables and debt securities issued
are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial labilittes are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to ifs acquisition or issue. A frade receivable without a significant
financing,component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Financial Assets
Financial assets - Policy applicable from January 1, 2018

Classification and Subsequent Measuremenf. On initial recognition, the Group
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: amortized
cost; FVOCI - debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.

The classification depends on the Group’'s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group has no finrancial assets classified as measured at: FVOCI - debt
investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subseqguent to their initial recognition unless the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified cn the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measuired at amortized cost using the effective inferest method if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= |t is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

» |is coniractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchangs gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or l0ss. Any gain
or loss on.derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Included in this category are the Group's cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, and deposits.
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Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates of
acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. The accumulated
fair value reserves are never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized
as income in profit or loss unless it clearly represents a recovery of the cost of
investment.

Included in this category is the Group's equity instruments (included under other
noncurrent assets).

Business Mode! Assessment. The Group makes an assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this
best reflects the way the business is managed and infermation is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

a. the stated policies and objectives for the portfolic and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on
eam%’ﬁg contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabiliiies or expected cash outflows or realizing cash fiows through the sale of
the assets:

b. how the performance of the porffolio is evaluated and repcrted to the Group’s
management;

c. the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business modei) and how those risks are managed;

d. how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash fiows
collected; and

e. the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest Assessment. Principal is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset cn initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as censideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liguidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset containg a contractual term that could change
the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

*» terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

= prepayment and extension feaiures,; and

= terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-

recourse features).
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Financial assets - Policy applicable before January 1, 2018
The Group classifies financial assets into one of the following categories:

loans and recetivables;
held-to-maturity;
available-for-sale; and
at FVTPL

The Group does not have held-to-maturity invesiments and financial assets at
FVTPL.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses: Policy applicable
before January 1, 2018

* |.oans and receivables - Measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

»  Available-for-sale - Measured at fair value and changes therein, other than
impaiment losses, interest income and foreign currency differences on debt
instruments, were recognized in OC! and accumulated in the fair value reserve.
When these assets were derecognized, the gain or loss accumulated in equity
was reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses. Financial liabilities
are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any inferest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or less. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

PFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in PAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liahilities. The adoption of PFRS 9 does not have an effect
on the Group's accounting policies related to financial liabilities.

Included under other financial liabilities are the Group's trade and other payables
(except for due to government agencies) and port concession rights payable.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Impairment of Financial Assets - Policy applicable from January 1, 2018

PFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in PAS 39 with an ‘expected credit foss’
(ECL) model. The new impairment medel applies to financial assets measured at
amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to
investmeats in equity instruments. Under PFRS 9, credit losses are recognized

earlier than under PAS 39.

ECL is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument, representing the present value of expected cash shortfalls. The
Group applies either a 12-month ECL or a lifetime ECL. Lifetime ECL applies to the
financial assets that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk or are
already credit-impaired. The Group's approach to ECL measurement are described

in Note 24.
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The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers avatlable reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

= internal credit rating

= External credit rating (as far as available)

= Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor's ability to meet its obligations

= Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor

= Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same
debtor

= Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of debtor and changes in the operating
results of the debtor

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant risk in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 75 days of when they fall due. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when an event that has a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

» g breach of contract such as default or being more than 75 days past due;

= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

= it is prohable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or either financial
reorganization; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The Group categorizes a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
payments or when it is no longer probable that the receivable will be collected.
Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Group continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets - Policy applicable before January 1, 2018

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.
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A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The Group first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are naot
individually significant. If no objective evidence of impairment has been identified for
a particular financial asset that was individually assessed, the Group includes the
asset as part of a group of financial assets poaled according to their credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses the group for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues fo be, recognized are not included in the collective impaiment
assassment.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financia: assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a
net basis, or fo realize the asset and settie the liability simultanecusly. This is not
generally the case with master nefting agreements, and the related assefs and
liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset {or, where apolicable, a part of a financial asset or
a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when;

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

* the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, hut has
assumed an obligation t¢ pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a "pass-through” arrangement; or

= the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially alt the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a 'pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in
the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carmrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same fender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the
determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes,
when necessary, based on the market values, being the estimated amount for which
assets could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and
a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

* Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Fair values‘of the financial instruments are discussed in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

‘Day 1’ Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from
the fair value of other observable current market transactions of the same instrument
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or loss. In cases where no observable
data are used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only
recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the
instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit amount.

Spare Parts and Supplies

Spare parts and supplies are stated at the lower of cost and current replacement
cost. Cost is determined using the weighted average method and includes all
expenditures incurred in acquiring and bringing them to their existing location and
condition.
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Investment in Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retumns from its involvernent with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity, The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

Non-controlling Interest

Non—cor;."‘EroIling interest (NCI) is measured at its proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date. Changes in the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

Loss of Control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCi and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or less. Any interest retained in the
former subsidiary is measured af fair value when control is tost.

Investrment in an Associate

The Group's 35.71% investment in its associate, South Cotabato Integrated Port
Services, Inc. (SCIPSI), is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. An
associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence but not cantrol or
joint control, over the financial and operating policies.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is initially recognized at
cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the asscciate after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s share in the profit or toss and other comprehensive
income of the associate is recognized in the Group's consolidated statements of
income. Dividends received from the associate reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. Adjustment tc the carrying amount, may alsc be necessary for changes
in the Group's proportionate interest in the asscciate arising from changes in the
associate’s other comprehensive income.

Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not amortized.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Group. The accounting policies of the associate conform te those used by the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of such property and equipment at the time that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing.
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The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its construction cost or
purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs in
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also
includes interest incurred during the construction period on funds borrowed to
finance the construction of the projects. Expenditures incurred after the asset has
been put into operation, such as repairs, maintenance and overhau costs, are
normally recognized as expense in the periad the costs are incurred. Major repairs
are capitalized as part of property and equipment only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Group and the cost of the
items can be measured reliably.

Port facilities and equipment include spare parts that the Group expects to use for
more than one year. These are not depreciated until ready for its intended use.
However, these are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the spare parts may not be
recoverable,

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at
cost. This includes the costs of construction and other direct costs. Borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the construction of property and equipment are
capitalized during the construction period. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are substantiaily completed and
ready for its intended use. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line methed over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Number of Years

Port facilities and equipment 2 - 25 years or life of the
operating contract, whichever is
shorter
Leasehold improvements 2 - 40 years or term of the lease,
whichever is shorier
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 -5years
_Transportation and other equipment 2 - 5years o

The remaining useful lives, residual values, depreciation and amortization method
are reviewed and adjusted periodically, if appropriate, to ensure that such periods
and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern ¢f economic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicale that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed
of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the refirement and
disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in profit
or loss in the period of refirement or disposal.

Intandible Assets N
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impaimment [osses.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using the straight-line method over
the period covered by the contract or useful life, whichever is shorter. The
amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed annually. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortizaiion expense is recognized in profit or loss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible asset. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are recognized in profit or loss and measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset,

Paort Concession Rights

The Group recognizes port concession rights as intangible assets arising from a
service concession arrangements in which the grantor controls or regulates the
services provided and the prices charged, and also controls any significant residual
interests in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement, such as
property and equipment, if the infrastructure is existing infrastructure of the grantor or
the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the Group as part of the service
concession arrangements.

Port concession rights consist of:
a. Upfront fees payments on the concession contracts;

b. The cost of port infrastructures constructed and port equipment purchased,
which are not recognized as property and equipment of the Group but as
intangible asset received as consideration for such cost; and

¢. Future fixed government share considerations in exchange for license or right.
Fixed government share is recognized at present value using the discount rate at
the inception date with a corresponding liability recognized. Interest on the
unwinding of discount of the liability and foreign exchange differences arising
from translations are recognized in profit or [oss.

Port conression rights are determined as intangible assets with finite useful lives and
are amortized using the straight-line method over the concession period or useful
life, whichever is shorter. The amortization period and the amortization method are
reviewed annually. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense is recognized in profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangihle asset.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognized in
profit or loss and measured as the difference between the net dispasal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset.

Port concession rights are amortized using the straight-line methad over the term of
contract asset or useful life ranging from 2 fo 25 years whichever is shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impaimment
fosses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequentiy if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.
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Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the investment to
which the goodwill relates. VWhere the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount of the investment, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed. Where part of the operation within the investment
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carry.ng amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Impairment of Nen-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of investment in an associate, property and equipment and
intangible assets other than goodwiil are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists, and if the carrying amount exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their
recaverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair
value less costs to sell or value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel. For an asset that does
not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit o which the asset belongs. Impairment
losses of continuing operations are recognized in profit or loss in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is esiimated. A
previously recognized impairment l0ss is reversed anly if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the assei's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased fo its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would nhave been detemined, net of depreciation and
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in profit ar loss. After such reversal, the depreciation and
amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
useful life.

Provisions

Pravisions are recognized when the Group has: (a) a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event; (b) it is probable {i.e., meore likely than not)
that an oufflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie
the obligation; and (¢} a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects cument market assessment of the time value of money and those risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Where some or all of the
expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Share Capital

Capital Stock

Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs direcily attributable to the
issue of common shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

Additionai Paid-in Capital

The amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as “Additional
paid-in capital.” Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefit.

Retained Eamings and Dividend Distribution
Retained earnings include current and prior years’ results, net of transactions with
shareholders and dividends declared, if any.

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognized as a liability, and
deducted from equity in the Group's consolidated statements of financial position in
the period in which the dividends are approved and declared by the Group's BOD.

Retained earnings may also include prior year adjustments and the effect of changes
in accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions.

Revenue. Cost and Expense Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group recognizes revenue when it fransfers control over a service fo a
customer. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
and PPA Tariff regulations, which are all fixed amounts, for each type of services
rendered. The PPA established all relevant port regulations, basic port services and
service level requirements, liability on cargo, security, and safety. The Group's
revenue is well defined in PPA Operations Memorandum Circular No. 02-2018 and
revised schedule of Cargo Handling Tariff implemented on June 5, 2018,

In the comparative period, revenue was measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue recognized when the related services
have been rendered. |t is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic: benefits witl flow to the Group and the revenue can he reliably measured.

The following is a description of principal activities from which the Group generates
its revenue. Revenue is disaggregated by the following service lines:

*  Stevedoring
The Group generates stevedoring revenue from all works performed on board

vessel. The activity includes movement of cargoes from ship-to-share, shore-to-
ship fifting for inbound and outbound and fransshipment including the related
stevedoring transportation and liftings from shore to yard and yard to shore. The
activity generally finishes in a short period of time (i.e. 24 to 48 hours from the
time ship arrives at the port). The Group recognizes revenue at a point in time
upon completion of service and the average credit term is 15 to 30 days.

»  Arrasitre
The Group generates arrastre revenue from portside cargo handling operations.
The activity includes receiving, handling, custody, security and delivery of cargo
passing over piers, quays, warehouses and open storages within the
jurisdictional area of responsibility of the Group. The Group recognizes revenue
upon completion of service (i.e at a peint in time). The customer pays arrasire
charges before the release of cargoes.
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* Logistics
Logistics operation includes trucking and handlings services. The Group
recognizes revenue upon completion of service (i.e at a point in time) and the
average credit term is 15 to 30 days.

= Special and Cthers Services

Special and other services include storage, reefer monitaring, container freight
servicing, and equipment or manpower rental. Majority of these service lines
pertains fo storage revenues, Storage revenues are charges from the use of
warehouses and/or open sterages within the jurisdictional area of responsibility
of the Group beyond the free storage period. Customers are billed upon
withdrawal of cargoes from the terminal (for Import) or upon loading of cargoes to
vessel {for expoit). The Group recognizes revenues over a period of time
{number of days the container stayed in the jurisdictional area) and the average
credit term is15 to 30 days.

Other Income
Other income is recognized at the point in time when the service has been rendered.

Finance Income
Finance income is recognized on & time proportion basis that reflects the effective
yield on the investment.

Construction Revenues and Casts

The Group recognizes revenue related to construction and upgrade of services
under service concession arrangement in accordance with PFRS 15, When the
consfruction or upgrade services are provided or delivered under concession
arrangement accounted within the scope of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, the
considerziion is measured at the estimated selling price of the construction services
provided. No margin has been recognized since the estimated selling price of the
consideration services provided approximates the consiruction costs. The nature of
the consideration determines the subsequent accounting. The consideration is
classified as a confract asset under Intangible assets during the construction or
upgrade period in accordance with PFRS 15.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized upén receipt of goods, utilization of services or
at the date they are incurred.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. The capitalization
of borrowing costs: (a) commences when the activities to prepare the assets are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred; (b) is suspended
during extended periods in which active development, improvement and construction
of the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets are complete. These costs are amortized using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the related property, plant and
equipment to which it is capitalized.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
these are incurred using the effective interest method.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfitliment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the assef. A reassessment is made after the
inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

{a) there is a change in cantractual terms, other than a renewal of extension of the
arrangement;

(b) a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the
renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;

{c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a
specific asset; and

{d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for
scenarios {a), (c) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for
scenario (h).

Operating Lease

Group as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially ail the
risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a
straighi-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs such as maintenance and
insurancs are expensed as incuired.

Empioyee Benefits

a. Short-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a
present, legal or constructive cbligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliabiy.

bh. Pensions
ATI and ATIB have funded, defined benefit pension plans, administered by a
common pension trustee, covering their permanent employees. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit pension plans is determined
separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method.

The defined benefit pension asset or liability comprises the present value of the
defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets out of which the
obligation is to be settled directly. The value of any plan asset recognized is
restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan.

Rerneasurements of the net defined benefit pension liability, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive income. The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit pension liability (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit pension liability
(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined pension liability
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit pension plans are
recognized in profit or loss.
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a pian is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service ar the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses
on the setflement of a defined benefit pension plan when the settlement occurs.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Group’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
functional currency at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. All
differences are taken to the profit or loss. Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis.

Cash Flow Hedge of a Forecast Transaction Using a Non-derivative [nstrument

The port concession rights payable i.e. hedging instrument is a non-derivative
monetary item. A non-derivative financial instrument is pemmitted to be used as a
hedging instrument only for hedges of foreign currency risk. The effective portion of
the foreign exchange gains and losses on the hedging instrument is recognized in
other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss.

The spot movement of the port concession rights payable that is recognized in other
comprehbensive income is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item i.e. the
highly pinbable forecast revenue tfransaction affects prefit or loss. Since the impact
of the hedged risk on profit or loss arising frem the highly probable forecast
transaction is expected to impact profit or loss over future periods, the amount
recognized in the hedging reserve will remain in other comprehensive income until
the hedged item affects profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires,
terminated or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. If the forecast fransaction is no longer expected to occur, then the
amount accumulated in equily is reclassified to profit or loss.

Taxes

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates fo a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income...

Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year, using tax rates (tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary difference
associated with investment in associate.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes inta account
the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional faxes and interest may
be due. The Group befieves that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all
open fax years based on ifs assessment of many factors, including inferpretation of
tax laws and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions
and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New information may
become available that causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax
expense in the peried that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authonty.

Value Added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the
amount of VAT, except:

= where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the tax authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

= receivables and payables that are stated with amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included
as part of recejvables or payables in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

Eamings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares ouistanding during the year after giving
retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared during the year.

The Group does not have potential common shares or other instruments that may
entitle the holder to common shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.

Operating Segments

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according
to the lines of business: port and non-port, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that serves different markets. Management reviews segment

reports ci: a regular basis.

The Group has a single reportable operating segment, as its business has been
mainly on port operations and the non-port operation is insignificant to the Group’s
total business.
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The Group operates only in the Philippines which is treated as a single geographical
segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Contingencies :
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

They are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of econamic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additionai information about the Group's
consolidated financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in
the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with
PFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and amounis of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses reported in the consolidated financial statements at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions could
result in an outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the
period in which the judgments and estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made

the following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances retevant to the Group, the functional currency of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries has been determined to be the Philippine peso. It is the currency
that mainly influences the price and cost of providing services.

Service Concession Amrangements. The Group has determined that the operating
contracts are within the scope of IFRIC 12, accounted for under the intangible asset
model. ‘

The intangible assets pertaining to concession rights as at December 31, 2018 and
2017 are presented in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Port Concession Rights and Port Concession Rights Payable. Estimates and
assumptions are required on the determination of the cost of port concession rights
on sepvice concession amangements to determine the extent to which the Group
receives a right or license to charge users of public service. Port concession rights
includes future fixed government share considerations in exchange for license or
right. Fixed government share is recognized at present value using the discount rate
at the inception date with a corresponding liability (port concession rights payable)
recognized. In making those estimates, the management is required to determine a
suitable discount rale fo calculate the present value of port concessions rights and
port concession rights payable. The Group believes that, while the assumptions used
are reasonable and appropriate, these estimates and assumptions can materially
affect the consolidated financial statements.

Operating Lease. The Group has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee.
The Group had determined that significant risks and rewards for properties leased
from third parties are retained by the lessors.

‘v
Rent expense charged in the consclidated statemants of income amounted to
P148.1 million, P139.9 million and P152.5 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016,

respectively (see Note 18).

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements
are based upen management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of
the date of the consclidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from
such estimates.

Hedging of Highly Probable Forecast Transaction using a Non-derivative instrument,
Estimates and assumptions are required on the determination of the Group's highly
probable dollar denominated stevedoring revenue fo determine the Group’s
exposure on spot rate changes that will be hedged using a non-derivative financial
instrument which is the Group port concession rights payable which is denominated
in US Dollars (USD). On the inception of the hedge, the management is required to
develop a highly probable revenue forecast using the Group’s budgeted stevedoring
revenues which are adjusted based on the actual to budget historical deviation rate.
The Group helieves that, while the assumptions used are reasonable and
appropriate, these estimates and assumptions can materially affect the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group voluntarily revoked the designation of hedging instrument and hedged
item on November 30, 2018 (see Note 18).

Provisions for Claims. The Group records provisions for claims for property,
equipment and cargo damage and for pending civil and tabor cases when it is
determmined that an unfavorable cutcome is probable and the amount of the claim can
be reaschably estimated. The determination of the amount of reserves required, if
any, is Based on managements analysis of each individual issue, often with
assistancé of outside legal counsel.

Provisions for claims amounted to P219.4 millicn and P204.5 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 15).
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6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

- o Note 2018 2017
Cash on hand and in banks P436,917 P355,108
Short-term investments 6,431,568 6,590,081

24, 25 P6,868,485 P6,945,189

Cash in banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Majority of short-term investments are on 90-day term subject to roll-over
requirements of the Group and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates
amounting to P111.1 millon and P83.8 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively
(see Note 19).

7. Trade and Other Receivables

_ Nofe 2018 2017

Trade receivables P658,794 P427 867

Advances to officers and employees 19,546 23,294
Receivable from insurance 19,357 -

Interest receivable 16,661 2,898

Receivable from escrow fund 13,635 13,635

Due from related parties 20 11,246 19,015

Other receivables 15,440 22,359

754,679 509,068

Allowance for impairment losses (12,652) (18,602)

24,25 P742,027 P490,466

Trade and other receivables are noninterest-bearing and generally have credit term
of thirty (30) days.

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables
are as follows:

Individually Collectively

Impaired Impaired Total

Balance at January 1, 2017 P4,160 P14,442 P18,602
Provisions during the year - 864 864
Reversals during the year (864) - (864)
Balance at December 31, 2017 3,296 15,306 18,602
Reversals during the year - (5,950) {5,950)
Balance at December 31, 2018 P3,296 P9,356 P12,652

8. Prepaid Expenses

Note 2018 2017

Taxes P871,283 P545,647
Rental 12, 23 49,118 5,926
Advances to contracters 10,790 9.352
[nsurance 2,598 45 937
Advances to government agencies 101 101
Others 28,472 22,909
P962,362 P629,872

Taxes pertain to the Group's input VAT credits.
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9. Investment in an Associate

ATl has a 35.71% interest in SCIPSI, which is engaged in arrastre, stevedoring and
other related cargo handling services, except porterage, in Makar Wharf, General
Santos City, Philippines. SCIPS! is not listed in any public exchange. The carrying
amount of investment in an associate as at December 31 follows:

. v Note 2018 2017
Acquisition cost P11,222 P11,222
Accumulated equity in net earnings:

Balance: at beginning of year 75,805 43,432

Equity in net earnings for the year 19 59,299 46,701
Dividends received during the year o (62,690) (14,328)

72,414 75,805

P83,636 P87,027

The following table shows the summarized financial infarmation of SCIPSI:

_ _ 2018 2017
Current assets P202,871 P187,757
Noncurrent assets 64,180 79,988
Total assets P267,051 P267,745
Current liabilities P45,064 P153,719
Noncurrent liabilities 2,611 2,318
Total liabilities P47,675 P156,037
Revenues P385,924 P330,018
Expenses (219,867) (199,455}
Net income P166,057 P130,563

Based on unaudited financial statements

Dividend income of P62.7 million and P14.3 million was received in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

10. Property and Equipment - net

The movements in this account are as follows:

2018
Port Fumitare,  Transpertation
Facilitles and Leasehoid Fixtures and and Qther  Coenstruction
Eguiprment  Improvements Equipment Eguipment in-progress Total
Cast
Balance at beginning of year P152.084 P560,495 P513,661 P190,963 754,497 1,501,700
Additions 14,840 32,500 150,939 40,144 197,769 438,192
Dispesals - - {18,243} {26,528) - (44,771}
Reclassifications _[2,481) 6,572 22,308 - 962 {27,761} -
Balanca at end of year 164,443 599,967 668,665 205,541 254,505 1,893,121
Accumnulated Depreciation
Balance al baginning of yaar 124,575 372,48% 316,694 122,324 - 938,082
Depreciation 5,003 19,853 54,933 24,926 - 147,865
Dispesals - - (18,243} (26,528) - (44,771]
Balance al end of year 132,668 392,342 383,444 120,722 - 1,009,178
T:arry‘ing Amount P31,775 P207,625 P305,221 P84,818 P254,505 Pge1,945
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2017

Paor Furmilure, Transportation
Facililies and Leasehold Fixtures and and Other Conslructon

Equiprnenl Improvements Equipmenl Equipment in-progress Total
Cost
Balance 2t baginning of year P143,972 P553,824 P424.413 P174,310 P18.887 P1,311,306
Additions 7,701 5,605 77211 26,071 81,040 197,628
Disposals - - {767) {5,548} - (5,315)
Rec_lassiﬁcalions 411 988 12,970 883 (15.236) -
Retiements - - {168) (753) - (519}
Balance at end of yeer 152.084 560,485 513,651 180,863 84,487 1,501,700
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 116,024 356,280 247,575 108,265 - £28,134
Depreciatian 3,541 16.229 £9,952 20,183 - 114,505
Disposals - - (587) (5,548) (5,235)
Ratiraments - - (146} (578) (722)
Baiancs al and of year 124,575 372,489 316,694 122,324 - 936,082
Carrying Amounl P27,508 P188,008 P193 957 PER B39

The Group has non-cash additions as at December 31, 2018
P270.5 million.

PB4 ag7 PE6R5 618

which amounted to

11. Intangible Assets - net

The movements in this account are as follows:

2018
Port Concession Rights ~
Fixed
Government Port
Upfront Fees Share Infrastructure Subtotal Goodwill Total
Cost
Balance at beginning
of year F282,000 P9,279,694 P15,084,610 P24,646,304 P42,060 P24,688,364
Additions - - 3,222,423 3,222,423 - 3,222,423
Disposals - - [55,960) (55,950) - {55,960)
Balznce at end of year 282,000 9,279,694 18,251,073 27,812,767 42,060 27,854,827
Accumulated
Amortization
Balance at beginning
of yaar 52,094 2,786,178 5,096,935 8,935,207 - 8,935,207
Amortizafion 11,280 386,556 515,141 1,013,017 - 1,013,017
Disposals - - [55,958) [55,958) - {55,958)
Balance at end of year 63,374 3,172,774 6,656,118 9,892,266 - 4,802,266
Carrying Amount P218,626 P6,106,920 P11,594955 P17,920,501 P42.060 P17,962,561
2017
Porl Concassion Righls
Fixed
Government Port
I Upfront Fees Share  Infrastruciure Sublatal Goodwilf Total
Cost
Balance at beginning
of year P282 000 P3,279,694 P12,862,273  P22,543,067 42,060 P22,585,027
Additions - - 2,102,478 2,102,478 - 2,102,478
Disposals - - {141} (41 - {141)
Balance at end of year 262,000 9,279,694 15,084,610 24,646,304 42,060 24,688,364
Accumulated
Amortization
Balance at beginning
of year 40,814 2,399,582 5473133 7,869,523 - 7,863,525
Amortizzation 11,280 386,598 667,943 1,065,818 - 1,085,819
Disposals - - (141 (141) _ (141)
Balance at end of year 52,084 2,788,178 §,096,935 8,935,207 - 8,935,207
F229,808 PG6,483,516 P8,987.675 P15,711.097

Camying Amount

P42.080 P15,753,157
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The unamortized capitalized borrowing costs as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
amounted to P73.5 million and P78.3 million, respectively. No borrowing costs were
capitalized in 2018 and 2017.

The Group has non-cash additions as at December 31, 2018 which amounted to
P925.9 million.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the contract asset under Port Infrastructure
amounted to P2.8 billion and P2.3 billion, respectively. Movement in the contract
assets represents only the construction of port facilities and eventual putting into
service in accordance with the Investment Plan (see Note 23).

Goodwill

Key Assumptions

in testing impaimment of gooedwill, the recoverable amount of ATIB is the value in use,
which has been determined by calculating the present value of cash flow projections
from the operations of ATIB. The average revenue growth rate assumption used was
8.0%. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 7.9% in 2018 and 5.8% in
2017 based on the industry’s weighted average cost of capital (WACC).

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions

The estimated recoverable amount of ATIB exceeds ifs carrying amouni by
approximately P1.7 billien and P2.2 billion in 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Management has identified that earnings before interest and tax and discount rates
are the key assumptions for which there could be a reasonably possible change that
could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount.

12. Other Noncurrent Assets

Note 2018 2017

Taxes . P116,286 P20,387
Deposits 24, 25 41,040 33,845
Rental 1,313 2,297
Equity securities 24, 25 2,652 2,652
P161,291 P59,181

Taxes pé_rtain to noncurrent portion of the value-added input tax on capital goods
exceeding P1.0 million.

Deposits mainly represent payments related to property leases and utilities. This
account includes noninterest-bearing rental deposits on a lease agreement that was
carried at fair value as of initial recognition determined based on the present value of
future cash flows discounted using effective interest rate of 3.70%. The carrying
amounts of these deposits at amortized cost amounted to P14.8 million and P12.6
million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The difference between the original amount of noninterest-bearing rental deposits
and their present vajues at "Day 1" qualified for recognition as prepaid rental. The
prepaid rental (included in current and noncurrent prepayment) amounted to P2.3
million and P3.3 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The current portion of such prepaid rental, presented under “Prepaid expenses -

rental” account amounted to P49.1 million and P5.9 miltion as at December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively (see Note 8).
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Equity securities consist of investments in quoted and unguoted shares.

13. Income Tax!

A reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate on income
before income tax follows:

7 2018 2017 2016
Statutory income tax rate 30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
Changes in income tax rate
resulting from:
Income subjected to final tax (0.94) (0.84) (3.89)
Others - {0.95) (1.65) (2.25)
Effective income tax rate 28.11% 27.51% 26.86%

The movements in deferred tax balances are as fallows:

Net Recognized December 31
Balance at in Profit Recognlzed Meferred Defarred
2018 Note January 1 or Loss in OCI Tax Assets  Tax Lishilities Net
Port concassion rghis
payable related 1o f=ad
govermmen! sharg P391,832 P41,541 P - P433,373 P - P£33,373
Cash flow nedge 88,979 - (88,979) - . -
Unreaizad foreign
excharge loss - nel 257,757 170,669 - 428,426 - 428,426
Pansicn liabilty 21 33,392 (734} {11,849) 20,649 - 20,849
Provisions for ¢iaims 61,364 4,445 - 55,809 - 55,309
Excess af cost over net
realizabie valur of spare
paris and supplas 11,469 6,000 - 17,468 - 17,469
Imgairnent losses on
recardahias . 7 5,298 {1,785} - 3,513 - 3,513
Accrued oparating lzase 4,343 (201) - 4,142 - 4,142
Rantsl dapasit 1,587 (342) - 1,245 - 1,245
Unamonized capitalzad
Doroaing cosls e
custom dulies (24,995) 1,674 - - (23,331) (23,321)
Net tax assels (Habiles) P831,026 P221,207 {P100,928) P974,626 (P23,321} PS51,305
i
Net Recegnized December 31
Balanice al in Profit Recognized Dafered .

2017 Mote Jamwary1 ~ orloss n OCI Tax Assels Ex Lis

Porl concessian ngats
payahle relaled lo Nixed

govemmanl shara F340,742 P51,05Q0 P - F391,832 P -
Cash lliow hedge 178,029 - (69,050) 88,979 -
Unrealzed foreign

exchangs loss - net 159,525 98232 . 257757 -
Fansion mabdity 21 43,008 5,827 (18,541 33.392 -
Provisions for claims 15,284 45,080 - 61,364 -

Excess of cost aver net
reslizable value of spare

pats and supplies 11,468 - - 11,468 - 11,468
irparment losses on

receivablas 7 5,298 - - 5233 - 5298
Accrued operaling lease 4971 (6528} - 4,343 - 4,343
Rental deposil 1,835 {248) - 1.587 - 1,587

Unamertized capitaiized
borrowing cosls and
, cuslom cuties (26, 70:) 1.714 - - {24,993) (24.085)
Net tax assats [lahpbas) PT33,450 P02 167 {P105.691) Pesa, o (P24,985 PESN.026

Net deferred tax assets have been recognized because management believes that
the Group will earn sufficient future taxable profits against which it can utilize the
benefits therefrom.
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14. Trade and Other Payables

Note 2018 2017
Trade P370,635 P379,642
Accrued expenses:
Marketing, commercial and promotion 518,798 446,945
Personnel costs 222,876 165,279
Finance costs 151,091 152,744
Professional fees 147,924 153,683
Repairs and maintenance 86,111 122,147
Rental 23 65,089 70,693
Securily expenses 45,344 44 037
Trucking expense 30,790 28,774
Utilities 14,210 12,104
Corporate social responsibility 11,842 14,712
Safety and environment 4,723 4,314
Miscellaneous ' 61,638 40,159
Equipment acquisitions 1,133,236 214,012
Due fo government agencies 23 696,023 510,006
Shippers’ and brokers’ deposits 110,403 84,433
Management fee payahle 20 10,489 7,881
Other payables 116,210 138,647
24, 25 P3,797,432 P2,690,212

Following are the terms and conditions of the above liabilities:

=~ Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally setfled on 30 o 60-

day terms.

» Accrued finance costs are normally setfled quarterly and semi-annually

throughout the financial year.

= Other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within twelve

months from inception date.

15. Provisions for Claims

) 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P204,544 P50,944
Provisions during the year 25,738 154,090
Payments during the year {10,923) (490)
Balance at end of year P219,359 P294,544

Provisions relate to property and equipment, and cargo damage and other claims. It
is expected that most of these provisions will be settled within the next financial year

or on demand.
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16. Equity

Pursuant to the registration statement rendered effective by the SEC and permit to
sell issued by the SEC both dated April 7, 1995, 1 hillion common shares of the
Parent Company were registered and may be offered for sale at an offer price of
P3.10 per common share. On March 28, 1999, another registration statement was
rendered effective by the SEC and permit to sell issued by the SEC for 1 billion
common shares of the Parent Company and may be offered for sale at an offer price
of P1.00 per common share. As at December 31, 2018, the Parent Company has a
total of 2 billion issued and outstanding common shares and 827 stockholders.

Capital Stock - P1 Par Value
The Parent Company has 2.0 billion issued and fully paid capital stock, from its
4.0 billion authorized common shares, as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Retfained Earnings

The Group's unappropriated retained earnings includes the subsidiaries'
unappropriated net earnings of P4.8 million and P15.3 million and the Group’s
accumulated equity in the net earnings of an assaciate amounting to P72.4 million
and P75.8 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which are
available for distribution only upon declaration of dividends by such subsidiaries to
the Parent Company and the associate to the Group. Cash dividends are distributed
yearly since 2000,

On April 26, 2018, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
PS00.0 million or P0.45 per share payable on June 18, 2018 to common
shareholders of record as at May 22, 2018.

On April 27, 2017, the BCD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P860.0 rnillion or P0.43 per share payable on June 15, 2017 to common
shareholders of record as at May 19, 2017.

On April 28, 2016, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P820.0 million or P0O.41 per share payable on June 15, 2016 to common
sharehelders of record as at May 20, 2016.

On December 20, 2018, the Group’s BOD approved the reversal fo the
unappropriated retained earnings of the amount of P3.7 billion out of the already
approved appropriation of P9.7 hillion, for capital expenditures for 20168 and 2017.
Furthermore, the Group's BOD approved an appropriation of the retained earnings
amounting to P4.5 billion for capital expenditures for the next 2 years. The Group's
BOD also approved on the same date a budget amounting to P9.0 billion for capital
expenditures which include yard and berth development as well as construction of
new facilities and equipment acquisition for 2019. The capital expenditures will
strengthen the Group’s operations and capability to handle growth.

On December 19, 2017, the Group’s BOD approved the reversal to the
unappropriated retained earnings of the amount of P1.1 biflion out of the already
approved appropriation of P7.9 billion, for capitat expenditures for 2015 and 2016.
Furthermore, the Group's BOD approved an appropriation of the retained earnings
amounting to P2.9 billion for capital expenditures for the next 2 years. The Group’s
BOD also approved on the same date a budget amounting to P8.8 billion for capital
expenditures which include yard and berth development as well as construction of
new facilities and equipment acquisition for 2018. The capital expenditures will
strengthen the Group's operations and capability to handle growth.
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On December 19, 2016, the Group’s BOD approved the reversal to the
unappropriated retained earnings of the amount of P800 million out of the already
approved appropriation of P6.1 billion, for capital expenditures for 2014 and 2015.
Furthermore, the Group’s BOD approved an appropriation of the retained earnings
amounting to P2.60 billion for capital expenditures for the next 2 years. The Group'’s
BOD also approved on the same date a budget amounting to P4.6 billion for capital
expenditures which include yard and berth development as well as construction of
new facilities and equipment acquisition for 2017. The capital expenditures will
strengthen the Group's operations and capability to handle growth and will be
sourced from internal funds,

Fair Value Reserve
Fair value reserve amounting to P5.8 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
represents unrealized loss on equity securities.

Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserve includes the effective portion of the cumulative net change in

the fair value of the port concession payable used as cash flow hedge against
foreign currency risk.

For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the effective fair value
changes of the Group's cash flow hedge that was recognized in other
comprehensive income amounted to P250.0 million, P22.0 million and P269.0
million, respectively, net of tax.

For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Group’s cash flow
hedge that was reclassified to profit or loss from other comprehensive income
amounted to P457.6 million, P229.8 million and P140.2 million, respectively, net of
tax.

On November 30, 2018, the management voluntarily revoked the designation of
hedge instrument and hedge items. The management has determined that the hedge
is retrospectively effective until the date of voluntary termination, including the
recognized ineffectiveness in profit or loss.

Based on the management's assessment, continuation of hedging will only lead to
recognition of higher unrealized foreign exchange losses that would affect their
forecasted profits in the long-run. As a result, the Group reclassified the entirety of
unrealized foreign exchange losses pertaining to hedging from other comprehensive
income to its profit or loss. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the amount
recognized from Hedging reserve to profit or loss amounted to P254.4 million, net of
tax.

17. Government £hare in Revenues

This account consists of the PPA’s share in revenues of the Group as stipulated in
the agreements discussed in Notes 2 and 23. The PPA's share in gross revenues
includes variable government share amounting to P2.3 billion, P1.9 billion and P1.7
billion in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 23).



18. Costs and Expenses Excluding Government Share in Revenues

- Note 2018 2017 2016
Labor costs P1,462,559 P1,282,810 P1,192,514
Depreciation and :
amortization 10, 11 1,130,882 1,180,724 1,136,532
Equipment running 797,971 595,449 485,263
Taxes and licenses 272,084 256,132 254 873
Security, health,
environment and safety 205,407 181,801 161,277
Facilities-related
expenses 200,520 151,910 183,602
Management fees 20 176,083 149,706 112,965
Rental 23 148,134 139,905 152,469
Insurance 87,280 66,295 66,942
Marketing, commercial
and promaotion 86,450 45,740 136,226
Professional fees 80,469 24,460 174,313
General fransport 416,128 41,133 14,894
Provision for claims 15 25,738 154,090 5,814
Entertainment,
amusement and
recreation 7,787 5170 5,921
Others 213,370 160,778 217,347
P4,940,862 P4 300,952

P4,436,203

Labor costs include salaries, benefits and pension expense.

Spare parts and supplies used and included under equipment running amounted fo
P296.3 million, P227.3 million and P185.7 milion in 2018, 2017 and 2016,

respectively.

Provision for inventory obsolescence included in prefit or loss amounted to FP20.0
million in 2018 and nil in 2017 and 2016.

19. Other Income and Expenses

Finance income is broken down as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016
interest on cash in
banks and short-term
investments 6 P111,066 P83,787 P60,438
Accretion of rental
deposits _ 12, 23 2122 1,817 1,556
P113,188 P85,604 P61,994
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Finance cost is broken down as follows:

Note 2018 2017 20186

Interest on port

concession rights

payable P533,664 P559,779 P573,110
Interest component of

pension expense 21 6,396 7,589 7,953
Interest on bank

loans/credit facilities 366 365 153

FP540,426 P567,733 P581,216

Interest on port concession rights payable pertains to the interest on the unwinding of
discount of said liability (see related palicy on port concession rights in Note 4).

Others consist of the following:

Note 2018 2017 2016

Equity in net earnings

of an associate g9 P55,299 F46,701 P47 170
Foreign.exchange

gains - others 35,461 10,243 91
Management income 20 10,285 8,806 9,184
income from insurance

claims - 264 74,167
Foreign exchange

losses - port

concession rights

payable (136,851) (107.169) (60,277)
Foreign exchange

losses - cash flow

hedge (603,374) (329,386) (211,856)
Other income - net 7,399 34,656 28,585

(P627,781) (P335,885) (P112,936)

Foreign exchange losses - port concession rights payable resulted from revaluation
of foreign currency denominated port concession rights payable.

Foreign exchange losses - cash flow hedge in 2018 includes the amount reclassified
from other comprehensive income resulting from the voluntary revocation by
management of the designation of the hedge instrument and hedge items
(see Note 16}).

20. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate
entities.
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The Group, in the nomal course of business, has the following transactions with its

retated parties:

Qutsfanding Balange

Armount  Due from Due to
Category/ of the Related Related
Transacfion Ref  Year Transaction Parties Parties Terms Conditions
Associate
= Managemen{ A 2018 P10,285 Pa57 P - Payable on demand  Unsecured;
income no impairment
2017 8,806 1,032 Payable on demand Unsecured,
no impairment
Post-
Employment
Benefit Plan
= Refirement fund =] 2018 39,221 10,0186 Payable on demand  Unsecured;
no Impalrment
2017 39,354 17.721 - Payable on demand  Unsecured;
no impairment
Others
« Managementfees C 2018 176,083 10,489  Payable within ten Unsecured
{10 days) of the
following maonth
2017 142,706 - 7.881 Fayable within ten Unsecured
(10} days of the
. following month
= Advanceg D 2018 2,456 273 Payahle on demand  Unsecured;
! no impairment
2017 2.822 262 Payable on demand Unsecured;
o impairment
TOTAL 2018 P11,246 P10,489
TOTAL 2017 P15,015 P7.881
A. Amount owed by SCIPS| pertains to management fees equivalent of 6% of gross

revenue.

The Parent Company and ATIB have separate, noncentributory, defined benefit
retirement plans covering all its regular employees, in the form of a trust being
maintained by a frustee bank. Certain payments to retired employees were paid
directly by the Group to be subsequently paid by the retirement fund.

P & O Management Services Phils., Inc. (POMS), a related party which is
40.00% owned by POAL, manages the Parent Company by virtue of a
management agreement. The Parent Company’s management agreement with
POMS was further renewed on August 20, 2015 for another five years until
August 31, 2020. The terms of the agreement provide for the payment of a
monthly management fee equivalent to 5% of ATi's consoclidated income before
income tax of the immediately preceding month.

Amount owed by DP World Asia Holdings Limited-Regional Operating, a related
party under common control, Headquarters pertains to reimbursements for
expenses paid by the Group.

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

L 2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits P173,929 P164,256
Post-employment benefits 9,278 10,884

P189,205 P175,140
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21. Pensions

The Group’s latest actuarial valuation reports are dated December 31, 2018.
Valuations are obtained on a periodic basis. The following tables summarize the
components of pension expense recognized in the consolidated statements of
income and the funded status and amounts receognized in the consoclidated
statements of financial position for the plans of ATl and ATIB:

Pension Expense

ATI ATIB TOTAL
2018 2047 20186 2018 2017 2018 2018 2017 2018
Current service cost P33,874 P356,651 P41983 P1,708 P2,052 P3.241 P35582 P35,703 P45 224
Interes! cest on defined
benefil obligation 28,809 28,144 28,808 1,652 1,885 2,012 30,461 29,829 30,820
Intesest income on ptan
assels _{22,252) (20,587) (21,286) (1,613) (1,853) (1.579) (24,085} (22,240}  (22,867)

Net pension expense P40,431 P44,208 P49,503 P1,547 P2,084 $£3,674 P41,978 46,292 PE3NTT

Current service cost is charged under "Labor cost” account included in "Costs and
expenses excluding government share in revenues” in the consolidated statements
of income. Interest cost on defined benefit obligation and interest income on plan

assets are included in “Finance cost" account in the consolidated statements of
income (see Note 19).

Pension Liability as at December 31

ATI ATIB TOTAL
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Present value of pension
obligations {(P474,061) (P527,936) (P33,941) (P28,298) (P508,002) (P557,234)
Fair value of plan assets g 422,308 413,305 30,941 30,856 453,249 444,161
Pension asset {liability) (P51,753) (P114,631)  (P3,000) P1,558 {P54,753) (P113,073)

Changes in the Presenf Value of Pension Obligations

ATI ATIB TOTAL
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Present value of pension

obligations at beginning of

year P527,936 P553,235 P29,298 P31,330 P557,234 P584,565
Current service cost 33,874 36,651 1,708 2,052 35,582 38,703
Interest cost 28,809 28,144 1,653 1,685 30,462 29,829
Benefits paid (41,747) (30,093) (2,249) {498} (43,996} {30,591)
Actuarial loss {gain} (74,811) (€0,001) 3,531 {5,271) {71,280} (65,272)
Present value of pensicn

obligations at end of year P474,061 P527,338 P33,941 P29,298 P508,002 P557,234
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Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

ATI ATIB TOTAL
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of year P413,305 P411,724 P30,856 £28,9%4 P444.161 P440,708
Actual return on plan assets:
Interest income 22,252 20,587 1,813 1,653 24,085 22,240
Actual contributions 58,024 21,650 2,445 881 60,469 21,841
Remeasurement loss an

plan assels (29,526) {9,963) {1,924) {174) (31,450) (10,137)
Benefits paid {41,747 (30,093) {2,249} (498) (43,996) {30,591)
Fair value of plan assefs at

end of year P422,308 P413,305 P30,941 P30,855 P453,249  P444,161

The components of retirement benefits recognized in other comprehensive income
are as follows:

ATI ATIB TOTAL
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2018 2018 2017 2016
Actuarial gain {less) due to:
Changes in Mnancial
assumplions P47, 701 P16,666 PE3,446 P5,B94 P938 P5380 P53,595 P17604 P68,806
Changes in
demographic
assumptions 29,153 {1,068) 24,308 {3,669) 3,919 4,513 25484 2,851 28,821
Experience adjustment {2,043) 44,403 (6,093} (5,7586) 414 3.801 (7,799) 44,817 (2,292)
Remeasuremen loss on
plan assets [29,526} (S,863)  (i1,185) {1,924 {174)  (2,825) (31,450} (10.337)  (13,810)

P45,285 P50,038  P70475 (P5.455) P5,037 Pi1,049  P39,830 55135 P81,525

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains recognized in the consolidated statements
of changes in equity is P110.1 million and P70.2 million as at December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively.

Plan Assets

The plans entitle a retired regular or full-time employee to receive a [ump sum
amount equivalent to one (1) month salary for every year of credited service. Period
of service shall be reckoned from date hired to date of retirement, death, permanent
disahility, or severance,

The defined benefit pension plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as
interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

Contributions will be made at the start of each year based on the funding
requirements and recommendations indicated in the latest actuarial valuation
reports.

The Group's plan assets consist of the following:

ATI ATIB TOTAL

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents P38,840 P28,745 P3,419 P1.514 P42 259 P30,258

Investment in UITF 5,343 56,590 381 2,400 5724 58,820

Equity instruments 66,383 65,691 4,643 4,924 71,026 70,615
Investment in government

securifies 286,757 238,538 20,567 20,148 307,364 258,684

Debt instruments 7,801 7.634 702 701 8,503 8,335

Other receivables 17,144 16,108 1,229 1,169 18,373 17.278

P422,308 P413,305 P30,941 P30,856 P453,249 P444 161

All equity instruments and government securities have guoted prices in active
markets.
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All government securities are issued by the Philippine government and are rated
Baa3 by Moody's or BBB by Standard & Poors.

The principal assumptians used in determining pension benefit obligations for the
Group’s plans are shown below:

ATI _ ATIB
2018 2017 2018 2017
Discount rate at end of year 7.3% 57% 7.4% 5.8%
~ Salary increase rate 4.0%-5.0% 3.0%-5.0% 4.0%-5.0% 5.0%

Assumptions for mortality rate are based on the 2017 Philippine Intercompany
Mortality Table.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is as foilows:

ATI ATIB
2018 2017 2018 2017
Average expected future
service years 11 14 13 11
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:
3 2018
Expected Benefit Payments
ATI ATIB
Within 1 Year P§5,502 P2.104
Within 1 - 5 Years 181,043 12,584
More than 5 Years 1,737,962 253,070
2017
Expected Benefit Payments
ATI ATIB
Within 1 Year P48,568 F1,192
Within 1 - 5 Years 194,834 8,810
More than 5 Years 2,102,931 124,234

Sensitivity Analysis

As at December 31, 2018, the reasonably possible changes to the relevant actuarial
assumptions holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts below:

ATI ATIB e
1% 1% 1% 1%
. __Increase Decrease Increase  Decrease
Discount rate (P444,594) P507,485 (P31,107) P37.221
Salary increase rate 510,301 {441,626) 37,440 (30,877)

The Group expects to pay P48.8 million in contributions to defined benefit pension
plans in 2019,
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Basic EPS is computed as follows:

2018 2017

22. Earnings Per Share (EPS) Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

2016

{a) Net income attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent

Company (in thousands) P2,881,448 P2.486,993 £1,902,391

(b) Weighted average number
of common shares

outstanding {in thousands) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Basic/diluted EPS3 atfributable

to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company (a/b) P1.44 P1.24 P0.95

The Parent Company does not have potential common shares or other instruments
that may entitle the holder to common shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the same as
basic EPS.

23. Commitments and Contingencies

Agreements within _the Scope of Philipping Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service

Concession Arrangements

a. The Parent Company is authorized by the PPA to render cargo handling services
at the South Harbor until May 2013. On October 19, 2007, the cargo handling
services contract was extended until May 2038 under the terms mutually agreed
upon with the PPA (see Note 2).

In accordance with the Investment Plan which was revised in December
2014 pursuant to the Third Supplement to the Carge Handling Contract, the
Parent Company has committed to invest US$385.7 million from 2010 to
2028, for the rehabilitation, development and expansion of the South harbor
facilities. The commitment is dependent on container volume. The
Investment Plan is subject to joint review every two (2) years, or as ofien as
necessary as mutually agreed, to ensure that the same conforms to actual
growth levels, taking info account introduction of new technologies and
aliowing the Parent Company the opportunity of a fair return on investment.

Government Share

- For storage operations, the Parent Company shall pay an annual fixed
government share of P55 million payable quarterly and a government
share of 30% of its annual gross storage revenue in excess of
P273 million.

- For international containerized cargo operations, the Parent Company
shall pay guarterly fixed government share of US$2.25 million plus a
variable government share amounting to 20% of its total gross revenues.

- For general carge operations, the Parent Company shall remit
government share amounting to 20% of its total gross revenues collected
from arrastre services and 14% of its total gross revenues collected from
stevedoring services for general cargoes.
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- For domestic terminal operations, the Parent Company shall remit
govemment share amounting to 10% of its total gross revenues derived
from its domestic cargo handling and passenger terminal operations.

b. The Parent Company is authorized by the PPA to render cargo handling services
at the Container Terminal “A-1," Phase 2 at the Port of Batangas for 25 years
starting July 1, 2010. For arrastre operations, the Parent Company shall pay an
annual fixed government share of U3%2.26 million for the first 2 years, US%4.68
million for the 3" year, US$5.08 million for the 4™-7% year, and U$$5.33 million
for the 8"-25" year. The Parent Company shall also remit annual variable
government share based con committed yearly percentage share multiplied by
whichever is higher of the projected gross income in the bid proposal or actual
gross income,

c. ATl and ATIB are authorized by the PPA to render cargo handling and
passenger services, supply base operations, porterage services, berth
management, parking services, passenger terminal retail ouflets, weighbridge or
weighing operations, water supply services, vehicle booking system, security
services, and leasing/sub-leasing of areas and facilities in the Port of Batangas
Phase 1 from October 1, 2015 until September 30, 2025. For these operations,
ATl and ATIB shall pay a fixed govermment share amount of P112.7 million for
the first 3 years, which shall escalate by 5% and 4% on the 4% and 5™ years and
3% for the remaining 5 years. In addition, ATl and ATIB shall remit annual
volume-triggered government share of 10% and 20% for domestic cargoes and
passenger terminal fees and for foreign cargoes, respectively, once defined
threshold volumes are met.

Upon recognition of the fair value of the fixed fees representing the government
share under the concession agreements as discussed above, the Group also
recognized the corresponding port concession rights payable (see Note 2). The
movements in the port concession rights payable are as follows:

2018 2017
Balance as at January 1 P8,306,580 P8,985,870
Accretion of port concession rights payable 238,718 267,399
Payments during the year (781,790) {776,075)
Effects of exchange rate changes 603,374 329,386
Balance as at December 31 P8,866,882 P8.,806,580

Aqgreemenis outside the Scope of Philipping Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service
Concession Armmangements

a. The Parent Company has a 5-year lease agreement with PPA effective
April 3, 2012 covering a land adjacent to the Container Freight Station (CFS)
area of the Container Terminal "A-1" with a monthly lease rental of P0.4 miiion,
subject to a yearly escalation of 5%. As of December 31, 2018, the lease
agreement indicating a rnonthly rental of P1.7 million until 2023 is pending
finalization.
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As at December 31, the Parent Company has outstanding commitments for
future minimum lease payments under the above operating lease, which fall due
as follows:

2018 2017
Within one year P20,403 P6,357
After one year buf not more than five years 66,310 22,904

P86,713 P29,261

The Parent Company has a 25-year lease agreement until Aprit 2021 covering
the land in Calamba, Laguna to be used exclusively as an Inland Container
Depot for which the Parent Company pays an annual rental of P0.1 million,
subject to an escalation of 7% once every two years.

The contract was revised in 2004, changing the monthly rate to P0.5 million in
January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2003 and PC.7 million in January 1, 2004 fo
December 31, 2005, subject to an escalation of 8% every 2 years starting
January 1, 2006. The menthly rates amounted to P1.2 million, P1.1 million and
P1.1 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectivaly.

The future minimum rentals payable under operating leases as at December 31
are as follows:

L 2018 2017
Within one year P14,396 P14,396
After one year but not more than five years 31,096 45,492

P45,492 P59,888

The Parent Company has a 5-year lease contract commencing on
February 1, 2017 over two parcels of land located in Sta. Mesa, City of Manila
with a monthly lease rental of P0.6 million, subject to an escalation of 7% once
every two years. This [and is being exclusively used as an off-dock caontainer
depot.

The future minimum rentals payable under operating lease as at December 31
are as follows:

2018 2017
Within one vear P7,164 PE, 732
After one year but not more than five years 15,511 23,073

P22,675 F29,805

The Parent Company has entered a 25-year lease contract commencing on
February 15, 2018 for a parcel of land located at barangay Calibuyo, Tanza,
Cavite, with a monthly lease rental of P35 per square meter, subject to an
escalation of 5% beginning February 15, 2020 and every 2 years thereafter. The
lease premises shall be used exclusively as a port terminal, inland clearance
depot, warehouse, and for other activities related or ancillary thereto.
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The future minimum rentals payable under operating leases as at December 31
are as follows:

2018 2017
Within one year P16,517 P -
After one year but not more than five years 90,011 -
After more than five years 433,811 -
P540,339 P -

e. The Group has contingent liabilities for lawsuits and various other matters
occurring in the ordinary course of business. On the basis of information
furnished by its legal counsel, management believes that none of these
contingencies will materially affect the Group's financial position and financial
performance.

24. Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

The Group has various financial assets and liabilities such as cash and cash
equivalents, frade and other receivables, deposits, equity securities, trade and other
payables, and port concession rights payable which arise directly from its operations.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise financing for the Group's
capital expenditures and operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. The BOD reviews and agrees on
policies for managing each of these risks.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk management policy centers on reducing the Group’s
overall interest expense and exposure to changes in interest rates. Changes in
market interest rates relate primarily to the Group’s cash in banks and cash

equivalents.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest
bearing financial instrument is as follows:

2018 2017

Fixed Rate Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents* P6,867,826 P6,944,580
*Excluding cash on hand amounting to PO.7 million and PO0.6 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

respectively.

Fair Value Sensitivity Analysis for Fixed Rate Instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date
would not affect profit or loss.

Liquidity Risk

The Group monitors its risk of shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers the maturity of both the Group’s financial investments and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations, among others. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Cantractual Cash Flows

As at Carrylng Oon Less than 3o

December 31, 2018 Amount Demand 3 Months 12 Months ttoS Years > 3 Years Total
Trade and other

payables™ P3,101,409 P345.689 P492,020 P2,263,700 P - P - P3,101,409
Port cancession

rights payable §,866,882 - 197,152 591,457 4,003,742 8,373,061 13,185,412

Total P11,968,281 P345,689 P689,172 P2,855,157 P4,003,742 P8,373,061 P16,266,821

‘excluding due lo governmen! agencies amounting fo PE96.0 million

Contractuzl Cash Flows

As at Carrying on Less than 3o

December 31, 2017 Amount Demand 3 Months 12 Menths 1io0 5 Years > 5 Years Total
Trade and other

payables® P2.080,206 Pzes,094 P764,116 P1,048,995 P - P - P2.080,205
Port concassion

rights payable 8.806,580 - 195,500 587,400 3SELTO07 9,181,705 13948512

Total P10,886.766 P268,084 Pa59,918 P1,834, 396 P1.983707  P9,181,705 P16,028,818

“excluding dus to government egencies emounting (o P610.0 million

Credit Risk _

Credit risk on trade and other receivables represents the risk of loss the Group would
incur if credit customers and counterparties fail to perform their contractual
obligations. '

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. [t is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish {o trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. |n addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant, A regular/annual review and evaluation of accounts is being implemented
1o assess the credit standing of customers.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. The
Group does not have frade and other receivables for which no loss allowance is
recognizzd because of collateral. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables represent the maximum credit exposure.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which
comprise cash in bank and cash equivalents, deposits and FVOCI - equity, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to.the carrying amount of these instruments. The Group
trades only with reputable banks and recegnized third parties.

Exposure to credit risk is maonitored on an ongeing basis. Credit checks are being
performed on all clients requesting credit over cerfain amounts. Credit is not
extended beyond authorized limits, established where appropriate through
consultation with a professional credit vetting organization. Credit granted is subject
to regular review, to ensure it remains consistent with the clients’ current credit
worthiness and appropriate to the anticipated volume of business.
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Financial information on the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at
Decembeér 31, 2018 and 2017, without considering the effects of collaterals and other
risk mitigation techniques, is presented below.

Note 2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents* 6 P6,867,826 P6,944 580
Trade and other receivables - net 7 742,027 490,466
Deposits 12 41,040 33,845
Equity securities 12 2,652 2,652
P7.471,543

P7,653,5645

*excluding cash on hand amounting to P0.7 million and PO.6 million as af Decéﬁ*zber 31, 2018 and 2017,

respeclively.

The table below shows the credit quality of the Group's financial assets based on
their historical experience with the corresponding debtor.

As at December 31, 20138

Grade A Grade B Grade C Total
Cash in banks and
cash equivalents P6,867,826 P - P - P6,867,826
Trade and other
receivables - net 407,285 334,742 - 742,027
Deposits 41,040 - - 41,040
Equity securities 2,652 - - 2,652
P7,318,803 P334,742 P - P7,653,545
As at December 31, 2017 L
i _ Grade A Grade B Grade C Total
Cash in banks and
cash equivalents P6,944 5380 P - P - P6,944, 5380
Trade and other
receivables - net 322,594 167,872 - 490 466
Deposits 33,845 - - 33,845
Equity securities 2,652 - - 2,652
7,303,671 P -

P167.872

P7,471543

Grade A receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that always pay on
time or even before the maturity date. Grade B includes receivables that are
collected on their due dates provided that they were remindead or followed up by the
Group. Those receivables which are collected consistently beyond their due dates

and require persistent effort from the Group are included under Grade C.

Cash in banks is considered good quality (Grade A) as this pertains to deposits in

reputable banks.

Trade and Other Receivables

The exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by industry is as follows:

Shipping lines
Others

Note 2018 2017
P459,388 P343,124
o 282,639 147,342
7 P742,027 P490,466
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There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. Of the total
trade and other receivables which are neither past due nor impaired, 100% are of
high grade quality instruments because there was no history of defauilt on the agreed
terms of the contract.

An analysis of the credit quality of trade receivables and other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired and the ageing of tfrade receivables that were past due
but not impaired as at December 31, 2017 is as follows:

2017

Neither
Past Past Due but not Impaired Past
Due nor <30 30 - 61 - Over  Due and
Total  Impaired Days 60 Days S0 Days 80 Days  Impaired
Trade receivables P427 867 P415,739 P2.500 Po- P - P - PS.628
Other receivables 81,201 24,675 5,571 13,333 4,205 24443 8474
P509,068 P440.414 P8,071 P13,333 P4,205  P24,443 P18.602

impaired trade and other receivables as at December 31, 2017 had a gross camying
amount of P18.6 million. As at December 31, 2017, the impairment loss relates fo
several customers that have indicated that they are not expecting to be able to pay
their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

Expected Credit Loss Assessment as at December 31, 2018

The Groﬁp allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to external
ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow
projections and available press information about customers) and applying expected
credit judgment. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative
factors that are indicative of the risk of default.

Exposures within each credit risk grade are segmented by industry classification and
an ECL rate is calculated for each segment based cn delinquency and actual credit
loss experience.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
and ofher receivables as at December 31, 2018:

Gross Impairment
Carrying Loss Credit-
Amount Allowance __impaired
Current (not past due) P734,209 P - No
1 - 30 days past due 2,887 - No
31 - 60 days past due 3,570 - No
61- 90 days past due 858 - No
More than 90 days past due 13,155 12,652 Yes
Balanice at December 31, 2018 P754,679 P12,652

Loss rates are based on actual credit foss experience over three years considering
circumstances at the reporting date. Any adjustment to the loss rates for forecasts of
future economic conditions are not expected to be material. The Group applies the
simplified approach in providing for expected credit losses prescribed by PFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision and applies a provision
matrix. The application of the expected loss rates to the receivables of the Group
does not have a material impact on the financial statements.

The maturity of the Group’s trade and other receivabies is less than one year so the
lifetime expected credit losses and the 12-month expected credit losses are similar.
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Movement in the Allowance for Impairment in Respect of Trade and Other
Receivables

Individually Colfectively
2018  Impaired mpaired

Balance at January 1 under

PAS 39 P18,602 P4,160 P14,442
Adjustment on initial

application of PFRS 9 - - -

Balance at January 1 under

PFRS 9 18,602 4,160 14,442
Reversals during the year ~ (5,950) - {5,950)

Balance at December 31 P12,652 P4,160 P8,492

The significant change in the gross camying amount of trade receivables that
contributed also to the change in the impairment loss allowance during 2018 refers to
the reversals in allowance for impairment during the year. The reversals resulted
from review of credit risks profiling of customers and upon identification of
receivables with specific doubtful accounts.

Cash in Banks and Cash Eguivalents

The Group held cash in banks and cash equivalents of F6.9 billion as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The cash and cash equivalents are held
with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated Grade A.

Impairment on cash in banks and cash equivalents has been measured on a
12-monih expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The
Group considers that its cash in bank and cash equivalents have low credit risk
based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties and any ECL is expected to
be immaterial.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has foreign cumrency financial assets and liabilities arising from US dollar
denominated revenues, government share, and other foreign currency-denominated
purchases by operating units.

The Group's policy is to manage its foreign currency risk by using a combination of
natural hedges as well as buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

As part of its foreign currency risk strategy, commencing July 1, 2014, the Group
hedged the spot exchange risk on the highly probable forecast US dollar revenue
transactions using a non-derivative financial instrument, port concession rights
payable, which is denominated in US dollar. The financial liability creates an
exposure to the functional currency which offsets the foreign currency exposure on
the highly probable US dollar revenue stream. This type of hedging relationship was
designated as cash flow hedge.

The Group had assessed that 80% of the US dollar denominated stevedoring
revenue for the designated period is highly probable. However, the Group had
designated 67% of the monthly US dollar revenue as the hedged iterns for the next
thirty six months from the date of designationi.e., July 1, 2014.

In 2017, the designated hedged item reached its 3rd year and ceased accordingiy.
The Group re-designated 50% of the monthly US dollar revenue as the hedged item
for the next forty-two months.
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The Group uses the port concession rights payable as a hedging instrument to
hedge the spot exchange risk in the highly probable forecast transactions.

The Group decided to terminate the Hedging instrument on November 30, 2018. A
sensitivity analysis has been prepared comparing the impact on unrealized foreign
exchange losses on the CRP under the Fair Value method and continuing the cash
flow hedge. The fair value method is more beneficial to the Group.

The Group’s foreign currency-denominated accounts as at December 31 are as
follows:

2018 2017
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents US$45,648 UsS3386
Trade and other receivables - 190
45,648 576

Liabilities
Trade and cther payables 2,998 2,860
Port concession rights payable 142,611 146,156
145,609 149,016
Net foreign currency-denominated liabilities (US$99,961) (US$148,440)
Peso equivalent (P5,255,949) (FP7,411,609)

The exchange rates applicable for US dollar as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
P52.58 and P49.93, respectively.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
the US dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
income hefore income tax and equity.

Eifect on

Increase (Decrease) in Income Before Effect on

U.S. dollar Exchange Rate income Tax Equity
2018

+5% {P262,787) (P183,958)

-5% 262,797 183,958
2017

+5% (370,580) (259,406)

-5% 370,580 259,406

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group considers capital to include capital stock, additional paid-in capital,
retained earnings, fair value reserve and hedging reserve. The Group manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes from prior
year.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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The table below shows the capital structure of the Group as at December 31:

Note 2018 2017
Capital stock P2,000,000 P2,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300
Retained e:arnings 13,585,013 11,575,652
Hedging reserve - (207,620)
Fair value reserve (5,820) (5,820)
Total 16 P15,843,493 P13,626,512

25. Financial Instruments

The table below presents a comparison by category of carrying amounts and
estimated fair values of all the Group's financial instruments as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

2018 2017

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Note Amount Value Amount Value

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P6,868,485 P6,868,485 6,945,189 P6,945,189
Trade and other receivables - net id 742,027 742,027 490,466 490,466
Deposits 12 41,040 44,298 33,845 39,589
7,651,552 7,654,810 7,469,500 7,475,244
Equity securities 12 2,652 2,652 2,652 2,652

P7,654,204  P7,657,462 P7.472,152 P7,477,896

Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables™ 14 P3,101,409 P3,101,409 P2,080,206 P2,080,206
Port concession rights payable 8,866,882 9,060,531 8,806,580 9,895,597

P11,968,291 P12,161,940 P10,886,786 P11,975,803

*excluding due to government agencies amounting to P696.0 million and P610.0 mitlion in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables are approximately equal to their carrying amounts due to their
relatively short-term nature.

Nonderivative Financial Instruments
Quoted market prices have been used to determine the fair values of listed equity
securities. The fair values of unquoted equity securities are not reliably determinable.

For noninterest-bearing deposits, the fair value is estimated as the present value of
all future cash flows discounted using the prevailing market rate on interest for a
similar instrument. The discount rates used are 7.0% in 2018 and 4.3% in 2017.

The fair value of port concession rights payable was estimated at the present value

of all future cash flows discounted using the applicable rates for similar types of
loans ranging from 7.06% to 7.61% in 2018 and 5.42% to 5.78% in 2017.
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Fair Value Hierarchy

The table below presents the fair value hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

As at December 31, 2018 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Equity securities 12 P233 P - P1,719
Port concession rights
payable - 9,060,531 -
P933  P9,060,531 P1,719
As at December 31, 2017 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Equity securities 12 P833 P - F1,719
Port concession rights
payable - 9,895,597 -
P933  P9,895597 P1,719

There have been no transfers from one level to another in 2018 and 2017.

26. Revenues From Obe?aﬁons

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of services in the following major
service lines:

2018 2017 2016
Revenues from Operafions
Stevedoring P5,368,521 P4.833,068 4,041,808
Arrastre 4,572,477 3,715,092 3,644 314
Logistics 72,726 104,286 108,417
Special and other services 2,262,954 1,950,726 1,454,623
P12,276,678 P10,603,172

P9,249,162
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Asian Terminals, Inc.

A. Bonifacio Drive

Port Area, Manila

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the separate financial
statements of Asian Terminals, Inc. (the "Company”), as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
and for the years then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2018.

QOur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic separate financial
statements of the Company taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration is the respansibility of
the Company’s management.

This supplementary information is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, and is not a required part of the basic separate
financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the basic separate financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic separate financial
statements taken as a whole,

R.G. MANABAT & CO.
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

As at December 31, 2018

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning

P455,597

Adjustments:
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - cash flow
hedge
Deferred tax benefit
Unrealized actuarial gain

329,386
(695,466)
(35,027)

Unappropriated Refained Earnings, as adjusted,
beginning

54,490

Net Income based on the face of AFS

Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except
those attributable to Cash and Cash Equivalents)

Unrealized actuarial gain

Fair value adjustments (M2M gains)

Fair value adjustment of investment Property
resulting to gain

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP -
gain

Deferred tax benefit

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the
retained earnings as a result of certain
transactions accounted for under the PFRS

P2,713,127

215,287

Subtotal

2,497,840

Add: Non-actual losses

Depreciation on revaluation increrent (after tax)

Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net (except
those attributable to Cash and Cash Equivalents)

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP -
loss

Loss on fair value adjustment of investment
property (after tax)

603,374

Net income actually incurred during the period
Add (Less):
Dividend declarations during the period
Appropriations of Retained Eamings during the
period
Reversals of appropriations
Effects of prior pericd adjustments
Treasury shares

3,101,214
(900,000)

(4,500,000)
3,700,000

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted,
ending

P1,455,704
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We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the separate financial
statements of Asian Terminals, Inc. (the "Company"), as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
and for the years then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2019.

QOur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinien on the basic separate financial
statements of the Company taken as a whole. The supplementary information inciuded in
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards is the responsibility of the Company's
management.

This supplementary information is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, and is not a required part of the basic separate
financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the basic separate financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic separate financial
statements taken as a whole.
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Framework for the Preparation and Presentatlon of Fmanmal
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 j First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting

(Revised) | Stendards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate

Armendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-
time Adopters

Amendment ta PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-ime Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2008 - 2011 Cycle:
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards - Repeated Application of PFRS 1 |

Annual improvements to PFRSs 2609 - 2011 Cycle:
Borrowing Cast Exemption

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle:
PFRS version that a first-time adopter can apply

Annual lmprovements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle:
Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-ime adopters

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

rAmendrnerlts to PFRS 2: Group Cash-setiled Share-
based Payment Transactions

Annual Improvements to PFR3s 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Meaning of 'vesting condition’

Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transacfions

PFRS 3 Businéss Combinations

(Revised) Annuzl Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:

Classification and measurement of contingent
consideration

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle:
Scope exclusion for the formation of joint arrangements

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Confracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 8, Financial
Instruments with PFRS 4, [nsurance Contracts
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PFRS 5 | Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Dlscontmued % [
Operations
Annual Improvements {o PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle: -
Changes in method for disposal
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaltuation of Mineral Resources v
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures ﬁ
Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition
Ameéndments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7. Reclassification of
Financial Asseis
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition
( Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsefting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendmerts to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS g and Transition Disclosures
Annual improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle: v
‘Continuing involvement' for servicing cantracts
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Offsetting disclusures in condensed interim financial v
statements
PFRS 8 Lperatlng Segments
Annual Improvements to F'FRSS 2010 -~ 2012 Cycle:
Disclosures on the aggregation of operating segments
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Hedge Accounting and Amendments o PFRS 9, PFRS 7 v
and PAS a9
-
PFRS 9 Fmancrai tnstruments
{2014)
PFRS 10 Consuolidated ananmal Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12;
Consolidated Financial Statements Joint Arrangements
and Cisclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Coniribufion of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28;
Invesiment Entities: Applying the Consclidation
Exception
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 Not Not |

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

v

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12;
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arangements
and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Amzndments to PFRS 11: Acceunting for Acquisitions of
Intetzests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Cansolidated Financial Statements, Joint Amangemenis
and Disclosure of Inlerests in Other Entities: Transition

Euidance

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011);
fnvestment Entities -

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entities: Applying the Conselidation
Exception

Annual lmprovements to PFRS= 2014 - 2016 Cycle:
Clarification of the scope of the standard

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Measurement of short-term receivabies and payables

]‘
(
|

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle:
Scope of portfolio exception

PFRS 14

Reguiatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 16 l Leases

Philippine Accounting Standards

' PAS1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1; Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial r
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Ameg@dmentsto PAS 1; Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Presentation of Financial Statements - Comparative
Information beyond Minimum Requirements

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Presentatian of the Opening Statement of Financial
Position and Related Notes

Amendments to PAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

PAS 2

Inventories

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure initiative

PAS 8

Accounting Poficies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Period

.

PAS "

Construction Centracts

L



Not

INTERPRETATIONS * AopaliiEhotiie i 5 -
el e ~Adopted: | Applicable !
| Effective as of De 3 AR e e
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery of 3
Underlying Assets
Arra?ndments fo PAS 12: Recoegnition of Deferred Tax v
Assets for Unrealized Losses
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of v
Servicing Equipment
Annual Improvements {o PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycie:
Restatement of accumuiated depreciation (amaorntization) v
on revaluation (Amendments fo PAS 16 and PAS 38)
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of v
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer v
Plants
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
A ded
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: v
Ernployee Contributions
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 201 4 Cycle:
Discount rate in a regional market sharing the same v
currency - e.g. the Eurczone
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disciesure of v
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in & Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Dlsclosures v
ised
(Revised) | nnual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: “
!' Definition: of ‘related party'
PAS 26 Ac:coﬁnting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 Separate Flnanmal Statements v
ded
(Amended) [ endments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011): .
Investment Entities
Amendments to PAS 27; Equity Method in Separate v
Financial Statements
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
(Amended) =) - dments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contribuion of Assets between an Investar and its v
Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation v
Exception
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle:
Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value v




PHrLIPFlNE‘FiNANGI' [
iHTERf'RETATIGNS

PORTING STANDARDS AND.

'Aqapted :

‘Mot

‘Adopted

]

Not

|
Applicabie |
=

Financiai Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

L4

Finzncial Instruments: Disclosure and Prasentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

|
i T

L

}_/-‘\_mendmeni to PAS 32: Classification of Rights lssues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assefs and
Financial Liabilities

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Financial Instruments Presentation - [ncome Tax
Consequences of Distributions

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
interim Financial Reporting - Segment Assets and
Liabilities "

Annuaf Improvements ta PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Disclosure of information "elsewhere in the interim
financial report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disciosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assefs

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Restatement of accumulated depreciation {amortization)
on revafuation (Amendments toc PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation ard Amortization

PAS 39

Finencial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Armendments to PAS 39: Transiticn and Initial
Recegnition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Farecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 38: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4; Financial
Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7. Reclassn"catmn of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS T: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation iFRIC-9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged ltems

Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
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PAS 40 [ Investment Propeny v
Annual [mprovements to PFRSs 2611 - 2013 Cycle:
Inter-relationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 (Amendment to v
PAS 40)
Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of [nvestment ”
Property
\_PAS 41 Agriculture v __J
Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer v
Plants
Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and v
Simifar Liabilittes
[FRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar >
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Detemining Whether an Arrangement Corntains a Lease v
IFRIC § Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, %
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - v
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC ¥ Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 o
Financial Reparting in Hyperinflationary Econcemies
[FRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments fo Phitippine Interpretation IFRIC-2 and 5
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reperting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12 Senvice Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v
IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Armendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, i
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
! IFRIC 18 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface v
Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance v
. Consideration =
| [FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments v
| sic-7 Introduction of the Euro v
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to i
Cperating Activities
[_5!0-15 Operating Leases - [ncentives v
SiC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Siatus of an Enfity or v
its Shareholders




2011-06 Investment Property - Acguisition of Investment
properties - asset acquisition or business combination?

_ FHILIPPINE FINANGIAL REFG nNG STANDARDS AND g = Not ot |
i INTEHERHATTQN bt pe b THPE . | Adopted | i
.-I.Effécﬁﬁa*as  of De: cember 31,20 ; e ﬁdnpted {E-pplcables)
} R i : e ¥ PR
SIC-27 Evaluatlng tne Substance of Transactrons Involvmg the " '
Legal Form of a Lease l
81C-29 | Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v |
SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising y l
} Services ‘
SIC32 | Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
Phifippine Interpretations Committee Questions and Answers I
PIC Q&A PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph 9 - Revenue recognition |
2006-01 for sales of property units under pre-completion i ]
contracts
PIC Q&A PAS 27.10(d) - Clarification of criteria for exemption from v “
2006-02 presenting consolidated financial statements
PIC Q&A FAS 1.103(a) - Basis of preparation of financial
2007-01- statements if an entity has not applied PFRSs in full v
Revised
PIC Qa8.A PAS 20.24.37 and PAS 39.43 - Accounting for
2007-02 government loans with low interest rates [see PIC Q&A v
No. 2008-02]
_
PIC Q&A PAS 40.27 - Valuation of bank real and other properties v
2007-03 acquired (RCPA)
PIC Q&A PAS 101.7 - Application of criteria for a qualifying NPAE "
2007-04
PIC Q&A PAS 19.78 - Rate used in discounting post-emplayment
2008-01- benefit obligations v
Revised .
PIC Q&A PAS' 20.43 - Accounting for government loans with low %
2008-02 interest rates under the amendments to PAS 20
PIC Q&A Framawork 23 and PAS 1.23 - Financial statements v
2009-01 prepared on a basis other than going concern
PIC Q&A PAS 39 AG71-72 - Rafe used in determining the fair P
2008-02 value of government securities in the Philippines
PIC Q3A PAS 29.AG71-72 - Rate used in determining the fair v
2010-01 value of govemment securities in the Philippines
PIC Q&A PAS 1R.16 - Basis of preparation of financial statements v
2010-02
1 PIC Q&A PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - v
2010-03 Current/non current classification of a callable term loan
PIC Q&A PAS 1. 10(f) Reqmrements for a Third Statement of y
2011-01 Financial Position
PIC Q&A PFRS 3.2 - Common Control Business Combinations =
2011-02
PIC QE&A Accounting for Inter-company Loans =
2011-03 o
PIC Q&A PAS 32.37-38 - Costs of Pubiic Offering of Shares v
2011-04
PIC Q&A PFRS 1.01-D8 - Fair Value or Revaluation as Deemed 3
2011-05 Cost -
PIC Q&A PFRS 3, Business Combinations {2008), and PAS 49,
L




" PHILIPRINE FINANCLM:REPGRTTHE STANDARDS_AND 2 N;t Bt 1
Jy{'_EE;P_REIAﬂE}HS‘ i | Adopted | N i
Effective as of December 31, 2 i s S LT  Adopted. jonplicable
PIC Q&A PFRS 3.2 - Application of the Poaling of [nterests
2012-01 Method for Business Combinations of Entities Under v
Common Control in Consolidated Financial Statements
PIC Q&A Cost of a New Building Constructed on the Site of a ;
2012-02 Frevious Building
PIC Q&A Appllcabmty of SMEIG Final Q&As on the Application of v
2013-01 IFRS for SMEs to Philippine SMEs
PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2013 v
2013-02
PIC Q&A PAS 19 - Accounting for Employee Benefits under a
2013-03 Defined Contribution Plan subject to Requirements of v
(Revised) | Republic Act (RA) 7641, The Philippine Retirement Law
PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2015 A
2015-01
PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2018 "
2016-01 :
1=
| PIC Q&A PAS 32 and PAS 38 - Accounting Treatment of Club ”
201602 Shares Held by an Entity
PIC Q&A Application of PFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
2016-04 Customers™ on Sale of Residential Properties under Pre- v
Completion Contracts
PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2017 il v
2017-01
PIC Q&A PA&.2 and PAS 16 - Capitalization of operating lease v
2017- 02 cost as part of construction costs of a building
PIC Q&A PAS.28 - Elimination of profits and losses resuiting from .
2017-03 transactions between associates and/or joint ventures
PIC Q&A PAS 24 - Related party relationships between parents, y
201704 subsidiary, associate and noa-controlling shareholder
PiC Q&A PFRS 7 - Frequently asked questions on the disclosure
2017-C5 requirements of financial instruments under PFRS 7, v
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
PIC Q&A PAS 2, 16 and 40 - Accounting for Collector's Hems v
201706
PIC Q&A PFRS 10 - Accounting for reciprocal holdings in v
2017-07 associates and joint ventures
PIC Q&A PFRS 10 - Requirement to prepare consolidated
2017-08 financial statements where an entity disposes of ifs ; v
singfe investment in a subsidiary, associate or joint .
venture
| PIC Q&A PAS 17 and Philippine Interpretation SIC-15 -
2017-08 Accounting for payments between and among lessors v
and lessees
PIC Q&A PAS 40 - Separation of property and classification as v
2017-10 investment property
PIC Q&A PFRS 10 and PAS 32 - Transaction costs incurred to
2017-M1 acquire outstanding non-centrolling interest or to sell v
non- controllmg interest without a Ioss of control 2
PIC Q&A Subseguent Treatment of Equity Component Arising v
201712 from Intercompany Loans
PIC Q&A Voluntary changes in accounting poficy v
2018-01




Lird
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| Effe s of December 31 =5 ST B Al
. PIC Q&A Non- controlleng interests and goodwill impairment test 1

2018-02

PIC Q&A Fair value of PPE and depreciated replacement cost

2018-03 v

PIC Q&A Inability to measure fair value reliably for biological & ) -

2018-04 assets within the scope of PAS 41

PIC Q&A Maintenance requirement of an asset held under lease B

2018-05 v

PIC Q&A Cost of investment in subsidiaries in SFS when poaling o

2018-06 is applied

PIC Q&A Cost of an associate, joint venture, or subsidiary in

2018-07 separate financial statements

PiC Q&A Accounting for the acquisition of non-wholly owned v

2018-08 subsidiary that is not a business

PIC Q&A Classification of deposits and progress payments as .

201809 monetary or non-monetary itermns

PIC Q&A Scope of disclosure of inventory write-down &

201810

PIC Q&A Classification of land by real estate developer ”

2018-11

PIC Q&A PFF:‘.S 15 - Implementation issues affecting the real >

2018-12 estata industry

S EY

. PIC Q&A Conforming changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2018 o
| 2018-13 ' |

PIC Q&A PFRS 15 - Accounting for cancellation of real estate o

2018-14 sales

PIC Q&A PAS 1 - Classification of advances te contractors in the o

2M8-15 nature of prepayments

PIC Q&A PFRS 13 - Level of Fair Value Hierarchy of Government

2018-16 Securities using Bioomberg's standard rule on fair value v

hierarchy

Legend:

Adopted - means a particular standard or inferpretation is relevant fo the operations of ihe enlity (even if it has no effect
or no material effect on the financial statements), for which there may be a related particular accounting policy made in
the financial staternents and/or there are cumrent fransactions the amounts or balances of which are disclosed on the face
ar in the notes of the financial statements.

Not Adopted - means a particular standard or interpretation is effective but the enfity did not adopt it due fo either of
these two reasons: 1) The entily has deviated or deparfed from the requirements of such standard or inferprefation; or 2}

The standard provides for an option fo eanly adopt it but the entity decided ofherwise.

Not Applicable - means the standard or interpretation is not relevant at all fo the operations of the entity.
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The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
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Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 894 1985

Internet www.kpmg.com.ph

Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Asian Terminals, Inc. and its Subsidiaries
A. Bonifacio Drive

Port Area, Manila

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Asian Terminals Inc. (the “Company”) and its Subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”) as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2018, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our
report thereon dated February 28, 2019.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in the
following accompanying additional components is the responsibility of the Group's management.

=  Map of the Conglomerate
=  Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68-E

This supplementary information is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.
!

ALICU’\ S. COLUMBRES
Partner
CPA License No. 069679
SEC Accreditation No. 1590-A, Group A, valid until September 29, 2019
Tax Identification No. 120-964-156
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-27-2017
Issued September 5, 2017; valid until September 4, 2020
PTR No. MKT 7333613
issued January 3, 2019 at Makati City

February 28, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila

PRC-BOA Regisiration No. 0003, valid untif March 15, 2020
SEC Accreditation No. 0004-FR-5, Group A, vafid until November 15, 2020
IC Accreditation No, F-2017/010-R, valid until August 26, 2020
R.G. Manabal & Co., a Philippine parinership and a member firm of the KPMG netwerk of independent  BSP - Selected External Auditors, Category A, valid for 3-year audit period
member firms affilizted with KPMG Intemational Cooperative ("KPMG International’), a Swiss entity. (2017 to 2019)
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
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Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Public Accountants
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity as of December 31, 2018 and 2017
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
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Supplementary Schedules
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A. Financial Assets 1
B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related

Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) 1
Amounts (Receivable) Payable to Related Parties which are
Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
Intangible Assets - Other Assets
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Indebtedness to Related Parties

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Capital Stock
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Reconciliation of Retained Earnings for Cash Dividend Declaration

Report of Independent Public Accountants on Reconciliation of Retained Earnings for
Cash Dividend Declaration

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings for Cash Dividend Declaration for Asian Terminals Inc.
Tabular Schedule of Standards and Interpretations as of December 31, 2018
Conglomerate Map

Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators



ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A.

Financial Assets
December 31, 2018
(in thousands)

Financial assets

Name of issuing entity
and association of each

Number of shares or
principal amount of bonds

Amount shown in the
balance sheet

Valued based on market
quotation at end of

Income received
and accrued

issue and notes reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents N/A N/A 6,868,485 6,868,485 P97,303
Trade and other receivables
- net N/A N/A 742,027 742,027 -
Depasits N/A N/A 41,040 44,298 -
Equity Securities

Quoted Equity Shares N/A 933 933 -

Unquoted Equity Shares N/A 1,719 1,719 -

P7,654,204 P7,657,462 P97,303

Schedule B.

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than

Related Parties)
December 31, 2018
(in thousands)

i e I Balance at
Name and designation of | Balance at t?eglnnlng of Kdditions Amounts Amounts Gt | Rah-sirant Bl of
debtor period collected written-off :
period
Officers 23,293 ?20.251 (P23,998) £0 0] PO | P19546
Related Parties 1,294 12,386 (12,451) 0 0 0 1,229
P24 587 P32,637 (P36,449) PO PO PO | P20,775




Schedule C.

December 31, 2018
(in thousands)

Amounts Payable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements

Name and designation of | Balance at beginning of s Amounts Amounts Balance at end
debtor period Additions paid written-off Cierany - Phsh-carman of period
ATI Batangas, Inc. P56,473 450,267 | (P515,138) .t PO PO (P8,398)
Tanza Container Terminal,
Inc. 0 16,361 - g - . 16,361
£56,473 P466,628 | (P515,138) 0 0 P0 P#7,963
Schedule D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets
December 31, 2018
{in thousands)
Other
= Charged to |Charged to ?
o o Additions at changes Ending
Description Beginning balance aita ;:ost :Srfs : cc::t:i:ts additians balancs
*pe (deductions)
Pleag‘.e refer to Note 11 of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Schedule E. Long-term Debt

December 31, 2018
(in thousands)

Title of Issue and type of obligation

Amount authorized by
indenture

Amount shown under
caption "Current portion
of long-term debt" in
related balance sheet

Amount shown under caption
"Long-Term Debt" in related
balance sheet

Not Applicable




Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Parties

December 31, 2018
(in thousands)

Name of Issuing entity and association of each issue Amount shown in the balance sheet Valued based on market quotation at end of

reporting period

P&0O Management Services Phils., Inc.

#10,489 £10,489
Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2018
(in thousands)
Name of issuing entity of securities guaranteed by the|Title of issue of each class I::zlnf;gu;: d Amount owned by person Nature of
company for which this statement is filed of securities guaranteed 9 outstanding for which statement is filed guarantee
Not Applicable
Schedule H. Capital Stock
December 31, 2018
(in thousands)
Number of
shares Number of shares held by
Number of | reserved for
Title of lssue Number of Shares shares options,
2 authorized issued and | warrants,
outstanding | conversion Related parties Directors, officers, and Oitteirs
and other employees
rights
Common shares 4,000,000| 2,000,000 None 637,838 15,593 1,346,569




Asian Terminals, Inc.
Subsidiaries and an Associate
December 31, 2018




Asian Terminals Inc. and its Subsidiaries
Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators
For the Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016

Manner of
Consolidated KPI Calculation 2018 2017 2016 Discussion
i o 20 Increase resulted from
‘ income before : :
Return on *Capltal barSE and 18 20.7% 19.2% 16.2% highe( income before
Employed over capital other income (expense)
employed during the period.
Retumon Equty | Percntzge fne . o
attributable to equity : ity 19.6% 19.6% 16.9% R e I IO
hailders of the: Barent attributable to higher net income.
P equity holders of
the parent
Ratio of current D St high
Current ratio assets cver current 1.96:1.00 2.44:1.00 2.85:1.00 S el
liabilitos current liabilities.
gvaetlroeoqfuz?;a! et Decrease due to higher
Asset to equity ratio | attributable to 184:100 | 189:1.00 | 1.97:100 | Sty because of the
equity holders of ;
the parent e,
:?aa;;ﬁtiggtgtra;r Decrease due to higher
Debt to equity ratio equity attributable | 0.84:1.00 | 0.89:1.00 | 0.97:1.00 | Ut be.ca”hse Oft‘he
to equity holders of IEISRsE W ihe T
the parent sienhe.
Gross trade
Days Sales in receivables over Increase due to higher
Receivables (DSR) revenues multiplied 15 daye T aays 1= days accrued revenues.
by number of days
Net income over
. revenues less Increase due to higher
Net Income Margin government share in 28.8% 28.7% 25.3% raahticE:
revenues
Number of
reportable injuries
: within a given
Reportable Injury A ) L
Frequency Rate accounting period 0.73 053 1.05 Due to higher number of

(RIFR)!

relative to the total
number of hours
worked in the same
accounting period.

injuries.

*Income before other income and expense is defined as income before net financing costs, net unrealized foreign
exchange losses and others.

: RIFR is the new KPI for injuries introduced in 2014 to replace LTIFR. RIFR is a more stringent KPI as it covers not
only Lost Time Injuries (LTls) but also Medical Treatment Injuries (MTls) and Fatalities incidents.
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; x ASIAN Asian Terminals Incorporated Head Office,
k. A. Benifacio Drive, Port Area,
‘ TERMINALS Manila, Philippines 1018

P. O. Box 3021, Manila, Philippines
'. INCORPORATED Tel. Na. (632) 528 6000
ISO 14001 & OHSAS 18001 certifled

Delivering reliable and consistent services. Fax No. (632) 527 2467

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. (the “Company™) is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the separate financial statements including the schedules attached therein, as at December 31,
2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the separate financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the separate financial
statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon compietion of such audit.

NDREW OAD
Chairman of the Board

il %0

BIO HSTANCO JOSE TRISTAN P. CARPIO
President Chief Financial Officer
Signed this 26m of February, 2019
MAR 01 200
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this day of 2019, the sigratories exhibiting to me their respeclive
Passports/Driver’s License Nos., as follows;
Name D Nps. Date/Place Issued
1. Andrew R. Hoad Passport Ne. 338803908 6/22/17, HMPO
2. Eusebio H. Tanco TIN No. 141-978-255-000 7/15/1998; PHILS
3. Jose Tristan P. Carpio Passport No. P0175912B 1/9/19; Manila
Notary Public
Doc. No. {43,
tve ATTY. GILBERTO K PASIMANERO
Series szotg ’ Nﬂtar:w' hli Until D ‘ :‘ﬂlq i
Notarial Commisston 2018-015 Mia. !

IBP# 012434 Pasig 7-27-17 until 2019
PTRE Mg ROOROSS - 1-3-2019

Roll# 25473, TIN# 103-0U8-346

MCLE Compl. No, V-0006208 yitil 4-14-19



Alas Oplas & Co., CPAs

Alas Oplas & Co,, CPAs

23/F Philippine AXA Life Centre

1286 Sen. Gl Fuyal Avenue

Makati City, Prilippines 1200

Phone: (632) 759-50%0 | Fax: (632) B2T-5180
Email: accheadofice 2 ason an0nas.0om
www.alasoplascpas.com
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CERTIFICATE ON THE CONPILATION SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have compiled the accompanying separate financial statements of ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. based on
information you have provided. These separate financial statements comprise the separate statements of
financial position of ASIAN TERMINALS, INC. as at December 31, 2018, separate statements of income,
separate statemenis of comprehensive income, separate statements of changes in equity and separate
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standard on Related Services
4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements.

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the preparation and
presentation of these separate financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs). We have complied with relevant ethical requirements, including principles of integrity,
objectivity, professional competence and due care.

These separate financial statements and the accuracy and completeness cf the information used to compile
them are your responsibility.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the
accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to us to compile these separate financial
statements. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether these
separate financial statements are prepared in accordance with (PFRSs).

ALAS, OPLAS & CO._, CPAs

BOA Registration No. 0190, valid from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019

SEC AN. (Firm) 0321-FR-1, issued on February 7, 2019; effective until February 6, 2022
TIN 002-013-406-000

BIR A.N. 08-001026-000-2018, issued on January 25, 2018; effective until January 24, 2021

By:
%?CR]SELDA S. OPLAS j
Partner

CPA License No. 0063314

SEC AN. (Firm) 0321-FR-1, issued on February 7, 2013; effective unti DnF e -

TIN 132-466-039-000 ERNAL REVENUE .

BIR AN. 08-001026-002-2018, issued on January 25, 2018; effective bkkég Ve BAbaCr e S SERVICE |

PTR No. 7333596, issued on January 3, 2019, Makati City L Er ASSISTANCE DIVISION °
Dete [ APR 12 2013 | TSIS!
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February 28, 2019 i \..;
Makati City, Philippines ME PRISCAS mapio™
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 894 1985
internet www.kpmg.com.ph

Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Asian Terminals, Inc.

A. Bonifacio Drive

Port Area Manila

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Asian Terminals,
Inc. {the "Company"), which comprise the separate statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, separate statements of income, separate statements of
comprehensive income, separate statements of changes in equity and separate
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the unconsolidated financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its unconsolidated financial performance and its
unconsolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards {PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professicnal

Accountants in the Philippines {Code of Ethics) toget ' _ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statemengs [rﬁi%ﬂh

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordanc %)(H {&Ep oh
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence wg have tamed is sufficien
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. Date L APR 12 2013 Tg;q
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonahle assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Ohbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attentiorWﬁ% :
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if puchdisgleaies AedBa ;
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based ofLARSE IarsvRROCesch@nedumion
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future ¢vents or conditions may calise
the Company to cease to continue as a going concpriate Or APR 12 2013 T TSIS
L
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KPMG

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic separate
financial statements {aken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 26 to the
separate financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of
Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic separate financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management. The infarmation has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic separate financial
statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic separate financial statements taken as a whole.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Alicia S. Columbres.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

(e

ALICIA §. COLUMBRES
Partner :
CPA License No. 069679
SEC Accreditation No. 1590-A, Group A, valid until September 29, 2019
Tax Identification No. 120-964-156
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-27-2017
Issued September 5, 2017; valid until September 4, 2020
PTR No. MKT 7333613
Issued January 3, 2019 at Makati City

February 28, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FINA

(Amounts in Thousar de

FE7E

wrai

rr"; I'N
sy UFFILE
U plectresiciec sy 3 Maus 1

—c
)

rrami Divisiz=n

I 4A
Ll e
December 31
Note\ ' g098--== 2047
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6, 23, 24 P6,547,081 P6,288,607
Trade and other receivables - net 7, 20, 23 24 701,370 467 932
Spare parts and supplies 506,784 402,912
Prepaid expenses 8 502,089 550,821
Total Current Assets 8,657,324 7,710,372
Noncurrent Assets
Investments in subsidiaries and an
associate 9 165,064 161,838
Property and equipment - net 10 651,010 494 915
Intangible assets - net 11 16,976,586 14,062,501
Deferred tax assets - net 13 912,224 799,502
Other noncurrent assets 12 121,806 56,571
Total Noncurrent Assets 17,826,690 15,575,428
P26,484,014 P23,285,800
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14, 20, 23, 24 P3,520,705 P2,477 738
Provisions for claims 15 205,090 196,293
Pont concession rights payable -
current portion 22, 23, 24 218,102 189,663
Income and other taxes payable 317,482 286,903
Total Current Liabilities 4,261,379 3,150,595
Noncurrent Liabilities
Port concession rights payable - net of
current portion 22, 23 24 7,911,978 7.814 117
Pension liability - net 21 51,753 114,631
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,963,731 7,928,748
12,225,110 11,079,343
Equity
Capital stock 2,000,000 2,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300
Retained eamings 12,000,424 10,155,587
Hedging reserve - (207,620)

Fair value reserve

Total Equity

16, 23

G57|

e
G 1r " 1955 SRS

See Nofes o the Separate Financial Statements.
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017
REVENUES FROM OPERATIONS 2,25  P11277,583  P9570,352
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES 17 (2,205,300)  (1,852,671)

9,072,283 7 717.681
COSTS AND EXPENSES EXCLUDING
GOVERNMENT SHARE IN REVENUES 18, 20, 21 (4,367,669)  (3,968,770)
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Finance income 103,250 68,618
(g5 el A (A
19 (928,678) (710.562)
CONSTRUCTION REVENUES 11 2,832,241 1,202,013
CONSTRUCTION COSTS 11 (2,832,241)  (1,202,013)
INCOME BEFORE INGOME TAX 3,775,936 3038,349
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current 1,278,096 1,060,558
Deferred (215,287) (194.139)
13 1,062,809 866.419
NET INGOME P2,713427  P2.171,930

See Nofes to the Separate Financial Statements.

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
LARGE TAXDAYERS ARSISTANGE DIVISION
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR P2,713,127 P2,171,830
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
item that will never he reclassified to profit
or loss
Actuarial gains on pension liability 21 45,286 50,038
Tax on item taken directly to equity 13 (13,586) {(15,011)
31,700 35,027
ftems that are or may be reclassified to
profit or loss
Cash flow hedge - effective portion (357,154) (31,479)
Cash flow hedge - reclassified to profit or loss 653,753 328,312
Tax on items taken directly to equity 13 (88,279) (89,050)
16 207,620 207,783
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR - net of tax 239,320 242810
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

P2,952,447

P2,414,740

See Notes lo the Separate Financial Statements.

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
LARGE TAXPAYERS Assm}'a_m_EE DIVISION
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P3,775,936 P3,038,349
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 10, 11, 18 1,011,784 1,068,752
Net unrealized foreign exchange losses 565,357 325,848
Finance cost 19 506,675 518,055
Frovisions for inventory obsolescence 20,000 -
Amortization of noncurrent prepaid rental 984 984
Dividend income from a subsidiary and an
associate g 19 {132,110) (83,749)
Finance income 19 (103,250) {68,618)
Contributions to retirement funds 20, 21 (58,024) {21,050)
Reversal of allowance for impairment losses
on frade and ather receivahles 7 (5,950) -
Gain on disposals of:
Fraperty and equipment 10 (4,657} (255)
Intangible assets 11 (532) -
Loss on retirement of property and
equipment - 197
Operating income before working capital
changes 5,576,213 4,779,513
ncrease in:
Trade and other receivables {214,203} (92,756)
Spare parts and supplies {123,872) (89,161)
Prepaid expenses (351,168) {(96,630)
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (61,686) 658,818
Provisions for claims 8,797 153,649
Income and other taxes payable (64,013) 7,898
Cash generated from operations - 4,770,068 5,321,331
Finance income received 87,843 67,396
Finance cost paid (366) (357)
Income tax paid {1,183,502) {948,665)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,674,043 4,438,705
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposals of:
Property and equipment 10 4,657 335
Intangible assets 11 532 -
Acquisitions of;
intangible assets (1,915,170) (1,202,013)
Property and equipment (39,402) {171,362}

Dividends received g 1
Decrease in other noncurrent assets

Decrease (increase) in deposits

Investment in new subsidiary

[ (3,125) ' :

BURE Aﬁ%@%&nﬂ REVER 0
LARG ERS SERVI '
LARGE Toxeavs £3ksisTANCE {J%A {3k

Net cash used in investing activities

Date {1,888496)12 011,283,699
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Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Payments of;

Cash dividends 16 {P900,000) (P860,000)

Port concession rights payable 22 (669,091) (663,375}
Net cash used in financing activities (1,569,091) {1,523,375)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 220,456 1,632,331
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS . 38,018 3,538
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6 6,288,607 4,652,738
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 6 P6,547,081 P&,288,607

See Notes fo the Separate Financial Statements.

[ BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
LARGE TaXDAYERS ASSISTANCE DivVISION
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ASIAN TERMINALS, INC.

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

1. Reporting Entity

Asian Terminals, Inc. (ATl or the "Company”) was incorporated in the Philippines
and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
July 8, 1986. The Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the
Securities Regulation Code and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange, Inc. (PSE). DP World Australia (POAL) Pty. Ltd. directly owns 17.32% of
the total outstanding capital stock of ATL

The Company operates and manages the South Harbor Port of Manila and
Container Terminal “A-1,” Phase Il of the Port of Batangas in Batangas City. The
registered office address of the Company is A. Bonifacio Drive, Port Area, Manila.

2. Operating Contracts
Following are the Company's operating contracts:
a. South Harbor, Port of Manila

ATl's exclusive right to manage, operate and develop South Harbor was
renewed for a period of 25 years from May 19, 2013 to May 18, 2038 pursuant
to the Third Supplement to the Confract for Cargo Handling and Related
Services with the Philippine Ports Authority (PPA) dated October 19, 2007 (see
Note 22).

b. Port of Batangas

On January 18, 2010, the PPA issued to ATI the Notice to Award the Contract
for the Management, Operation, Maintenance, Development and Promotion of
the Container Terminal “A-1,” Phase |l of the Port of Batangas for a period of 25
years. The Caontract was signed on March 25, 2010. The Notice to Proceed
dated June 18, 2010 allowed AT to start and commence operations at the
Terminal on July 1, 2010 (see Note 22).

3. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {JASB). PFRSs which are issued by the Financial Reporting
Standards Councit (FRSC), consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards
{PASs), and Philippine Interpretations.

This is the first set of the Company's sep atealﬂv ‘Q%QF ”mé M"@EE“ Eh
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The accompanying separate financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors (BOD} on February 26, 2019.

The Company also prepares and issues consolidated financial statements for the
same period as the separate financial statements prepared and presented in
compliance with PFRSs. Said consolidated financial statements may be obtained
from the SEC.

Basis of Measurement

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on an
alternative basis on each reporting date:

ltems Measurement Bases

Equity investments at Fair Value Fair value
through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVOCI)
Pension Liability The present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan
assets

Functional and Presentation Cutrency

The separate financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand pesos (P000), except when otherwise indicated.

4. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these separate financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise.

The Company has adopted new and amendments to standards, and interpretations,
including any consequential amendments to other standards, with date of initial
application of January 1, 2018,

Adoption of New Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations starfing January 1, 2018 and accordingly, changed its
accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any
significant impact on the Company’s separate financial statements.

* PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the
previgusly published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
mede] (in 2013).

PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial assets that reflects the business model in which assets are managed
and their cash flow characteristics, including a new forward-looking expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment, and guidance on own credit risk on
financial liabilities measured at fair value. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge
accounting requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting
and introduces significant improvements by aligning the accounting more
closely with risk management.



Classification, Measurement and Impairment of Financial Assets

The following table shows the original measurement categories under PAS 39
and the new measurement categories under PFRS 9 for each class of the
Company’s financial assets as at January 1, 2018.

Qriginal New
Original New Carrying Carrying
Ciassification Classification Amount Amount

under PAS 39

under PFRS ¢

under PFRS 8

under PAS 39

Financial Assets

Cash and cash Loans and
eguivalents receivables Amortized cost P6,288,607 P§,288,607
Trade and other Loans and
receivables receivables Amortized cost 467,932 467,932
Deposits Loans and  Amortized cost
receivables 31.406 31,4086
Equity securities Available FVQCI - equity
for sale 2,652 2,652
Total financial assets P6,790,597

P&,780,597

For assets in the scope of the PFRS 8 impaiment model, impairment losses are
generally expected to increase and become more volatile. The Company has
determined that the application of PFRS 9's impairment requirements at
January 1, 2018 did not result in an additional allowance far impairment.

The Company has applied PFRS 9 retrospectively but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Company’s previous
accounting policy. '

Hedge Accounting

As permitted by the standard, the Company did not adopt the new hedge
accounting requirements and continues to apply the hedge accounting
requirements of PAS 39,

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes, |FRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Custormers and SIC-31,
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new
standard introduces a new revenue recognition model for contracts with
customers which specifies that revenue should be recognized when (or as) a
company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to
which the Company expects to be entitled.

PFRS 15 requires a contract with a customer to be legally enforceable and to
meet certain criteria to be within the scope of the standard and for the general
model to apply. It introduces detailed guidance on identifying performance
obligations which requires entities to determine whether promised goods or
services are distinct. It also introduces detailed guidance on determining
transaction price, including guidance on variable consideration and
consideration payable to customers. The transaction price will then be generally
allocated to each performance obligation in proportion to its stand-alone selling
price.



Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time,
in a manner that best reflects the Company's performance, or at a point in time,
when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer. The
standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRS. It also does not apply if two
companies in the same line of business exchange non-monetary assets to
facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a confract with a customer is
partly in the scope of another PFRS, then the guidance on separation and
measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

Due to the transition method {cumulative effect method) chosen in applying
PFRS 15, comparative information has not been restated fo reflect the new
requirements. The Company has not identified significant impacts to amounts
recognized in the financial statements in the application of PFRS 15. However,
the Company has adopted the new disclosure requirements including the
disaggregation of revenue into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors and has aligned the description of its accounting policies with PFRS 15.

fn conjunction with the adoption of PFRS 15, the Company has adopted
consequential amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service
Concession Armangements, which has no significant impact to the Company's
separate financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration. The interpretation clarifies that the transaction date to
be used for transtation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance
payment or receipt is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the
prepayment or deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For
transactions involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt
gives rise to a separate transaction date. The interpretation applies when an
entity pays or receives consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a
non-manetary asset or liability before recognizing the related item.

Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2018. However, the
Company has not early adopted the following new or amended standards in
preparing these separate financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of
these are expected to have a significant impact on the Company's separate
financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leases supersedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model
far lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet,
removing the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially
remains unchanged except for a number of details including the application of
the new lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease
guidance and new disclosure requirements.



Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were infroduced including an optional
lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases with a term of 12 months or less)
and low-value items, as well as the permission of portiolio-level accounting
instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New estimates and
judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification and
measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to reassess certain
key estimates and judgments at each reporting date were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 at or before the
date of initial application of PFRS 16.

The Company has decided it will apply the modified retrospective adoption
method in PFRS 16, and, therefore, will only recognize leases on balance sheet
as at January 1, 2019. In addition, it has decided to measure right-of-use assets
hy reference to the measurement of the lease liability on that date. This will
ensure there is no immediate impact to net assets on that date.

As at December 31, 2018 operating lease commitments amounted to PE62.8
million, which is not expected {o be matenally different from the anticipated
positicn on December 31, 2019. Assuming the Company's lease commitments
remain at this level, the effect of discounting those commitments is anticipated
to result in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately P553.1
million being recognized on January 1, 2019. However, further work still needs
to be carried out to determine whether and when extension and fermination
options are likely to be exercised, which will result in the actual liability
recognized being higher or lower. Instead of recognizing an operating expense
for its aperating lease payments, the Company will instead recognize interest on
its lease liabilities and amonrtization on its right-of-use assets.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement reguirements in
PAS 12, Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.
Under the interpretation, whether the amounts recorded in the separate financial
statements will differ to that in the tax retum, and whether the uncertainty is
disclosed or reflected in the measurement, depends on whether it is probable
that the tax authority will accept the Company chosen tax treatment. If it is not
probable that the tax authority will accept the Company chosen tax treatment,
the uncertainty is reflected using the measure that provides the better prediction
of the resolution of the uncertainty - either the most likely amount or the
expected value.

The interpretation also requires the reassessment of judgements and estimates
applied if facts and circumstances change - e.g., as a result of examination or
action by tax authorities, following changes in tax rules or when a tax authority's
right to challenge a treatment expires.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. The interpretation can be
initially applied retrospectively applying PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors if possible without the use of hindsight, or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial
application without restating comparative information.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC-23.



Prepayment Features with Negative Compensaticn (Amendments fo PFRS 9).
The amendments cover the following areas:

s Prepayment features with negative compensation. The amendment clarifies
that a financial asset with a prepayment feature could be eligible for
measurement at amortized cost or FVOC] irrespective of the event or
circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract, which may
be within or beyond the control of the parties, and a party may either pay or
receive reasonable compensation for that earty termination.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier
January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted. Retrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transitional reliefs.

* Modification of financial liabilities. The amendment to the Basis for
Conclusions on PFRS 9 clarifies that the standard provide an adequate
basis for an entity ta account for modifications and exchanges of financial
liabilities that do not result in derecognition and the treatment is consistent
with the requirements for adjusting the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset when a modification does not result in the derecognition of the
financial asset - i.e., the amortized cost of the modified financial liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified contractual cash flows using the
original effective interest rate and any adjustment is recognized in profit or
loss.

If the initial application of PFRS 9 resulis in a change in accounting policy
for these modifications or exchanges, then retrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transition reliefs.

Long-term Interesls in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to PAS 28).
The amendment requires the application of PFRS 9 to other financial
instruments in an associate or joint veniure to which the equity method is not
applied. These include long-term interests (LTIs} that, in substance, form part of
the entity's net investment in an associate or joint venture.

The amendment explains the annual sequence in which PFRS 8 and PAS 28
are to be applied. In effect, PFRS 9 is first applied ignoring any prior years'
PAS 28 loss absoiption. If necessary, prior years' PAS 28 loss allocation is
trued-up in the current year which may involve recognizing more prior years’
losses, reversing these losses or re-allocating them between different LTI
instruments, Any current year PAS 28 losses are allocated to the extent that the
remaining LTI balance allows and any current year PAS 28 profits reverse any
unrecognized prior years’ losses and then allocations against LTI

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted. Retrospective application is
required, subject to relevant transitional reliefs.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Seftfement (Amendments to PAS 19,
Employee Benefits). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or
setlement of a defined benefit plan, an entity now uses updated actuarial
assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period.
The effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss
on any setttement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other
comprehensive income.



The amendments apply for plan amendments, curtailments or settflements that
occur an or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on
or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitied.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle. This cycle of improvements
centains amendments to four standards:

Previously held interest in a joint operation (Amendments to PFRS 3,
Business Combinations and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements). The
amendments clarify how a company accounts for increasing its interest in a
joint operation that meets the definition of a business. If a party maintains or
obtains joint control, then the previously held interest is not remeasured. If a
party obtains control, then the fransaction is a business combination
achieved in stages and the acquiring party remeasures the previously held
interest at fair value.

The amendments apply to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted.

income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified
as equity (Amendments to PAS 12). The amendments clarify that all income
tax consequences of dividends, including payments on financial instruments
classified as equity, are recognized consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, Earlier application is permitted. When an entity first applies
those amendments, it shall apply them to the income tax consequences of
dividends recognized on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period.

Borrowing Costs Efigible for Capilalization (Amendments to PAS 23,
Borrowing Costs). The amendments clarify that the general berrowings poal
used to calculate eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings that
specifically finance qualifying assets that are still under development or
construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance qualifying
assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale are included in that
general pool.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
applied to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.



Effactive January 1, 2020

Amendments o References to Conceptual Framework in PFRS Standards sets
out amendments to PFRS Standards, their accompanying documents and
PFRS practice statements to reflect the issuance of the revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in 2018 (2018 Conceptual Framework). The
2018 Conceptual Framework includes:

* anew chapter on measurement;
guidance on reporting financial performance;

+ improved definitions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting
these definitions; and

« clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.

Some Standards, their accompanying documents and PFRS practice
statements contain references to, or quotations frem, the Intermational
Accounting Standards Committee's Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements adopted by the IASB in 2001 or the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2010. The
amendments update seme of those references and quotations so that they refer
to the 2018 Conceptual Framework, and makes other amendments to clarify
which version of the Conceptual Framework is referred to in particular
documents.

These amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020,

Definition of a Business (Amendments fo PFRS 3). The amendments narrowed
and clarified the definition of a business. They aiso permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a group of
assets rather than a business. The amendments:

» confirmed that a business must include inputs and a process, and clarified
that;
¢ the process must be substantive; and
o the inputs and process must together significantly contribute to creating
outputs;

+ narrowed the definitions of a business by focusing the definition of outputs
on goods and services provided to customers and other income from
ordinary activities, rather than on providing dividends or other economic
benefits directly to investors or lowering costs; and

» added a test that makes it easier to conclude that a Company has acquired
a group of assets, rather than a husiness, if the value of the assets acquired
is substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group of similar assets.

The amendments apply to business combinations and asset acquisitions in
anpual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. Earlier
application is permitted.



s Definition of Material (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentafion of Financial
Statements and PAS 8). The amendments refine the definition of material. The
amended definition of material states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify the definition of
material and its application by:

{a) raising the threshold at which information becomes material by replacing the
term ‘could influence’ with ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’;

(b) including the concept of ‘obscuring information’ alongside the concept of
‘omitting’ and ‘misstating’ information in the definition;

{c) clarifying that the users to which the definition refers are the primary users
of general purpose financial statements refered to in the Conceptual
Framework;

(d) clarifying the explanatory paragraphs accompanying the definition; and

(&) aligning the wording of the definition of material across PFRS Standards
and other publications.

The amendments are expected to help entities make better materiality
judgements without substantively changing existing requirements.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.

Deferral of the local implementation of Amendments to PFRS 10, Financial
Staternents and PAS 28, Safe or Contribution of Assels between an Investor and ils
Associate or Joint Venture

»  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and ifs Associate or Joint
Venture (Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28). The amendments address an
inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its assaociate or
joinf venture.

The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A
partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

Originally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2016 with early adoption permitted. However, on
January 13, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the effective date of these
amendments until the IASB has completed its broader review of the research
project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting
for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.

Financial Instruments

Non-denivative Financial Instruments. Non-derivative financial instruments consist of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, deposits, equity securities,
trade and other payables (except for statutory payables), and port concession rights
payable.




Recognition and Initial Measurement. Trade receivables and debt securities issued
are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisicns of the instrument.

A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component} or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing compenent is initially measured at the transaction price.

Financial Assets
Financial assets - Policy applicable from January 1, 2018

Classification and Subsequent Measuremeni. On initial recognition, the Company
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: amaortized
cost, FVOCI - debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual ferms of the cash flows.

The Company has no financial assets classified as measured at: FVOCI - debt
investment; or FVTPL,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case
all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= [tis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

* |ts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

tncluded in this category are the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, and deposits.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from dates
of acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevacably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. The
accumulated fair value reserves are never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends
are recognized as income in profit or loss unless it clearly represents a recovery of
the cost of investment.
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Included in this category is the Company’s equity instruments (included under other
nonhcurrent assets).

Business Model Assessment. The Company makes an assessment of the objective
of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because
this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

a. the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on
gaming contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

b. how the performance of the perifclio is evaluated and reported to the
Company’s management;

c. the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model} and how those risks are managed;

d. how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation
is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

e. the frequency, velume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest Assessment. Principal is defined as the
fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a
profit margin. In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of centractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers;

» contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

=  prepayment and extension features; and

= terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse features).

Financial assets - Policy applicable before January 1, 2018

The Company classifies financial assets into one of the following categories:
loans and receivables;

held-to-maturity;

available-for-sale; and
at FVTPL

The Company does not have held-to-maturity investments and financial assets at
FVTPL.
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Financial Asseis - Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses: Policy
Applicable before January 1, 2018

» Loans and receivables - Measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

»  Available-for-sale - Measured at fair value and changes therein, other than
impairment losses, interest income and foreign currency differences on debt
instruments, were recognized in OCl and accumulated in the fair value reserve.
When these assefs were derecognized, the gain or loss accumulated in eguity
was reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses. Financial liabilities
are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and Icsses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in profit or loss, Cther financial liahilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and [osses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

PFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in PAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. The adoption of PFRS 9 does not have an effect
on the Company’s accounting policies related to financial liabilities.

Included under other financial liabilities are the Company's trade and other payables
{except for due to government agencies) and port concession rights payable.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Impairment of Financial Assets - Policy Applicable from January 1, 2018.

PFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss’ model in PAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss'
(ECL) model. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at
amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not fo
investments in equity instruments. Under PFRS 9, credit losses are recognized
earlier than under PAS 39.

ECL is the probability-weighted estimate of credit loss over the expected life of the
financial instrument, representing the present value of expected cash shortfalls. The
Company applies either a 12-month ECL or a lifelime ECL. Lifetime ECL applies to
the financial assets that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk or are
already credit-impaired. The Company's approach to ECL measurement are
described in Note 23.

The Company considers the probability of default upon inftial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongeing basis
throughout each reperting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of defauit as at the date of initial recognition.
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

= |niernal credit rating
= External credit rating (as far as availablg)
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= Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’'s ability to meet its obligations

» Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor

» Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same
deblor

*  Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of debtor and changes in the operating
results of the debtor

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant risk in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment.

A default an a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 75 days of when they fall due. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when an event that has a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

* a breach of contract such as default or being mare than 75 days past due;

= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the
Company would not consider otherwise;

* it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or either financial
recrganization; or

» the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Company categorizes a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor
fails to make payments or when it is probable that the receivable will not be
collected. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or joss.

Impairment of Financiat Assets - Policy applicable before January 1, 2018

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of
financial asset is impaired.

A financtal asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The Company
first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If no objective evidence of impairment has been
identified for a particular financial asset that was individually assessed, the
Company includes the asset as part of a group of financial assets pooled according
to their credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses the group for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in the collective
impairment assessment,
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Offsetting of Financial Assefs and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the separate statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.
This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
asseis and liabilities are presented gross in the separate statements of financial
position.

Derecognition of Financial instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicabie, a part of a financial asset
or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

« the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a "pass-through™ arrangement; or

= the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a 'pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under
the liability is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the
determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes,
when necessary, based on the market values, being the estimated amount for
which assefs could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an am's length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
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The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

» Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

» level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirely in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Fair values of the financial instruments are discussed in Note 24 to the separate
financial statements.

‘Day 1' Profit. Where the fransaction price in a non-acfive market is different from
the fair value of other observable cumrent market transactions of the same
instrument or based on a valuation technigue whose variables include only data
from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or loss. In cases where no
observable data are used, the difference between the transaction price and model
value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or
when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognized the ‘Day 1" profit amount.

Spare Parts and Supplies

Spare parts and supplies are stated at the lower of cost and cumrrent replacement
cost. Cost is determined using the weighted average method and includes all
expenditures incurred in acquiring and bringing them to their existing location and
condition.

Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate

The Company's investments in subsidiaries and an associate are accounted for
under the cost method. A subsidiary is an enfity in which the Company has control.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums
through its power over the entity. The investment in subsidiaries are recagnized in
the separate financial statements from the date on which control commences until
the date on which control ceases. An associate is an entity in which the Company
has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the
Company. The investments in subsidiaries and an associate are carried in the
separate statements of financial pesition at cost less allowance for impairment
losses, if any.
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The Company has the following investments as at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Percentage of

QOwnership
2018 2017
Subsidiaries:
ATI Batangas, Inc. (ATIB) 89.17% 99.17%
Tanza Container Terminal, Inc. (TCTI) 100.00% 0%
Associate:

South Cotabato Integrated Ports Services, Inc. (SCIPSI) 3571%  3571%

TCTI was incorporated on January 18, 2018.
ATIB, TCTI and SCIPSI are incorporated in the Philippines.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of such property and equipment at the time that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its construction cost or
purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributabte costs in
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost
also includes interest incurred during the construction period on funds bormowed to
finance the construction of the projects. Expenditures incurred after the asset has
been put into operation, such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are
normally recognized as expense in the period the costs are incurred. Major repairs
are capitalized as part of property and equipment only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the items wiil flow to the Company and the
cost of the items can be measured reliably.

Port facilities and equipment include spare parts that the Company expects to use
for more than one year. These are not depreciated until ready for its intended use.
However, these are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the spare parts may not be
recoverable.

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at
cost. This includes the costs of construction and other direct costs. Bormowing costs
that are directly attributable to the construction of property and equipment are
capitalized during the construction period. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are substantially completed and
ready for its intended use. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Number of Years

Port facilities and equipment 2 - 25 or life of the operating contract,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 2 - 40 or term of the lease,
whichever is shorter
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 2 -5years
Transportation and other equipment 2-5years
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The remaining useful lives, residual values, depreciation and amortization method
are reviewed and adjusted periodically, if appropriate, to ensure that such periods
and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.

An item of property and edquipment is derecognized when either it has bheen
disposed of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the
retirement and disposal of an item of property and equipment {calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is inciuded in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

Intangible Assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are carmied at cost less any
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed o be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using the straight-line method over
the period covered by the contract or useful life, whichever is shorter. The
amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed annually. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the assef are freated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense is recognized in profit or foss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible asset. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are recognized in profit or loss and measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset.

Port Concession Righis

The Company recognizes port concession rights as intangible assets arising from a
service concession arrangement in which the grantor controls or regulates the
services provided and the prices charged, and also controls any significant residual
interests in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement, such as
property and equipment, if the infrastructure is existing infrastructure of the grantor
or the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the Company as part of the
service ¢oncession arrangements.

Port concession rights consist of:
a. Upfront fees payments on the concession contracts;
b. The cost of port infrastructure constructed and port equipment purchased, which

are not recognized as property and equipment of the Company but as intangible
asset received as consideration for such cost; and
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¢c. Future fixed government share considerations in exchange for license or right.
Fixed government share is recognized at present value using the discount rate
at the inception date with a comresponding liability recognized. Interest on the
unwinding of discount of the liability and foreign exchange differences arising
from translations are recognized in profit or loss.

Port concession rights are determined as intangible assets with finite useful lives
and are amortized using the straight-line method over the concession period or
useful life, whichever is shorter. The amortization period and the amortization
method are reviewed annualiy. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense is
recagnized in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of
the intangible asset. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are recognized in profit or loss and measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.

Port concession rights are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of
service concession arrangements or useful life ranging from 2 to 25 years
whichever is shorter.

impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries and an associate, property and
equipment and intangible assels are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, and if the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down
to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of
fair value less costs to sell or value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the
amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in profit or loss
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reparting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the esfimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment [oss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased fo its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such reversal, the depreciation
and amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
useful life.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has: (a) a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event; (b) it is probable {i.e., more likely than not)
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and (¢} a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and those risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Where some or all of the
expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shail be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share Capital
Capital Stock

Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of common shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

Additional Paid-in Capital

The amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as “Additional
paid-in capital.” Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefit.

Retained Earnings and Dividend Distribution
Retained earnings include current and prior years' results, net of transactions with
shareholders and dividends declared, if any.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability, and
deducted from equity in the Company’s separate statements of financial position in
the period in which the dividends are approved and declared by the Company’s
BOD.

Retained earnings may also include prior year adjustments and the effect of
changes in accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional
provisions.

Revenue, Cost and Expense Recagnition

Revenue from Confracts with Customers

The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a service to a
customer. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
and PPA Tariff regulations, which are all fixed amounts, for each type of services
rendered. The PPA established all relevant port regulations, basic port services and
service level requirements, liability on cargo, security, and safety. The Company’s
revenue Is well defined in PPA Operations Memorandum Circular No. 02-2018 and
revised schedule of Cargo Handling Tariff implemented on June 5, 2018.

In the comparative period, revenue was measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue recognized when the related
services have been rendered. It is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.
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The following is a description of principal activities from which the Company
generates its revenue. Revenue is disaggregated by the following service lines:

= Stevedoring

The Company generates stevedoring revenue from all works performed on
board vessel. The activity includes movement of cargoes from ship-to-shore,
shore-fo-ship lifting for inbound and outbound and transshipment including the
related stevedoring transportation and liftings from shore to yard and yard to
shore. The activity generally finishes in short period of time (i.e. 24 {0 48 hours
from the time ship arrive at the port). The Company recognizes revenue at a
point in time upon completion of service and the average credit terms is 15 to 30
days.

»  Arrasire
The Company generates arrastre revenue from portside carge handling
operations. The aclivity includes receiving, handling, custody, security and
delivery of cargo passing over piers, guays, warehouses and open storages
within the jurisdictional area of responsibility of the Company. The Company
recognizes revenue upon completion of service (i.e at 2 point in time). The
customer pays arrastre charges before the release or cargoes.

= [ogistics
Logistics operation includes trucking and handlings services. The Company
recognizes revenue upon completion of service (i.e at a point in time) and the
average credit term is 15 to 30 days.

s  Special and Other Services
Special and other services include storage, reefer monitoring, container freight
servicing, and equipment or manpower rental. Majority of these service lines
perfains to storage revenues. Storage revenues are charges from the use of
warehouses and/or open storages within the jurisdictional area of responsibility
of the Company beyond the free storage period. Customers are billed upaon
withdrawal of cargoes from the terminal (for import) or upon loading of cargoes
to vessel {for export). The Company recognizes revenues over a period of time
{(number of days the container stayed in the jurisdictional area) and the average
credit term is 15 to 30 days.

Other income
Other income is recognized at the point in time when the service has been
rendered.

Finance Income
Finance income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective
yield on the investment.

Constriuction Revenues and Costs

The Company recognizes revenue related to construction and upgrade of services
under service concession arrangement in accordance with PFRS 15. When the
construction or upgrade services are provided or delivered under concession
arrangement accounted within the scope of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, the
consideration is measured at the estimated selling price of the construction services
provided. No margin has been recognized since the estimated selling price of the
consideration services provided approximates the construction cost. The nature of
the consideration determines the subsequent accounting. The consideration is
classified as a contract asset under Intangible assets during the construction or
upgrade period in accordance with PFRS 15,
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Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized upon receipt of goods, utilization of services or
at the date they are incurred,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are
directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. The
capitalization of borrowing costs: (a) commences when the activities to prepare the
assets are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred; (b)
is suspended during extended pericds in which active development, improvement
and construction of the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets are complete. These costs are
amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related property, plant and equipment to which it is capitalized.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
these are incurred using the effective interest method.

Leases

The determination of whether an arangement is, or contains, a lease is based on
the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the assef. A reassessment is made
after the inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

(b} a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the
renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term,

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a
specific asset; and

(d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessmeni is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for
scenarios (a), (¢) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for
scenario (b).

Operating Lease

Company as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all
the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating [eases.
Operating lease paymenis are recognized as an expense in profit or less on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs such as maintenance and
insurance are expensed as incurred.

Employee Benefits

a. Short-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability 1s recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has
a present, legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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b. Pension
The Company has a funded, defined benefit pension plan, administered by a
common pension trustee, covering their permanent employees. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

The defined benefit pension asset or liability comprises the present value of the
defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets out of which the
obligation is to be settled directly. The value of any plan asset recognized is
restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of the net defined henefit pension liability, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interesf) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined pension benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit
pension liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
pension liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and ather expenses related to defined benefit
plan are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the
resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes
gains and losses on the setifement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The separate financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Company's functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to
the functional currency at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting .date are
refranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. All
differences are taken to profit or loss. Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis.

Cash Flow Hedge of a Forecast Transaction using a Non-derivative Instrument

The port concession rights payable i.e. hedging instrument is a non-derivative
monetary item. A non-derivative financial instrument is permitted to be used as a
hedging instrument only for hedges of foreign currency risk. The effective portion of
the foreign exchange gains and losses on the hedging instrument is recognized in
other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss.

The spot mavement of the port concession rights payable that is recognized in ather
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item i.e. the
highly probable forecast revenue transaction affects profit or loss. Since the impact
of the hedged risk on profit or loss arising from the highly probable forecast
transaction is expected to impact the profit or loss over future periods, the amount
recognized in the hedging reserve will remain in other comprehensive income until
the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recegnized upon receipt of goods, utilization of services or
at the date they are incurred.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are
directly aftributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. The
capitalization of bormowing costs: (@) commences when the activities to prepare the
assets are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incumed; (b)
is suspended during extended periods in which active development, improvement
and construction of the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assefs are complete. These costs are
amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related property, plant and equipment to which it is capitalized.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, censtruction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
these are incurred using the effective interest method.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on
the substance of the amangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made
after the inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

(b) a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the
renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a
specific asset; and

{d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for
scenarios (&), (c) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for
scenario (b).

QOperating Lease

Company as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all
the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs such as maintenance and
insurance are expensed as incurred.

Employee Benefits

a. Short-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected o be paid if the Company has
a present, legal or consfructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires,
terminated or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the
amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Taxes

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year, using tax rates (tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purpeoses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries and an associate.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into
account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and
interest may be due. The Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are
adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including
interpretation of tax laws and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates
and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New
information may become available that causes the Company to change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will
impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable

right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate {o the same taxahble entity and the same taxation authority.
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Value Added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the
amount of VAT, except:

= where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the tax authority, in which case the sale tax is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

» receivables and payables that are stated with amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payabhle to, the tax authority is included
as part of receivables or payables in the separate statements of financial position.

Operating Segments

The Company’'s operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to the lines of business: port and non-port, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets. Management
reviews segment reports on a regular basis.

The Company has a single reportable operating segment, as its business has been
mainly on port operations and the non-port operation is insignificant to the
Company’s total business.

The Company operates only in the Philippines which is treated as a single
geographical segment,

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
preperty and equipment and intangible assets.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the separate financial statements. They

are disclosed in the notes to the separate financial statements unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources ermnbodying economic benefit is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the separate financial statements but disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefils is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s
separate financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in
the separate financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the separate financial statements when
material.

5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s separate financial statements in accordance with
PFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses reported in the separate financial statements at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions
could result in an outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of fulure events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the
period in which the judgments and estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
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Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has
made the following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the separate financial
statements: :

Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances relevant to the Company, the functional currency of the Company
has been determined to be the Philippine peso. It is the currency that mainly
influences the price and cost of providing services.

Service Concession Arrangements. The Company has determined that the
operating contracts are within the scope of IFRIC 12, accounted for under the
intangible asset model.

The intangible assets pertaining to concession rights as at December 31, 2018 and
2017 are presented in Note 11 fo the separate financial statements.

Port Concession Rights and Port Concession Rights Payable. Estimates and
assumptions are required on the determination of the cost of port concession rights
on service concession arrangements to determine the extent to which the Cempany
receives a right or license to charge users of public service. Port concession rights
includes future fixed government share considerations in exchange for license or
right. Fixed government share is recognized at present value using the discount rate
at the inception date with a corresponding liability (port concession rights payable)
recognized. In making those estimates, the management is required to determine a
suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of port concessions rights and
port concession rights payable. The Company believes that, while the assumptions
used are reasonabie and appropriate, these estimates and assumptions can
materially affect the separate financial statements.

Operating Lease. The Company has entered into various lease agreements as a
lessee. The Company had determined that significant risks and rewards for
properties leased from third parties are retained by the lessors.

Rent expense charged to separate statements of income amounted to P46.2 million
and P53.9 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 18).

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions used in the separate financial siatements are
based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the
date of the separate financial statements. Actual results could differ from such
estimates.

Hedging of Highly Probable Forecast Transaction using a Non-derivalive
instrument.

Estimates and assumptions are required on the determination of the Company’s
highly probable dollar denominated stevedoring revenue fo determine the
Company's exposure on spot rate changes that will be hedged using a non-
derivative financial instrument which is the Corpany port concession rights payable
which is denominated in US Dollars (USD). On the inception of the hedge the
management is required to develop a highly probable revenue forecast using the
Company’s budgeted- stevedoring revenues which are adjusted based on the actual
to budget historical deviation rate. The Company believes that, while the
assumptions used are reasonable and appropriate, these estimates and
assumptions can materially affect the separate financial statements.
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The Company voluntarily revoked the designation of hedging instrument and
hedged item on November 30, 2018.

Provisions for Claims. The Company records provisions for claims for property and
equipment, cargo damage, and for pending civil and labor cases when it is
determined that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the claim
can be reasonably estimated. The determination of the amount of reserves
required, if any, is based on management’s analysis of each individual issue, often
with assistance of outside legal counsel.

The carrying amounts of provision for claims amounted to P205.1 million and
P196.3 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 15).

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 2018 2017
Cash on hand anrd in banks P402,914 P314,253
Short-term investments 6,144,167 5,974,354

23, 24 P6,547,081 P6,288,607

Cash in banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Majority of shori-term investments are on 90-day term subject to roll-over
requirements of the Company and eam interest at the prevailing short-term deposit
rates amounting to P101.1 mitlion and P66.8 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively
(see Note 19).

7. Trade and Other Receivabhles

Note 2018 2017
Trade receivables P612,512 P367,149
Advances to officers and employees 18,906 23,201

Receivable from insurance 18,513 -

Interest receivable 15,590 2,304
Due from related parties 20 23,890 73,971
Receivable from escrow fund 13,635 13,635
Other receivables 10,026 5,324
713,072 485,584

Allowance for impairment losses (11,702) {17,652}
23, 24 P701,370 P467,832

Trade and other receivables are noninterest-bearing and generally have credit term
of thirty (30) days.
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Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables

are as follows:

Individually Collectively
Impaired Impaired Total
Balance at January 1, 2017 P4.900 P12,752 P17.,652
Provisions during the year - 864 864
Reversals during the year ~_{864) - (864)
Balance at December 31, 2017 4,036 13,616 17,652
Reversals during the year - (5,950) ~ {5,950)
Balance at December 31, 2018 P4,036 P7.,666 P41,702
8. Prepaid Expenses
Note 2018 2017
Taxes P822,215 P479,730
Rental 12 43,562 4071
Insurance 2,414 45,011
Others 33,898 22,109
P902,089 P550,921
Taxes pertain to the Company's input VAT credits,
9. Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate
Note 2018 2017
At cost
Subsidiary - ATIB 8a P150,717 P150,717
Subsidiary - TCTI 9b 3,125 -
Associate - SCIPS! 9¢ 11,222 11,222
P165,064 P161,939
a. The following table illustrates summarized financial information of ATIB:
2018 2017
Current assets P483,632 P817,366
Noncurrent assets 2,215,929 1,752,380
Total assets P2,699,561 P2,569,746
Current liabilities P390,915 P373,981
Noncurrent liabilities 661,670 734,403
Total liabilities P1,052,585 P1,108,384
Revenues £1,003,240 P1,037,197
Expenses (743,807) ~ (682,397)
Net income P259,433 P354,800
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ATIB's exclusive right to manage and render arrastre, stevedoring, storage and
related cargo handling services at the Port of Batangas for Phase | was
renewed on October 20, 2005 for a period of 10 years until 2015, renewable for
another 10 years upon mutual agreement of PPA and ATIB. The contract with

the PPA includes carge handling and operation and management of the
passenger ferminals.

On October 2, 2015, ATIB signed a Confract for the Management, Operation,
Maintenance and Development of Phase |, Port of Batangas with a ferm of
October 1, 2015 until September 30, 2025.

b. The following table shows the summarized financial information of TCTI:

2018
Current liabilities P13,236
Total liabilities P13,238
Expenses {P16,361)
Net loss (P16,361)

The Company intends to develop a barge terminal in Tanza, Cavite to cater to
Philippine Economic Zaone Authority cargoes. In preparation for this project,
TCTI was incorporated on January 18, 2018.

c. The following table shows the summarized financial information of SCIPSI:

2018* 2017*
Current assets P202,871 P187,757
Noncurrent assets 64,180 79,988
Total assets P267,051 P267,745
Current liabilities P45,064 P153,719
Noncutrent liabilities 2,611 2,318
Total liahilities P47,675 P156,037
Revenues P385,924 P330,018
Expenses (219,867) ~ (199,455)
Net income P166,057 F130,563

* Based on unaudited financial staterents
The Company has a 35.71% interest in SCIPSI, which is engaged in arrastre,
stevedoring and other related cargo handling services, except porterage, in
Makar Wharf, General Santos City, Philippines.

ATIB, TCTI and SCIPSI are not listed in any public exchange.

Dividend income of P132.1 million and P83.8 million was received from ATIB and
SCIPSIin 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Notes 19 and 20).
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10. Property and Equipment - net

The movements in this account are as follows:

2018
Port Fumiture, Transportation
Facillties and Leasehold Fixtures and and Gther  Consiruction

Equlpment __ Improvemsnts Equipment Equipment in-progress Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P104,414 P516,834 P479,145 P170,540 £73,910 P1,344,842
Additions 1,887 364 144,107 37,328 66,028 249,725
Dispasals - - [18,242) (25,825) - (44,067}
Reclassifications {37} - 24,022 995 (20,980] -
Balance at end of year 106,264 517,198 625,032 183,049 118,958 4,550,5M
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 86,101 348,985 297,478 107,364 - 849,928
Depreciation 1,746 10,987 58,392 22,625 - 93,630
Disposals - - {18,242) [25.825) - {d44,067)
Batance at end of year 87,847 359,952 337,628 104,084 - 899,491
Carrylng Amount Pg,417 P157,248 P287,404 P78,985 P118,858  £651,010

2017
Port Fumiture, Transporistion
Facilites and Leasehold  Fixtures and and Other Consiruglion

Equipment Improvemenis Equipmant Equipment in-progress Total
Cost
Balance at beginnirng of year Pi04,414 PS14,602 PI96,045 P151.661 P13,993  P1,180,715
Additiens - 2,232 71,133 24,297 73,700 174,362
Disposals - - (767) {5,548) - {8,315}
Raclassifications - - 12,900 883 {13,783} -
Retirements - - {186) [753) - (219)
Balance at end of year 104,414 516.834 479,145 170,540 73910 1,344 843
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 93,372 338.009 232,499 85,468 - 759,848
Degreciation 2,229 10,976 65,812 18,020 - 97,037
Disposals - - (637) (5.548) - {6,235)
Retirements - - {145) (576} - (722)
Balance at end of year €8,101 348,985 297,478 107,384 - 848,928

Carrying Amount P8,313 P167,849 P181.667 P63,178 P73.910 P494 915

The Company has non-cash additions as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 which
amounted to P210.3 milliocn and P64.6 million, respectively.

11. Intangible Assets - net

The movements in this account are as follows:

2018
Port Concession Rights
Fixed
Upfront Government Part
Fees Share Infrastructure Total

Cost
Batance at beginning of year P282,000 P8,342,270 P14,159,956 P22,784,228
Additions - - 2,832,241 2,832,241
Disposals - - {55,960) {55,960}
Baiance at end of year 282,000 8,342,270 16,936,237 25,560,507
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 52,004 2,575,256 6,094,375 8,721,725
Amoriization 11,280 292,853 614,021 918,154
Disposals - - (55,958) (55,958)
Balance at end of year 63,374 2,868,109 6,652,438 9,583,921
Carrying Amount P218,626 P5,474,161 P10,283,749 P15,976,586
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2017

Port Concession Rights

Fixed
Upfrent  Government Port

Fees Share  Infrastruciure Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P282 000 P&,342,270 P12,958,084 P21,582 354
Additions - - 1,202,013 1,202,013
Disposals - - (141) {141)
Balance at end of year 282,000 8,342,270 14,159,956 22,784,226
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 40,814 2,282,403 5,426,934 7,750,151
Amortization 11,280 292,853 667,582 971,715
Disposals - - (141) (141}
Balance at end of year 52,084 2,675,266 6,094,375 8,724,725
Carrying Amount P229,906  P5,767,014 P8,085,581 P14,062,501

The unamortized capitalized borrowing costs as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
amounted to P73.5 million and P78.3 million, respectively. No borrowing costs were
capitalized in 2018 and 2017.

The Company has non-cash additions as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 which
amounted to P817.1 million and P149.4 million, respectively.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the contract asset under Port Infrastructure
amounted to P2.8 billion and P1.3 billion respectively. Movement in the contract
assets represents only the construction of port facilities and eventual putting into
service in accordance with the Investment Plan (see Note 22).

12. Other Noncurrent Assets

Note 2018 2017

Taxes P79,243 P20,216
Deposits 23, 24 38,600 31,406
Rental 1,311 2,297
Equity securities 23, 24 2,652 2,652
P121,806 P56,571

Taxes pertain to noncurrent portion of the value-added input tax on capital goods
exceeding P1.0 million.

Deposits mainly represent payments related to property leases and utilities. This
account includes noninterest-bearing rental deposits on a lease agreement that was
carried at fair value as of initial recognition determined based on the present value
of future cash flows discounted using effective interest rate of 3.70%. The carrying
amounts of these deposits at amortized cost amounted to P14.8 million and
P12.6 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The difference between the original amount of noninterest-bearing rental deposits
and their present values at "Day 1" qualified for recognition as prepaid rental. The
prepaid rental (included in current and noncurrent prepayment) amounted to
P2.3 million and P3.3 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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The current portion of such prepaid rental, presented under “Prepaid expenses -
rental” account amounted to P43.6 million and P4.1 million as at December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 8).

Equity securities consist of investrments in quoted and unquoted shares.

13. Income Tax

A reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate on income
before income tax follows:

2018 2017
Statutory income tax rate 30.00% 30.00%
Changes in income tax rate resulting from:
Income subjected to final tax (0.80) {0.66)
Dividend income from a subsidiary and an
associate (1.05) (0.83)
Effective income tax rate 28.15% 28.51%
The movements in deferred tax balances are as follows:
Net Recognized December 31
Balance at In Profit  Recognized Deferred Deferred
2018 Note January 1 or Loss In OCI  Tax Agsets Tax Liabilities Net
Unreaiized foreign
exchange loss - net P257,757 P170,668 P - P428,428 P - P428,426
Port cancession fights
payable reiated to
fixed governmeant
share 361,791 37,054 398,845 398,845
Provisions for claims 58,889 2,639 - 61,528 - 61,528
Pension liability 21 34,389 (421) (13,586) 20,382 20,282
Excess of cost over
current replacement
cost of spare paris
and supplies 11,469 6,000 17,469 - 17,469
Accrued operating
lease 4,343 (201 - 4,142 4,142
Impairment losses on
receivables 5,295 {1,785) 3,610 3,510
Rental deposit 1,585 (342) 1,243 - 1,243
Unamortizad
capltalized
barrowing casts and
custom duties (24,995) 1,674 - - (23,321) (23,321)
Cash flow hedge 88,879 - (88,979) - -
Nei tax assets
(iiabilities) P799,502 P215,287 (P102,585) P935,545 (P23,321) P812,224
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Net Racognized

December 31

Balance at In Profit Recognized Deferred Deferred

2017 Note January 1 or Loss InOCl  Tax Assets  Tax Liabilities Net
Port concession

rights payable

related to fixed

govemnment share P319,605 P42,188 P - P351.781 P361,791
Unrealized foreign

excharge loss - net 159,525 98,232 - 257,757 287 757
Cash flow hedge 178,029 - (89,050) 88,879 83,979
Provisions for claims 12,794 46,095 - 58,889 58,889
Pension liability 21 42 610 6,790 {15,011) 34,380 34,389
Excess of cost over

current

repiacement cost

of spare parts and

supplies 11,469 19,489 11,469
Impairment losses on

receivables 5,285 - 5,295 5,295
Accrued operating

lease 4,971 (828) 4,343 4,343
Rental deposit 1,835 (250) 1,585 1,585
Unamortized

capiaized

borrowing costs

and custorn duties (28,709) 1,714 (24,885) {24,995)
Net tax assets

{liabilities) P79 424 P184,139 (P104,081) (P24,995) P799,502

P824,487

Net deferred tax assets have been recognized because management believes that
the Company will earn sufficient future taxable profits against which it can utilize the

benefits therefrom.

14. Trade and Other Payables

Note 2018 2017
Trade P275,364 P354,209
Accrued expenses:
Marketing, commercial and promotion 516,588 446,842
Perscnnel costs 194,547 137,719
Professional fees 144,784 150,426
Finance costs 140,039 128,902
Repairs and maintenance 46,709 70,541
Trucking expense 30,790 28,751
Rental 22 27,431 23,254
Security expenses 18,149 22,431
Corporate social responsibility 11,154 13,774
Utilities 10,760 9,426
Safety and envirocnment 2,055 2,102
Miscellaneous 74,501 67,736
Equipment acquisitions 1,133,236 214,012
Due to government agencies 22 681,994 605,435
Shippers’ and brokers' deposits 110,403 142,509
Due to related parties 20 18,887 7,881
QOther payables 83,314 51,786
23, 24 P3,520,705 P2.477,736
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Following are the terms and conditions of the liabilities:

= Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally seftled on 30 to 60-
day terms.

= Accrued finance costs are normally settied quarterly and semi-annually
throughout the financial year.

= (Other payables are noninterest-bearing and are nomally settled within twelve
months from inception date,

15. Provisions for Claims

Note 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P196,293 P42.644
Provisions during the year 18 14,587 154,389
Payments during the year {5,790) {740)
Balance at end of year P205,090 P196,293

Provisions relate to property and equipment, and cargo damage and other claims. It
is expected that most of these provisions will be settled within the next financial year
or on demand.

18. Equity

Pursuant to the registration statement rendered effective by the SEC and permit to
sell issued by the SEC both dated April 7, 1995, 1 billion common shares of the
Company were registered and may be offered for sale at an offer price of P5.10 per
commeon share. On March 26, 1999, another registration statement was rendered
effective by the SEC and permit to sell issued by the SEC for 1 billien comman
shares of the Company and may be offered for sale at an offer price of P1.00 per
common share. As at December 31, 2018, the Company has a total of 2 billion
issued and outstanding common shares and 827 stockholders.

Capital Stock - P1 Par Value
The Company has 2.0 billion issued and fully paid capital stock, from its 4.0 billion
authorized common shares, as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Retained Eamings

On April 26, 2018, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting
to P900.0 million or P0.45 per share payable on June 18, 2018 to common
shareholders of record as at May 22, 2018.

On April 27, 2017, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting
to P860.0 million or P0.43 per share payable on June 15, 2017 to common
shareholders of record as at May 19, 2017.

-33-



On December 20, 2018, the Company’'s BOD approved the reversal to the
unappropriated retained earnings of the amount of P3.7 billicn out of the already
approved appropriation of P9.7 billion, for capital expenditures for 2016 and 2017.
Furthermore, the Company’s BOD approved an appropriation of the retained
earnings amounting to P4.5 billion for capital expenditures for the next 2 years. The
Company's BOD also approved on the same date a budget amounting to P3.0
billion for capital expenditures which include yard and berth development as well as
construction of new facilities and equipment acquisition for 2019. The capital
expenditures will strengthen the Company's operations and capability to handle
growth.

On December 19, 2017, the Company's BOD approved the reversal to the
unappropriated retained earnings of the amount of P1.1 billion out of the already
approved appropriation of P7.9 billion, for capital expenditures for 2015 and 2016.
Furthermore, the Company's BOD approved an appropriation of the retained
earnings amounting to P2.9 billion for capital expenditures for the next 2 years. The
Company's BOD also approved on the same date a budget amounting to P8.8
billion for capital expenditures which include yard and berth development as well as
construction of new facilities and equipment acguisition for 2018. The capital
expenditures will strengthen the Company's operations and capability to handie
growth.

Fair Value Reserve
Fair value reserve amounting to P5.8 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
represents unrealized loss on equity securities.

Hedqing Reserve

The hedging reserve includes the effective portion of the cumulative net change in
the fair value of the port concession payable used as cash flow hedge against
foreign currency risk.

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the effective fair value changes
of the Company's cash flow hedge that was recognized in other comprehensive
income amounted to P250.0 million and P22.0 million, respectively, net of tax.

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company's cash flow hedge
that was reclassified to profit or loss from other comprehensive income amounted to
P457.6 million and P229.8 million, respectively, net of tax.

On November 30, 2018, the management voluntarily revoked the designation of
hedge instrument and hedge items. The management has determined that the
hedge is retrospectively effective until the date of voluntary termination, including
the recognized ineffectiveness in profit or loss.

Based on the management's assessment, continuation of hedging will only lead to
recognition of higher unrealized foreign exchange losses that would affect their
forecasted profits in the long-run. As a result, the Company reclassified the entirety
of unrealized foreign exchange losses pertaining to hedging from other
comprehensive income to its profit or loss. For the year ended December 31, 2018,
the amount recognized from Hedging reserve to profit or loss amounted to P254.4
million, net of tax.
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17. Government Share in Revenues

This account consists of the PPA’s share in revenues of the Company as stipulated
in the agreements discussed in Nofes 2 and 22. The PPA’s share in gross revenues
includes variable government share amounting to P2.2 billion and P1.9 billion in
2018 and 2017 respectively (see Note 22).

18. Costs and Expenses Excluding Government Share in Revenues

Note 2018 2017
Labor costs 21 P1,324,511 P1,174,012
Depreciation and amortization 10, 11 1,011,784 1,088,752
Equipment running 785,229 583,907
Taxes and licenses 257,375 243,099
Management fees 20 176,083 149,706
Facilities-related expenses 156,106 115,245
Security, health, environment and safety 118,571 109,019
Marketing, commercial and promotion 78,153 39,638
Insurance 77,825 61,644
Professional fees 73,987 20,232
Rental 22 46,163 53,913
General transport 46,113 41,133
Pravision for claims 15 14,5687 154,389
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 7,227 4,729
Others 193,955 149 352

P4,367,669  P3,968,770

Labor costs include salaries, benefits and pension expense.

Spare paits and supplies used and included under eguipment running amounted to
P293.2 million and P224.6 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Provision for inventory obsolescence included in prefit or loss amounted to
P20.0 million in 2018 and nil in 2017.

19. Other Income and Expenses

Finance income is broken down as follows:

Note 2018 2017

Interest on cash in banks and shori-term
investments (4] P101,128 P66,768
Accretion of rental deposits 12 2,122 1,850
P103,250 PE68,618
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Finance cost is broken down as follows:

Note 2018 2017

Interest on port concession rights payable P499,752 P511,141
Interest component of pension

expense - net 21 6,557 7,557

Interest on bank leans/credit facilities 366 357

P506,675 P519,055

Interest on port concession rights payable pertains to the interest on the unwinding
of discount of said liability (see related policy on port concession rights in Note 4).

Others consist of the following:

Note 2018 2017

Dividend income from subsidiaries and

an assaciate 9, 20 P132,110 P83,749
Lease and other income - net 20 47,305 83,272
Foreign exchange gain - others 35,558 9,146
Foreign exchange iosses - port

concession rights payable (136,851) (107,169)
Foreign exchange losses - cash flow

hedge 22 (603,374) (324,388)
Income from insurance claims - 263

(P525,252)  (P260,125)

Foreign exchange losses - port concession rights payable resulted from revaluation
of foreign cumrency denominated port concession rights payable.

Foreign exchange losses - cash flow hedge in 2018 includes the amount
reclassified from other comprehensive income resulting from the voluntary
revocation by management of the designation of the hedge instrument and hedge
items (see Note 16).

20. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to he related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to confrol the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entities.
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The Company, in the normal course of business, has the following transactions with

its related parties:

Qutstanding Balance

Amount Due from Duse to
of the Related Related
Category/Transaction Ref Year Transaction Parties Parties Terms Conditions
Subsidiaries
ATIB
= Managsment income a 2018 P23,921 P - P -
2017 38,680 - -
* Dividend income a 2048 69,420 -
2017 68,420 - - -
= Rental income a 2018 1,106 -
2017 1,105 - - -
* Advances a 2018 64,871 8,398 Payable on demand Unsacured;
na impairment
2007 72,028 58473 - Payable ondemand  Unsecured
TCT!
» Advances ] 2018 16,361 13,236 Payable on demand Unsecured;
no impairment
2017 Payable en demand  Unsecured
Assoclate
' Managemen MComa b 2018 10,285 957 Payable on demand Unsecured;
na impairment
2017 8,805 1.0632 Paysble on demand  Unsecurad:
no impaiment
= Diadand incoms b 2018 62,690 -
2017 14,329 -
Post-employment
Benefit Plan
= Relirement fund c 2018 37,897 9,424 Payabie on demand Unsecured;
no Imgairment
2017 37.662 16,204 Payatie on demand  Linsecured:
W PRt
Others
= Management fees d 2018 P176,083 P10,48%  Payabla within ten Unsecured
{10} days of the
following month
2017 149,706 7,831 Payable withm ten Unsecured
(10) days of the
following month
= Advances f 2018 2,456 273 Payable on demand Unsecured;
no impairment
f 2017 2,622 262 Payable on demand  Unsecured;
= 0 irnpErment
TOTAL 2018 P23,830 18,887
TOTAL 2017 P73.971 P7 581

a. The Company has a management agreement with ATIB for a period of five

years untit August 31, 2022, The terms of the agreement provide for a monthty
management fee calculated using a pre-agreed rate applied to ATIB's income
before income tax. Management fees eamed are inciuded under lease and
other income (see Note 19).

The Company rents.out cargo handling equipment to ATIB on an annual basis.
Total rent income is included under lease and other income (see Note 19).

The Company received dividend income from ATIB in 2018 and 2017.

The Company ccllects certain receivables and pays certain expenses on behalf
of ATIB.

Amount owed by SCIPSI pertains to management fees equivalent of 6% of
gross revenue. Management fees earned are included under lease and other
income (see Note 19).

The Company also received dividend income from SCIPSI (see Notes 9
and 19).
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c. The Company has a noncontributory, defined benefit retirement plan covering
all its regular employees, in the form of a trust being maintained by a trustee
bank. The benefits are based on the employee's years of service and final plan
salary. Contributions made in 2018 and 2017 amounted to P58.0 million and
P21.0 million, respectively {see Note 21). Certain payments to retired
employees were paid directly by the Company to be subsequently paid by the
retirement fund.

d. P & O Management Services Phils., Inc. (POMS), a related party which is
40.00% owned by POAL, manages the Company by virtue of a management
agreement. The Company's management agreement with POMS was further
renewed on August 20, 2015 for another five years until August 31, 2020. The
terms of the agreement provide for the payment of a monthly management fee
equivalent to 5% of the Company's income before income tax of the
immediately preceding month.

e. The Company shouldered expenses in behalf for TCTI for the latter's pre-
operating working capital requirements, particularly its rental.

f. Amount owed by DP World Asia Holdings Limited-Regional Operating
Headquarters pertains to reimbursements for expenses paid by the Company.

The short-term compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as

follows:
2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits P179,929 P164,256
Post-employment benefits 9,276 10,884
P189,205 P175,140

21. Pension

The Company's latest actuarial valuation report is dated December 31, 2018.
Valuations are obtained on a periodic basis. The following tables summarize the
components of pension expense recognized in the separate statements of income
and the funded status and amounts recognized in the separate statements of
financial position.

Pension Expense

Note 2018 2017
Current service cost P33,874 36,651
Interest cost on defined benefit
obligation 19 28,809 28,144
Interest income on plan assets 19 (22,252) {20,587)
Net pension expense P40,431 P44,208

Current service cost is charged under “Labor cost” account included in “Costs and
expenses excluding government share in revenues” in the separate statements of
income (see Note 18). Interest cost on defined benefit obligation and interest
income on plan asset are included in *Finance cost” account in the separate
statements of income (see Note 19).
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Pension Liability as at December 31

2018 2017
Present value of pension obligations (P474,061) (P527,936)
Fair value of plan assets 422,308 413,305
Pension liability {P51,753) (P114,631)
Changes in the Present Value of Pension Obligations
Note 2018 2017
Present value of pension obligations at '
beginning of year P527,936 P553,235
Current service cost 33,874 36,651
Interest cost 19 28,809 28,144
Benefits paid (41,747) {30,093)
Actuarial gain (74,811) (60,001)
Present value of pension obligations at
end of year P474,061 P527,936
Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
2018 2017
Fair vatue of plan assets at beginning of year P413,305 P411,724
Actual return on plan assets:
interest income 22,252 20,587
Actual contributions 58,024 21,050
Remeasurement loss on plan assets (29,526) {9,863)
Benefits paid (41,747) {30,093)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year P422,308 P413,305

The components of retirement benefits recognized in other comprehensive income

are as follows:

2018 2017
Actuarial gain due to:
Changes in financial assumptions P47,701 P16,666
Changes in demographic assumptions 29,153 (1,068)
Experience adjustment {2,043) 44,403
Remeasurement loss on plan assets {29,525) (9,963)
P45,286 P50,038

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains recognized in the separate statements of
changes in equity included in the “Retained eamings” account is P95.5 million and

P50.2 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Plan Assets

The plan entitles a retired regular or full-time employee to receive a lump sum
amount equivalent to one (1) month salary for every year of credited service. Period
of service shall be reckoned from date hired to date of retirement, death, pemrmanent

disability, or severance.

This defined benefit pension plan expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as

interest rate risk and market (investment) risk,
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Contributions will be made at the start of each year based on the funding
requirements and recommendations indicated in the latest actuarial valuation report.

The Company’s plan assets consists of the following:

] 2018 2017
Investment in government securities P286,797 P238,536
Equity instruments 66,383 65,691
Cash and cash equivalents 38,840 P28,745
Debt instruments 7,801 7,634
Investment in UITF 5,343 56,590
Other receivables 17,144 16,109

P422,308 P413,305

All equity instruments and govemment securities have quoted price in active
markets.

All government securities are issued by the Philippine government and are rated
Baa3 by Moody's or BBB by Standard & Poor’s.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension benefit obligations for the
Company’s plan are shown below;

2018 2017
Discount rate at end of year 7.3% 5.7%
Salary increase rate 4.0%-5.0% 3.0%-5.0%

Assumptions for mortality rate are based on the 2017 Philippine Intercompany
Mortality Table.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

2018 2017
Average expected future service years 11 14
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments;
2018
Expected Benefit
Paymeénts
Within 1 Year P85,502
Within 1 - 5 Years 181,043
Mare than 5 Years 1,737,962
2017
Expected Benefit
Payments
Within 1 Year P48,568
Within 1 - 5 Years 104,834
More than 5 Years 2,102,931
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Sensitivity Analysis

As at December 31, 2018, the reasonably possible changes to the relevant actuarial
assumptions holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
henefit obligation by the amounts below:

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Discount rate (P444,594) P507,485
Salary increase rate 510,301 (441,6286)

The Company expects to pay P44.7 million in contributions to the defined benefit
plan in 2019.

22. Commitments and Contingencies

Agreements within _the Scope of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12. Service

Concession Airangements

a. The Company is authorized by the PFA to render cargo handling services at the
South Harbor until May 2013. On October 19, 2007, the cargo handling services
confract was extended until May 2038 under the terms mutually agreed upon
with the PPA (see Note 2).

In accordance with the Investment Plan which was revised in December
2014 pursuant to the Third Supplement to the Cargo Handling Contract, the
Company has committed to invest US$385.7 million from 2010 to 2028, for
the rehabilitation, development and expansion of the South Harbor facilities.
The commitment is dependent on container volume. The Investment Pian is
subject to joint review every two {2) years, or as ofien as necessary as
mutually agreed, to ensure that the same conforms to actual growth levels,
taking into account introduction of new technologies and allowing the
Company the opportunity of a fair return on investment.

Government Share

For storage operations, the Company shall pay an annual fixed
government share of P55 million payable quarterly and a government
share of 30% of its annual gross storage revenue in excess of
P273 million.

For international containerized cargo operations, the Company shall pay
quarterly fixed government share of US$2.25 million plus a variable
government share amounting to 20% of its total gross revenues.

For general cargo operations, the Company shall remit government
share amounting to 20% of its total gross revenues collected from
arrastre services and 14% of its total gross revenues collected from
stevedoring services for general cargoes.

For domestic terminal operations, the Company shall remit government

share amounting to 10% of its total gross revenues derived from its
domestic cargo handling and passenger terminal operations.
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b. The Company is authorized by the PPA to render cargo handling services at the

Container Terminal “A-1," Phase 2 af the Port of Batangas for 25 years starting
July 1, 2010. For arrastre operations, the Company shall pay an annual fixed
government share of US$2.26 milion for the first 2  years,
US$4.68 million for the 3 year, US$5.08 million for the 4%-7% year, and
US$5.33 million for the 8".25% year. The Company shall also remit annual
variable government share based on committed yearly percentage share
multiplied by whichever is higher of the projected gross income in the bid
proposal or actual gross income.

Upon recognition of the fair value of the fixed fees representing the government
share under the concession agreements as discussed above, the Company also
recognized the corresponding port concession rights payable (see Note 2). The
movements in the port concession rights payable are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Balance as at January 1 8,003,780 P8,120,887
Accretion of port concession rights payable 192,017 216,882
Payments during the year {669,091) (663,375)
Effects of exchange rate changes 19 603,374 329,386
Balance as at December 31 P8,130,080 P8,003,780

Agreements outside the Scope of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service

Cancession Arrangements

a. The Parent Company has a 5-year lease agreement with PPA effective

April 3, 2012 covering a land adjacent to the Container Freight Station area of
the Container Terminal “A-1" with a monthly lease rental of P0.4 million, subject
to a yearly escalation of 5%. As of December 31, 2018, the lease agreement
indicating a menthly rental of P1.7 million until 2023 is pending finalization.

As at December 31, the Company has outstanding commitments for future
minimum lease payments under the above operating lease, which fall due as
follows:

o 2018 2017

Within one year P20,403 PB,357
After one year but not more than five years 66,310 22,904

P86,713 P29,261

The Company has a 25-year lease agreement until April 2021 covering the land
in Calamba, Laguna to be used exclusively as an inland Container Depot for
which the Company pays an annual rental of P0.1 million, subject to an
escalation of 7% once every two years.

The contract was revised in 2004, changing the monthly rate to P0.5 million in
January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2003 and P0.7 million in January 1, 2004 to
December 31, 2005, subject o an escalation of 8% every 2 years starting
January 1, 2006. The monthly rate amounted to P1.2 million and P1.1 millien in
2018 and 2017, respectively.
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The future minimum rentals payable under operating leases as at December 31
are as follows:

2018 2017

Within one year P14,396 P14,396
After one year but not more than five years 31,096 45 492
P45,492 P59,888

c. The Company has entered a 25-year |lease contract commencing on February
15, 2018 for a parcel of land located at barangay Calibuyo, Tanza, Cavite, with
a monthly lease rental of P35 per square meter, subject to an escalation of 5%
beginning February 15, 2020 and every 2 years thereafler. The lease premises
shall be used exclusively as a port terminal, inland clearance depot, warehouse,
and for other activities related or ancillary thereto.

d. The Company has a 5-year Ilease contract commencing on
February 1, 2017 over two parcels of land located in Sta. Mesa, City of Manila
with a monthly lease rental of P0.6 million, subject to an escalation of 7% once
every two years. This land is being exclusively used as an off-dock container
depot.

The future minimum rentals payable under operating lease as at December 31
are as follows:

2018 2017
Within one year P7,164 P6,732
After one year but not more than five years 15,511 23,073

P22,675 P29,805

e. The Company has contingent liabilities for lawsuits and various other matters
occurring in the ordinary course of business. On the basis of information
furnished by its legal counsel, management believes that none of these
contingencies will materially affect the Company's financial position and
financial performance.

23. Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has various financial assets and liabilities such as cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, deposits, equity securities, tfrade and other
payables, port concession rights payable which arise directly from its operations.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise financing for the
Company’s capital expenditures and operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. The BOD reviews and agrees
on policies for managing each of these risks.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’'s interest rate risk management policy centers on reducing the
Company's overall interest expense and exposure to changes in interest rates.
Changes in market interest rates relate primarily to the Company's cash in banks
and cash equivalents.

-43 .



As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the interest rate profile of the Company's
interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2018 2017

Fixed Rate Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents® P6,546,604 P6,288,180

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to P0.5 million and P0.4 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively

Fair Value Sensitivity Analysis for Fixed Rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and lizbilities at
fair value through profit or loss, therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

Liguidity Risk

The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both the Company’s financial investments and
financial assets and projected cash flows from operations, among others. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank loans.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial
fiabilities based on confractual undiscounted payments;

Contractual Gash Flows

As at December 31, Carrying On  Less than 3to

2018 Amount Demand 3 Months 12 Months 1to 5 Years =5 Years Totzl
Trade and other

payables* P2,838,711 P203,138  P454,383  P2,181,190 P - P - P2,838,711
Port cancession rights

payable 8,130,080 - 167.273 501,818 3,345,455 8,266,059 12,280,605
Total P10,968,791 P203,138 P621,656 P2,683,008 P3,345455 PB,266,059 P15,118,316

“Excluding due to governmenf agencies amounting to P682.0 million

Conlractual Cash Flows

As at December 31, Carrying Cn  Lessthan 3to

2017 Amount Demand 3 Monihs 12Months 1to5Years >5 Years Total
Trade and other

payables” P1,872,301 P235,640 P873,282 PE63,379 P - P - P1,872,301
Port concession rights
_payable 8,003,780 - 167,273 501,818 3,345,455 8,935,150 12,849,696
Total P9,876,081 P235,640 P840,555  P1,485,187 P3,345455 P8,935,150 P14,821,997

“Excluding due fo government agencies amounting to P605.4 milfion

Credit Risk
Credit risk on trade and ather receivables represents the risk of loss the Company
would incur if credit customers and counterparties fail to perform their contractual
obligations.

The Company trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored an an
ongoing basis with the result that the Company’'s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. A regularfannual review and evaluation of accounts is being
implemented to assess the credit standing of customers.

The Company does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.
The Company does not have trade and other receivables for which no loss
allowance is recognized because of collateral. The carrying amounts of trade and
other receivahles represent the maximum credit axposure.
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With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company,
which comprise cash in bank and cash equivalents, deposits, and FVOCI - equity,
the Company's exposure to credit risk arises fram default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The
Company trades only with reputable banks and recognized third parties.

Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit checks are being
performed on all clients requesting credit over certain amounts. Credit is not
extended beyond authorized limits, established where appropriate through
consultation with a professional credit vetting organization. Credit granted is subject
to regular review, to ensure it remains consistent with the clients’ current credit
worthiness and appropriate to the anticipated volume of business.

Financial information on the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, without considering the effects of other nsk
mitigation techniques, is presented below.

Note 2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents* 6 P6,546,604 P6,288,180
Trade and other receivables - net 7 701,370 467,932
Deposits 12 38,600 31,406
Equity securities 12 2,652 2,652
P7,289,226 P6,790,170

“excluding cash on hand amounting fo P0.5 milfion and P0.4 miflion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively,

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company's financial assets based
on their historical experience with the corresponding debtor.

As at December 31, 2018

Grade A Grade B Grade C Total
Cash in banks and
cash equivalents P6,546,604 P - P - P6,546,604
Trade and other
receivabies - net 392,326 309,044 - 701,370
Deposits 38,600 - - 38,600
Equity securities 2,652 - - 2,652
6,980,182 P309,044 P - P7,289,226
As at December 31, 2017
Grade A Grade B Grade C Total
Cash in banks and
cash equivalents P6,288,180 P - P - 6,288,180
Trade and other
receivables - net 335,837 132,085 - 467,932
Deposits 31,406 - - 31,406
Equity securities 2,652 - - 2,652
P6,658,075 P132,095 P - P6,790,170

Grade A receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that always pay
on time or even before the maturity date. Grade B includes receivables that are
collected on their due dates provided that they were reminded or followed up by the
Company. Those receivables which are collected consistently beyond their due
dates and require persistent effort from the Company are included under Grade C.
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Cash in banks is considered good quality (Grade A) as this pertains to deposits in
reputable banks.

Trade and Other Receivables
The exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by industry is as follows:

Note 2018 2017

Shipping lines P451,716 P312,063
Others 249,654 155,869
7 P701,370 P467,932

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company. Of the
total trade and other receivables which are neither past due nor impaired, 100% are
of high grade quality instruments because there was no history of default on the
agreed terms of the contract.

An analysis of the credit quality of trade receivables and other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired and the ageing of trade receivables that were past
due but not impaired as at December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Neither
Past Due Past Due but nof Impaired Past Due
nor 30-60 63%-90 Over 9¢ and
Total Impaired <30 Days Days Days Days Impaired
Trade receivables P367,149 P356,486 P1,884 P - P - P - £3,679
Other receivables 118,435 64,538 4,766 12,622 5.410 22,126 8,873
F485,5584 P421.024 P6,750 P12.622 P5,410 P22,128 P17.652

impaired trade and other receivables as at December 31, 2017 had a gross carying
amount of P17.7 million. As at December 31, 2017, the impairment loss relates to
several customers that have indicated that they are not expecting to be able to pay
their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

Expected Credit L oss Assessment as at December 31, 2018

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to external
ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow
projections and available press information about customers) and applying
expected credit judgment. Credit risk grades are defined using gqualitative and
quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default.

Exposures within each credit risk grade are segmented by industry classification

and an ECL rate is calculated for each segment based on delinquency and actual
credit loss experience.
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The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
and other receivables as at December 31, 2018:

Gross Impairment
Carrying Loss Credit-
Amount Allowance impaired
Current (not past due) P681,959 P - No
1 - 30 days past due 3,799 - No
31 - 60 days past due 2,978 - No
61- 90 days past due 848 - No
More than 90 days past due 11,786 11,702 Yes
Balance at December 31, 2018 P701,370 P11,702

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over three years considering
circumstances at the reporting date. Any adjustment to the loss rates for forecasts
of future economic conditions are not expected to be material. The Company
applies the simplified approach in providing for expected credit losses prescribed by
PFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision and applies a
provision matrix. The application of the expected loss rates to the receivables of the
Company does not have a material impact on the financial statements.

The maturity of the Company’s trade and other receivables is less than one year so
the lifetime expected credit losses and the 12-month expected credit losses are
similar.

Movement in the Aflowance for Impaimrment in Respect of Trade and Other
Receivables

Individually Collectively
2018 Impaired Impaired

Balance at January 1 under

PAS 39 P17,652 P3,295 P14,357
Adjustment on initial

application of PFRS 9 - - -

Balance at January 1 under

PFRS 9 17,652 3,285 14,357
Reversal during the vear (5,950) - -
Balance at December 31 P11,702 P3,295 P14,357

The significant change in the gross carrying amount of trade receivabies that
contributed also fo the change in the impairment loss allowance during 2018 refers
to the reversals in allowance for impairment. The reversals resulted from review of
credit risks profiling of customers and upon identification of receivables with specific
doubtful accounts.

Cash in Banks and Cash Equivalents

The Company held cash in banks and cash equivalents of P6.5 billion and P6.3
billion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The cash and cash
equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are
rated Grade A.
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Impairment on cash in banks and cash equivalents has been measured on a
12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures.
The Company considers that its cash in bank and cash equivalents have low credit
risk based on the extemal credit ratings of the counterparties and any ECL is
expected to be immaterial.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has foreign currency financiai assets and liabilities arising from US
doltar denominated revenues, government share, and other foreign cumency-
denominated purchases by operating units.

The Company's policy is to manage its foreign currency risk by using a combination
of natural hedges as well as buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

As part of its foreign currency risk strategy, commencing July 1, 2014, the Company
hedged the spot exchange risk on the highly probable forecast US dollar revenue
transactions using a non-derivative financial instrument, port concession rights
payable, which is denominated in US dollar. The financial liability creates an
exposure to the functional currency which offsets the foreign currency exposure on
the highly probable US dollar revenue stream. This type of hedging relationship is
designated as cash flow hedge.

The Company had assessed that 80% of the US dollar denominated stevedoring
revenue for the designated period is highly probabte. However, the Company had
designated 67% of the monthiy US dollar revenue as the hedged items for the next
thirty-six months from the date of designation i.e., July 1, 2014.

In 2017, the designated hedged item reached its 3rd year and ceased accordingly.
The Company re-designated 50% of the monthly US dollar revenue as the hedged
item for the next forty-two months.

The Company uses the port concession rights payable as a hedging instrument to
hedge the spot exchange risk in the highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company decided to terminate the hedging instrument on November 30, 2018.
A sensitivity analysis has been prepared comparing the impact on unrealized
foreign exchange losses on the CRP under the fair value method and continuing the
cash flow hedge. The fair value methad is more beneficial to the Company.

The Company’s foreign currency-denominated accounts as of December 31 are as
follows:

2018 2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents US$45,648 US$386
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 2,811 2,860
Port concession rights payable 142,611 146,156
145,422 149,016
Net foreign currency-denominated liabilities (US$98,774) (US$148,630)
Peso eqguivalent {P5,246,117) (P7,421,096)

The exchange rates applicable for US dellar as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
P52.58 and P49.93, respectively.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
the US dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Company's income before income tax and equity.

Effect on
income
Increase (Decrease) in Before Effect on
U. S. dollar Exchange Rate Income Tax Equity
2018
+5% (P262,306) (P183,614)
-5% 262,306 183,614
2017
+5% (371,055) {259,738)
-5% 371,055 259,738

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a strong credit rating and heaithy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company considers capital to include capital stock, additional paid-in capital,
retained earnings, fair value reserve and hedging reserve. The Company manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes from prior
year.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The table below shows the capital structure of the Company as at December 31:

Note 2018 2017
Capital stock P2,000,000 P2.000,000
Additional paid-in capital 264,300 264,300
Retained earnings 12,000,424 10,155,597
Hedging reserve - (207,620)
Fair value reserve (5,820) (5,820)
Total 16 P14,258,904 P12,206,457
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24, Financial Instruments

The table below presents a compariscn by category of carrying amounts and
estimated fair values of all the Company’s financial instruments as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017,

2018 2017

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Note Amount Value Amount Value

Financlal Assets

Cash and cash equivalents & P6,547,081 P6,547,081 P6,288,607 P6,288,6G7
Trade and other receivables - net 7 701,370 701,370 467,932 467,932
Deposits 12 38,600 41,857 31,406 37,148
7,287,051 7,290,308 6,787,945 6,793,687

Equity securities 12 2,652 2,652 2,652 2652

P7,288,703 P7,292,960 P6,790,587 P6,7586,339

Financfal Liabilities

Other financiat lizbilties:
Trade and other payables™ 14 2,838,711 2,838,711 71,872,301 P1,872,301
Port cancession rights payable 22 8,130,080 8,354,837 8,003,780 9,080,412

P10,968,791 P11,193,548 P9.876,081 P10,952,713

*Excluding due to government agencies amounting to P882.0 miilian and P605.4 milfion in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables are approximately equal to their carrying amounts due to their
relatively short-termn nature.

Non-denvative Financial Instruments

Quoated market prices have been used to determine the fair values of listed equity
.securities.  The fair values of unquoted equity securities are not reliably
determinable.

For noninterest-bearing deposits, the fair value is estimated as the present value of
all future cash flows discounted using the prevailing market rate on interest far a
similar instrument. The discount rates used are 7.0% in 2018 and 4.3% in 2017.

The fair value of port concession rights payable was estimated at the present value
of ali future cash flows discounted using the application rates for similar types of
loans ranging from 7.34% te 7.61% in 2018 and 5.70% t0 5.78% in 2017.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The following table shows the levels in the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s
financial instruments:

As at December 31, 2018 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Equity securities 12 P933 P - P1,718
Porf concession rights payable . 8,354,837 -
P933  P8,354,837 P1,719
As at December 31, 2017 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Equity securities 12 F9O33 P - P1,719
Port concession rights payable - 9,080,412 -
P933 P9.080.,412 P1,719

There have been no transfers from one level to another in 2018 and 2017.
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25. Revenue

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of services over time and at a point

in time in the following major service lines;

Note 2017
Revenues from Operations
Stevedoring P5,100,739 P4,526,831
Arrastre 4,194,488 3,292,885
Logistics 73,084
Special and other services 1,916,621 1,677 452
Total P11,277,683 P9,570,352

28. Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards
and/or conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the separate financial statements, certain supplementary
information for the {axable year. The amounts relating to such information may not
necessarily be the same with those amounts disclesed in the separate financial
statements which were prepared in accordance with PFRSs. The following are the
tax information/disclosures required by Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 for the

taxable year ended December 31, 2018:

A. Value Added Tax (VAT)

1. Qutput VAT P612,088
Basis of the Output VAT
Vatable sales 5,100,733
Sales to government 2,131
Zero rated sales 6,824,803
11,927,667
* The base amounlts are gross of PPA fees.
2. Input VAT P434,601
Beginning of the year
Current year's domestic purchases:
a. Goods other than for resale or manufacture 85,272
b. Capital goods subject to amortization 28,122
c. Services lodged under cost of goods sold 601,556
d. Services lodged under other accounts 20,2686
Claims for tax credit/refund and other adjustments -
Balance at the end of the year P1,169,817
3. Customs Duties and Tariff Fees:
Landed cost of imports P273,528
Customs duties paid or accrued 5,165
P278,693
B. Documentary Stamp Tax
Others (insurance policies) P9,104
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C. Withholding Taxes

Tax on compensation and benefits P130,715
Creditable withholding taxes 145,554
Final withholding taxes 53,981

P330,250

D. AN Other Taxes (Local and National)

Other taxes paid during the year recognized under
“Taxes and licenses” account under Costs and

Expenses

Real estate taxes P182,005
Mayor's permit 59,927
Others 6,339

P248,271

E. Deficiency Tax Assessments
in 2018, the Company received letters of authority (LOAs) involving the
examination of book of acceunts and other accounting records far the taxable
periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company has settled the outstanding LOAs.

F. Tax Cases

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has no pending tax court cases.

Information on the excise taxes is not apglicable since there are no transactions that
the Company would be subject to this type of tax.
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